2015

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN



WATER DIVISION 164 W. MAGNOLIA BOULEVARD JUNE 2016

Table of Contents

Table of Conten	ts		ii				
List of Tables			iv				
List of Figures			v				
List of Appendic	es		v				
Section 1:	Intro	oduction	1-1				
	1.1	Purpose	1-1				
	1.2	Previous Efforts	1-1				
	1.3	UWMP Preparation	1-1				
	1.4	UWMP Adoption	1-2				
	1.5	Organization of This Document	1-2				
	1.6	Project Team	1-3				
Section 2:	Serv	Service Area Information2-1					
	2.1	Historical Background	2-1				
	2.2	Population and Demographics	2-2				
	2.3	Climate	2-2				
	2.4	Water System	2-3				
Section 3:	Syst	tem Demands	3-1				
	3.1	Past and Current Water Use					
	3.2	Baselines and Targets	3-3				
	3.3	Water Demand Projections	3-4				
	3.4	Water Use Reduction Plan	3-7				
Section 4:	Syst	tem Supplies	4-1				
	4.1	Metropolitan Water District	4-1				
	4.2	Groundwater	4-3				
	4.3	Burbank Operable Unit and Valley Pumping Plant	4-5				

	4.4	Lake Street GAC4-7					
	4.5	Stormwater Capture/Infiltration4-7					
	4.6	Exchanges or Transfers4-11					
	4.7	Desalinated Water4-11					
	4.8	Future Water Projects4-12					
Section 5:	Wat	er Recycling5-1					
	5.1	Wastewater Collection and Treatment5-1					
	5.2	Current Recycled Water Use5-1					
	5.3	Recycled Water Policies5-5					
	5.4	Recycled Water Fill Stations5-5					
	5.5	Potable Reuse5-6					
Section 6:	Wat	Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency					
	Plar	۱6-1					
	6.1	MWD Supply Reliability6-1					
	6.2	Groundwater Supply Reliability6-2					
	6.3	Recycled Water Supply Reliability6-3					
	6.4	Supply and Demand Comparison6-4					
	6.5	Drought Experience6-6					
	6.6	Water Shortage Contingency Planning6-8					
	6.7	Sustainable Water Use Ordinance6-10					
Section 7:	Dem	nand Management Measures7-1					
	7.1	Burbank's local water conservation portfolio structure and ordinances7-1					
	7.2	Burbank's Customer Water Conservation Programs7-2					
	7.3	Other Burbank Conservation Efforts7-4					
	7.4	CUWCC Compliance7-5					
Section 8:	Wat	er Audit/Water Loss Control8-1					

List of Tables

	Page
Table 1-1: Coordination with appropriate agencies	1-2
Table 2-1: Population Projections	2-2
Table 2-2: Climate Data for Burbank	2-3
Table 3-1: Potable Water Sales Percentages by Class	3-1
Table 3-2: 2015 Actual Potable Water Deliveries	3-2
Table 3-3: Base Period Information	3-3
Table 3-4: Ten-Year Base Period (1997-2006)	3-4
Table 3-5: Five-Year Base Period (2003-2007)	3-4
Table 3-6: Future Water Demands	3-5
Table 3-7: Projected Low Income Water Demands	3-5
Table 3-8: Additional Water Uses and Losses	3-6
Table 3-9: Total Water Use	3-7
Table 3-10: Anticipated MWD Demands	3-7
Table 4-1: MWD Service Connection Capacity	4-1
Table 4-2: Water Supplies – Current and Projected	4-2
Table 4-3: Wholesale Supplies	4-2
Table 4-4: Groundwater Volume Pumped	4-6
Table 5-1: Recycled Water Use in AF	5-4
Table 6-1: MWD's Basis of Water Year Data	6-4
Table 6-2: Minimum Supply for Next Three Years	6-5
Table 6-3: Supply and Demand—Normal Year	6-5
Table 6-4: Supply and Demand—Single Dry Year	6-5
Table 6-5: Supply and Demand—Multiple Dry Year Events	6-5
Table 6-6: Measures Contained in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance	6-10
Table 8-1: Water Meter Evaluation	8-2

List of Figures

Figure 2-1: Burbank Vicinity Map	2-1
Figure 2-2: Burbank's Potable Water System and Pressure Zones	2-5
Figure 4-1: Burbank's Groundwater Recharge Project	4-3
Figure 4-2: San Fernando Groundwater Basin	4-4
Figure 4-3: Burbank's Groundwater Production Facilities	4-6
Figure 5-1: Existing Recycled Water System	5-3

List of Appendices

- A Completed Urban Water Management Plan Checklist
- B Documentation of Postings/Notifications
- C Required Data Tables in DWR Format
- D San Fernando Water Rights Judgment
- E CUWCC Best Management Practices (BMP) Forms
- F AWWA Water Audit Form

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Act), Water Code Sections 10610 through 10657, requires many urban water suppliers to assess the reliability of their water sources over a 20-year planning horizon every five years through the preparation of an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). Preparation of an UWMP is required for suppliers that either provide over 3,000 acre-feet (AF) of water annually or serve 3,000 or more connections. The City of Burbank has over 26,000 water services and supplies between 15,000 AF and 19,000 AF of potable water annually.

Since its original enactment, there have been several amendments/additions to the Act. The main goal of the UWMP is:

- Forecasting future water demands and water supplies under average and dry year conditions
- Identifying future water supply projects such as recycled water
- Providing a summary of water conservation best management practices (BMPs)
- Providing a single and multi-dry year management strategy

BWP completed UWMPs for the years of 1985, 1990, 1995, 2000, 2005, and 2010 and submitted them the California Department of Water Resources (DWR). DWR reviews each water supplier's UWMP for compliance with its minimum requirements and for 2015, UWMPs must include:

- Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands
- Evaluation of the future reliability of Burbank's water supplies
- Water conservation and water management activities
- Discussion of water recycling activities
- Contingency planning for water shortages
- Evaluation of distribution system water losses

Highlights of changes in requirements since the 2010 UWMP include:

- Demand Management Measures: Requires retail water suppliers to address the nature and extent of each water demand management measure implemented over the past 5 years and describe the water demand management measures that the supplier plans to implement to achieve its water use targets
- Submittal Date: Requires each urban water supplier to submit its 2015 UWMP to DWR by July 1, 2016
- Electronic Submittal: Requires the UWMP and any amendments to be submitted electronically to DWR
- Water Loss: Requires a plan to quantify and report on distribution system water loss
- Estimating Future Water Savings: Provides for water use projections to display and account for the water savings estimated to result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances, or

transportation and land use plans, when that information is available and applicable to an urban water supplier

- Voluntary Reporting of Energy Intensity: Allows an urban water supplier to include certain energy-related information, including, but not limited to, an estimate of the amount of energy used to extract or divert water supplies
- Defining Water Features: Requires urban water suppliers to analyze and identify water features that are artificially supplied with water, including ponds, lakes, waterfalls, and fountains, separately from swimming pools and spas

Burbank Water and Power (BWP) Staff prepared this 2015 UWMP which was subsequently approved by the Burbank City Council on June 14, 2016. Public involvement and comment was solicited though BWP's website.

BWP's potable water supply is composed of surface water resources provided by the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) and groundwater resources. There are factors which could affect the reliability of the groundwater supply which BWP cannot control, such as new water quality standards for emerging contaminants which may be difficult to meet. This uncertainty is bridged by BWP's status as a member agency of the MWD. MWD stated, through its 2015 UWMP, that it has adequate supplies for its service area through 2040.

In November 2009, Senate Bill 7 (SBx7-7) was passed into law, mandating a 20 percent per capita reduction in water use by December 31, 2020, along with an interim goal of 10 percent reduction by the end of 2015. The 2010 Plan included the calculation of a 2020 water use target of 156 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) and an interim (2015) target of 175 gpcd. In April 2015 Governor Brown issued an Executive Order requiring 25% statewide water use reductions as compared to potable water use in 2013. In May 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted emergency regulations requiring an immediate 25% reduction in overall potable urban water use. The regulation used a sliding scale for setting conservation standards. Communities that had "low" gpcd use or had already reduced their gpcd through past conservation were given lower reduction mandates than those that had not made such gains since the last major drought. As a result Burbank's required reduction was established at 24%.

Burbank's City Council implemented Stage III of its Sustainable Water Use Ordinance (SWUO) on June 1, 2015. By the end of 2015, water use had decreased to 127 gpcd, much lower than the 2015 interim SBx7-7 requirement of 175 gpcd. Implementing Stage III also resulted in the City meeting the SWRCB's required monthly reduction of 24%. BWP expects to sustain this level of water use as long as the Governor's order stays in place by remaining in Stage III of the SWUO. In addition, permanent water conservation measures have been implemented like Stage I SWUO requirements, continued water system maintenance (e.g. replacing vulnerable water mains), and maximizing recycled water use.

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Purpose

This Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) has been prepared in accordance with the California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Act), Water Code Sections 10610 through 10657. The Act requires urban water suppliers that provide over 3,000 AF of water annually or serve 3,000 or more connections to assess, every five years, the reliability of its water sources over a 20-year planning horizon. The UWMP must include:

- Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands
- Evaluation of the future reliability of Burbank's water supplies
- Water conservation and water management activities
- Discussion of water recycling activities
- Contingency planning for water shortages
- Evaluation of distribution system water losses

The complete text of the Act is available on the internet at <u>www.water.ca.gov/urbanwatermanagement</u>. DWR's guidance contains a checklist for the requirements of the Act. The completed 2015 UWMP checklist for the City of Burbank is contained in Appendix A.

Burbank Water and Power (BWP) provides water service to the residents of the city of Burbank (the City). BWP is a departmental utility of the City. Burbank's City Council (the Council), elected by Burbank's residents establishes the policies under which the utility operates. As such, the Council has established the policy that the City will continue and expand its efforts to encourage the efficient use of water within its service area.

1.2 Previous Efforts

The City prepared UWMPs for the years 1985, 1990, 1995, 2000, 2005, and 2010 which fulfilled Water Code 10620(b) requirements. In 1992, the City prepared an Urban Water Shortage Contingency Plan, which was also required by the Legislature, which was subsequently integrated into the 1995 UWMP. In 1997, the City prepared an Integrated Water Resources Plan containing some of the same information regarding expected water supplies and demands. The basic information from the Integrated Water Resources Plan was incorporated into subsequent UWMPs, starting in 2000.

1.3 UWMP Preparation

BWP coordinated efforts with several agencies in the preparation of the 2015 UWMP which are shown in Table 1-1. BWP worked with Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), Upper Los Angeles River Area (ULARA) Watermaster, County of Los Angeles, City of Glendale, Burbank Public Works Department, and the General Public in developing the 2015 UWMP. BWP also notified the public, via a post on its website on March 1st, 2016 that the UWMP was in review. This posting also encouraged the involvement of the public with diverse social, cultural, and economic elements. Another website posting on April 28th, 2016 made the 2015 UWMP Draft version available for the public review and also notified the public of the time and place of the City Council hearing to adopt the 2015 UWMP.

Coordinating Agencies	Participated in developing the plan	Attended public meetings*	Contacted for assistance	Sent a copy of the draft Plan	Sent a notice of intent to adopt
MWD	х		х	х	х
Burbank Community Development Dept.	х	х	х	х	
Burbank Public Works Department	х	х	х	х	
Los Angeles County				х	х
City of Glendale			х	х	х
General Public		Х	Х	Х	Х

Table 1-1: Coordination with appropriate agencies

* Public hearing regarding draft UWMP adoption

1.4 UWMP Adoption

State law requires the 2015 UWMP be adopted by the City Council prior to its electronic submittal to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) on or before July 1, 2016. The BWP Board endorsed the UWMP at its meeting on May 5th, 2016. A public hearing regarding the adoption of the UWMP was held at Burbank's City Council Meeting on June 14th, 2016. At the conclusion of the hearing, the City Council adopted the 2015 UWMP via resolution and a copy of the adopted resolution is included in Appendix B. No later than 30 days after City Council's adoption the City will submit the adopted 2015 UWMP to the California State Library and post it on BWP's website. Burbank will implement its adopted UWMP through the actions and policies of the Water Division of BWP.

1.5 Organization of This Document

- Section 1 is an introduction and a brief history of Burbank's UWMP
- Section 2 provides background information on the City of Burbank including:
 - Historical and expected future development
 - Climate and demographic information, including historical and projected population figures
 - Description of the water system
 - Past and current water use data
- Section 3 covers the City's projected water demands
- Section 4 describes the City's water supplies

- Section 5 outlines the City's water recycling efforts
- Section 6 is the Water Shortage Contingency Plan
- Section 7 describes demand management measures which have been and will be enacted
- Section 8 contains an evaluation of water distribution system losses

The Appendices provide detailed information that is best presented outside the body of the Plan text.

1.6 Project Team

This UWMP was prepared under the overall guidance of Bill Mace, AGM-Water Systems. The UWMP was prepared by Matt Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer and Bob Doxsee, Civil Engineering Associate, of the BWP Water Division. Support was also provided by Bassil Nahhas, Principal Civil Engineer, Tony Umphenour, Water Quality Analyst, and Joe Flores, Marketing Associate/Public Information Officer.

SECTION 2: SERVICE AREA INFORMATION

2.1 Historical Background

The City of Burbank is located in southern California approximately 12 miles north of downtown Los Angeles, as shown on Figure 2-1. The City covers approximately 17 square miles (10,880 acres) of the eastern end of the San Fernando Valley. The City of Los Angeles lies to the north and west and the City of Glendale to the south and east.



Figure 2-1: Burbank Vicinity Map

There has been a community known as Burbank since 1887. The City of Burbank was officially established in 1911. The municipal water and electric utility was founded in 1913. In 1914, an additional 9.4 square miles were annexed, establishing today's total area of 17.1 square miles and the population grew to almost 14,000. Burbank was one of the 13 founding agencies of MWD in 1928 to secure its future water supplies.

World War II brought rapid industrial growth. During the war, 94,000 people were employed at Lockheed Corporation (Lockheed) aircraft facilities within the City. Population grew to 53,899 by 1943, and to 78,577 by 1950. Growth continued at a slower rate for the next 20 years. In 1970 the population

was 88,871. By 1980 the population had decreased to 84,625 and the average age of citizens had increased. The 1980s brought new growth, including several high-rise office buildings and dozens of new apartment and condominium buildings on lots that originally had single-family homes although they were zoned for multi-family. Population had increased to 93,643 by 1990.

Lockheed closed its facilities in 1991. During a period when there was economic recession, the population did not decline. The 1990s brought expansion of the movie and television industry and a revitalization of the downtown area. The population grew to 100,316 by the 2000 census. Since 2000, former Lockheed and other industrial sites have been redeveloped for commercial and retail uses. Downtown renewal continues. There has been a return to intensive multi-family residential construction that replaces, or sometimes adds on to, older single-family and small multi-family units.

2.2 Population and Demographics

Burbank has a current population of 106,084. There are an estimated 45,000 housing units, approximately half single-family and half multi-family, with a 5% vacancy rate. The occupied housing units average 2.50 persons per household. Employment is about 100,000 (Burbank 2035 General Plan Housing Element, January 2014.) Employment is in a variety of commercial and industrial operations, notably entertainment/media, retail, health care, and manufacturing. Population is expected to reach nearly 120,000 by the year 2040. A summary of current and future population predictions is shown in Table 2-1. This table, and many others required by the DWR for electronic upload into their systems are contained in Appendix C.

Table 2-1:	Population	Projections
------------	------------	-------------

Year	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Population	106,084	112,451	113,179	114,850	115,680	118,821

The greatest amount of growth in the next several decades is expected to be in the commercial area. The City expects to see an intensification of commercial land use in the downtown area and an increased amount of mixed-use development (i.e., residential/commercial/retail) along transportation corridors and transportation nodes. New residential development will be predominantly multi-family which will increase the population density due to redevelopment of older single-family homes on lots zoned for multi-family use. Redevelopment of areas adjacent to downtown is expected to continue, especially along the South San Fernando Boulevard corridor and the area around the Metrolink station. The smallest expected growth will be in the number of single-family residential dwelling units, if not a reduction.

2.3 Climate

Burbank's climate is considered Mediterranean which is warm and dry during summer and cool and wet during winter. A summary of monthly climate data is contained in Table 2-2 below. The warmest month of the year is August with an average high near 90°F, while the coldest month of the year is December

with an average low in the low 40s F. Temperature variations between night and day tend to be moderate during summer and winter.

The historical annual average precipitation in Burbank is 17.5 inches. Winter months tend to be wetter than summer months. The wettest month of the year is February with an average rainfall of 4.3 inches.

Month	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
Max °F	67.5	69.5	70.6	74.9	77.5	83.2	88.9	89.9	87.1	81.5	73.5	67.9
Mean °F	54.8	56.9	58.4	62.2	65.9	70.8	75.5	76.2	73.5	67.6	59.5	54.6
Min °F	42.0	44.3	46.2	49.5	54.2	58.3	62.1	62.4	59.9	53.6	45.4	41.3
Precip. (in)	3.56	4.29	3.88	1.02	0.37	0.12	0.02	0.18	0.30	0.55	1.05	2.15
ET (in)	2.20	2.45	3.64	4.74	5.31	6.06	6.75	6.66	5.01	3.95	2.73	2.31
ET deficit (in)	0.00	0.00	0.00	3.72	4.94	5.94	6.73	6.48	4.71	3.40	1.68	0.16

Table 2-2: Climate Data for Burbank

Due to its moderate climate, there is considerable water demand for landscape irrigation for growing a variety of plants. The total average evapotranspiration (ET) deficit, which must be made up with irrigation, is almost 38 in/year. Water meter data indicates that historic irrigation rates between 42 in/yr and 48 in/yr are common for turf areas.

2.4 Water System

Burbank does not own any native groundwater rights and extracts groundwater supplies under terms outlined in the 1979 water rights Judgment for the San Fernando Basin which is discussed fully in Section 4.2. BWP provides potable water and recycled water to customers within the City. BWP's potable water supply is comprised of water from MWD and groundwater from production wells within the City. MWD imports its water from Northern California via the State Water Project (SWP) and also the Colorado River via the Colorado River Aqueduct (CRA). All groundwater extracted in Burbank is treated to remove Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) at the Burbank Operable Unit (BOU) prior to entering the distribution system. Recycled water is produced at the Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (BWRP), operated by the Burbank Public Works Department, and is delivered via an independent distribution system. Section 3 contains more information about potable water supplies, and Section 5 describes the recycled water system.

Burbank's potable water system includes approximately 286 miles of pipelines ranging in size from 30 inches to 1-1/2 inches in diameter, 35 booster pumps, 21 tanks and reservoirs, eight wells, five MWD connections, and over 26,000 service connections. The water distribution system consists of three major pressure zones and eight smaller hillside zones (see Figure 2-2). The three largest pressure zones are denoted Zones 1, 2, and 3. Zone 1 encompasses approximately 90% of the total City land area and represents 88% of the total City demand. The ground surface elevations in Zone 1 range from 480 feet

above mean sea level (MSL) at the southerly boundary at Chavez Street and Linden Avenue, to 830 feet MSL on Bel Aire Drive at Orange Grove Avenue. The reservoirs that serve Zone 1 have a hydraulic elevation of 904 feet MSL.

Almost all of the water supplies enter the system in Zone 1. The only exception is that some water from one of the five MWD connections (B-5) can feed Zone 2. Water is pumped from Zone 1 to Zones 2 and 3 at hydraulic elevations 991 and 1,156 feet MSL, respectively. From Zones 2 and 3, water is pumped to the eight hillside zones through successive pumping stations.

The potable system's tanks and reservoirs range in capacity from 13,500 gallons to 25 million gallons (MG). The combined storage capability of all the reservoirs is approximately 60 MG. The storage capacity of Zone 1 is approximately 50 MG, 83% of the total system storage.

Water demands by individual customers are subject to wide daily and seasonal fluctuations. Burbank's system has been designed to accommodate variability of water demands. The system includes large storage reservoirs to accommodate hourly flow and demand variations throughout the distribution system. The storage capacity is large enough to allow for short interruptions (1 to 3 days at average flow) in the water supply.

Most of Burbank's pressure zones are open, i.e. open to the atmosphere and pressurized by gravity. There are two small closed pressure zones, one in the Walnut Zone near the DeBell Golf Course and the other in Wildwood Canyon Park. Lowering pressures in these zones would have a minimal effect on reducing system losses or consumption. Burbank has very low rates of unaccounted for water averaging 2.29% for the years 2011-2015. This is discussed further in Section 3.1.



Figure 2-2: Burbank's Potable Water System and Pressure Zones

SECTION 3: SYSTEM DEMANDS

3.1 Past and Current Water Use

Burbank's water use is urban encompassing residential, commercial, and governmental uses. There are no agricultural water services although some services are used exclusively for landscape irrigation. Burbank maintains records of the following:

- Water delivered from MWD
- Groundwater produced and treated
- Potable water sales in units of 100 cubic feet (CCF) by class of service
- Number of water meters for each of the customer classes
- Recycled water delivered

The following customer classes are contained in BWP's billing system:

- Single-family residential
- Multi-family residential
- Commercial
- City departments

- Fire protection
- Temporary water
- Recycled

Recycled water is discussed separately in Section 5, while the rest of Section 3 focuses on potable water. The annual potable water sales for 2011 through 2015 averaged 7,553,000 CCF (5,650 MG or 17,339 acre-feet [AF]). Table 3-1 identifies the breakdown of water sales by class.

Class	Percentage
Single-family residential	49.00%
Multi-family residential	24.72%
Commercial	24.18%
City departments	1.92%
Fire protection	0.04%
Temporary water	0.14%

Table 3-1: Potable Water Sales Percentages by Class

Over the same five years, the average water demand was 15.9 million gallons per day (MGD). Annual maximum day demands averaged 21.9 MGD. The maximum day usually occurs between the months of June and September. Burbank's weather was moderate but severely dry during the last five years which normally would have increased demand but mandatory conservation resulted in lower demands.

Variation in water demand is attributed to changes in temperature and rainfall, as well as changes in economic conditions, and scarcity (i.e., requests to conserve during droughts). An exceptionally wet,

cool year will reduce the water use, while a hot, dry year will increase water use. Demands may be higher than average during drought years, although calls for conservation can reduce demand.

Unaccounted-for water averaged 2.9% over the past five years. Unaccounted-for water is calculated as the difference between water delivered to the system and metered sales to customers, accounting for changes in reservoir storage. Unaccounted-for water is lost through unmetered use (flow testing, reservoir cleaning, main flushing, firefighting, etc.), faulty meters, evaporation, sheared hydrants, and system leaks. It should be noted that the industry average for unaccounted-for water is 7%.

Burbank's water demands have decreased compared to the early 1970s. The average daily water demand decreased from 24.0 to 19.6 MGD between 1970 and 1999. Maximum day water demands were 37 to 39 MGD in the early 1970s, but have not exceeded 36 MGD since 1976. The demands have decreased due to efficient water use after major droughts in the 1970s, 1990s, and especially in response to the water shortage of the past few years. Industrial use has also reduced since some major industries have closed. Stepped-up programs of water meter maintenance, testing, and replacement have significantly helped to reduce unaccounted-for water.

Water use varies with the seasons and also during the course of each day. Water use for the maximum day of the year generally is 150% of (one and one-half times) the average daily water use. On a hot summer day, water use reaches its peak at 7 PM and its minimum at 3 AM. The rate of water use at the peak hour of the maximum day is about 200% of (twice) the rate for the entire maximum day, while the minimum flow rate at 3 AM is about 40% of the maximum day demand.

Residential water use is the major contributor of the system peak hour water use. Due to the ongoing drought and implementing Stage II and III measures of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance (SWUO), demand during peak hour use has decreased. Most non-residential users like schools and parks have been converted to recycled water within the last 5 years which consequentially eased peak hour and peak season demand. Other non-residential users, which include government and commercial entities, do not contribute very much to the peak hour and peak season. 2015 calendar year water deliveries to customers by water use sector are presented in Table 3-2.

Water Use Sector	Total Volume (AF)
Single-family residential	6,679
Multi-family residential	3,946
Commercial	3,613
City departments/Fire	270
protection/Temporary water	270
Losses	535
TOTAL	15,042

Table 3-2:	2015 Actual Potable	Water Deliveries
	LOID Actual I Otable	

3.2 Baselines and Targets

Senate Bill 7 in (SBx7-7), passed in November 2009, required urban water suppliers to reduce per capita water use 20% by 2020. DWR prepared a manual with methodologies for calculating compliance and these calculations were shown in the 2010 Plan. The water use target calculation must be repeated in this 2015 UWMP using population data that now reflects the 2010 census. For Burbank, the 2020 target changed from 156 gpcd to 157 gpcd. SBx7-7 also included 5-year interim targets to be achieved for 2015 and reported in the 2015 UWMP. The first step to compliance is determining the target which will represent a 20% reduction in water sales. Calculating the target begins with collecting the data contained in Table 3-3 below.

Base Period	Parameter	Value
	2008 Total Water Deliveries	23,909 AF
	2008 Total Volume of Delivered Recycled Water	2,032 AF
10 to 15-year	2008 Recycled Water as a Percent of Total Deliveries	8.5%
Base Period	Number of Years in Base Period	10 years
	Year Beginning Base Period	1997
	Year Ending Base Period Range	2006
5-Year Base Period	Number of Years in Base Period	5 years
	Year beginning Base Period Range	2003
	Year Ending Base Period Range	2007

Table 3-3:	Base	Period	Information

Recycled water use in 2008 was less than 10% of total deliveries. As a result, the City is required to use a ten-year base period for the calculation. Any ten-year base period between 1995 and 2010 can be selected for the base period. After evaluating water production for the calendar years from 1995 through 2010, the ten-year base period of 1997 through 2006 was selected. Similarly, a five year base period between 2003 and 2010 was selected for another step of the calculation. The years 2003 through 2007 were used for the five-year period.

Table 3-4 contains the water supply and population data for each of the ten years in the base period and the resulting daily per capita water use figures. Water use is BWP's total potable production which comprises MWD treated water and local treated groundwater. The population data was obtained from the California Department of Finance website. Averaging over the ten-year base period results in a base daily per capita water use of 197 gpcd for the ten-year base period.

Per DWR's calculation method 1, the Urban Water Use Target for the year 2020 is 80% of the ten-year base period average. Accordingly, 80% of 197 is equal to 157 gpcd. Regulations require this target be less than 95% of the five-year base period annual average. The five-year base period data is contained in Table 3-5 below.

Sequence Year	Calendar Year	Distribution System Population	Annual System Gross Water Use (AF)	Annual Daily per Capita Water Use (gpcd)
Year 1	1997	97,326	21,910	201
Year 2	1998	98,303	20,726	188
Year 3	1999	98,817	21,890	198
Year 4	2000	100,316	23,084	205
Year 5	2001	100,869	22,287	197
Year 6	2002	101,572	22,576	198
Year 7	2003	102,574	22,636	197
Year 8	2004	102,872	22,852	198
Year 9	2005	103,122	21,839	189
Year 10	2006	103,060	22,479	195
		Base Daily Per Capi	ta Water Use (average)	197

Table 3-4: Ten-Year Base Period (1997-2006)

Table 3-5: Five-Year Base Period (2003-2007)

Sequence Year	Calendar Year	Distribution System Population	Annual System Gross Water Use (AF)	Annual Daily per Capita Water Use (gpcd)
Year 1	2003	102,574	22,636	197
Year 2	2004	102,872	22,852	198
Year 3	2005	103,122	21,839	189
Year 4	2006	103,060	22,479	195
Year 5	2007	103,121	23,029	199
		ta Water Use (average)	196	

The five-year base period average use is 196 gpcd. 95% of that value is 186 gpcd, which is greater than 157 gpcd ten-year target. Therefore, the Burbank's urban water use target for the year 2020 is 157 gpcd (20x2020 Target).

SB7x7 also requires meeting a 5-year Interim Urban Water Use Target in the year 2015. The 2015 target is the average of the 2020 Urban Water Use Target (157 gpcd) and the base use (197 gpcd). That gives a target water use of 177 gpcd. Burbank's water use was already well below this target in 2010, and in 2015, with special drought measures, it was only 127 gpcd.

3.3 Water Demand Projections

Burbank's water use reached the required 20x2020 Target in 2010 and 2011 by implementing Stage II of its SWUO. The City returned to Stage I in 2012 after sufficient rain in 2011 and the encouraging water supply outlook. For 2012 -2014, usage crept above the 2020 goal but stayed below the interim 2015 level of 177 gpcd. Actual 2015 usage was 127 gpcd due to the Governor's mandate and BWP

implementing Stage III water conservation measures. The City believes it can sustain low water use and meet the 20x2020 Target with three-day-per-week landscape irrigation, even after the mandate is lifted.

Potable water demands for 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035, and 2040 are estimated by using population projections with gallons per capita water usage rates similar to those used in the MWD Integrated Water Resources Plan (IWRP; Draft 2015 Update). MWD provided Burbank and other agencies with population and supply and demand calculations developed for their regional planning. Water usage is projected to increase to 150 gpcd for 2020, and then gradually to decrease by 2040 to 130 gpcd, similar to what has been achieved during the current drought, but more sustainably. (Figure 4-1 in the MWD IWRP shows a similar pattern.) The total demands are divided among water use sectors by starting with 2015 records of water sales by customer class, then using projected growth numbers for housing units and employment. Table 3-6 contains the projected demands by water use classes.

Water Use Sector	2020 (AF)	2025 (AF)	2030 (AF)	2035 (AF)	2040 (AF)
Single-family	8,481	8,061	7,817	7,543	7,412
Multi-family	5,011	4,924	4,805	4,629	4,640
Commercial/Industrial/ Institutional/Governmental	4,930	4,938	4,939	4,884	4,818
TOTAL	18,422	17,923	17,561	17,056	16,870

Table 3-6: Future Water Demands

The single-family and multi-family residential classes include low-income households. The water demands attributed to low-income households were estimated by calculating the percentages of accounts under BWP's Lifeline program compared with the total numbers of residential units. These percentages were then applied to the total projected single-family and multi-family water demands. The Lifeline program offers financial support for low-income customers who are either, (1) a senior over 62, (2) a person with a permanent disability, or (3) require the use of life support in their home. The estimated volumes are shown in Table 3-7.

Water Use Sector	2015 (AF)	2020 (AF)	2025 (AF)	2030 (AF)	2035 (AF)
Single-family	80	80	85	90	90
Multi-family	320	330	340	355	365
TOTAL	400	410	425	445	455

Burbank's future water demand may be impacted by large development projects. The City Council may choose to implement "water neutral" ordinances to ensure that new developments do not increase overall regional water demand. That could be achieved through efficiency measures, using recycled water, or through offset fees that would go into water conservation programs. Below are four proposed

projects which may impact BWP's future water demand. These projects may require an additional Water Supply Assessment in accordance with the Urban Water Management Planning Act.

- 1. 3100 North Hollywood Way (B-6 Opportunity Site): Business Park on an existing 40 acre feet vacant site. The project would include six industrial buildings of approximately 937,980 square feet (SF), ten office buildings of 130,000 SF, and a 175-room hotel of 110,000 SF.
- 2. 600 North San Fernando (Burbank Town Center): Mixed-use development on a 37 acre site that would include demolition of 200,000 SF of retail buildings (including the existing IKEA). The project proposes 1,094 residential units, 45,000 SF of retail, and a 200 room hotel.
- 3. 103 East Verdugo Ave (The Premier on First): The project consists of two phases. Phase 1 includes a 14-story residential tower with a total of 154 multi-family units, and 11,078 SF ground floor retail space. Phase 2 has two options; Option "A" includes a 14-story 230 room hotel, and 7,100 SF restaurant on the top floor, Option "B" includes a 14-story office building with approximately 159,000 SF, and approximately 14,000 SF of retail/restaurant space on the ground floor.
- 4. 115 North Screenland Drive: A 13 story mixed use project that includes 40 apartments and 3,730 SF of ground floor commercial. The proposed building would be 170 feet tall with two subterranean parking levels, commercial uses on the first floor, parking spaces and common open space with amenities on the second floor, apartment units on floors three through 12 (four apartment units per floor), and amenities on the 13th floor.

Non-potable water uses and losses must be evaluated as a component of total water demands. Table 3-8 contains the expected amounts of groundwater recharge, recycled water deliveries (described in Section 5), and system losses. Losses are at 2.5% of potable water deliveries. Losses for 2011-2015 were approximately 2.9% of potable water deliveries.

Matarilla	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
water use	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)
Groundwater Recharge	7,350	6,300	4,700	4,800	4,900	4,900
Recycled Water	2,463	3,027	3,047	3,047	3,047	3,047
System Losses	535	472	460	450	437	433
TOTAL	10,348	9,799	8,207	8,297	8,384	8,380

Table 3-8:	Additional	Water	Uses and	d Losses
------------	------------	-------	----------	----------

Table 3-9 combines the data from several tables to calculate the total water use. The City plans to exchange 300 AF of recycled water with LADWP for landscape uses by 2020, increasing to 2,000 AF/year by 2025.

	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Water Use	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)
Total Deliveries	24,855	28,221	26,130	25,858	25,440	25,250
Recycled Water Exchanged with LA for Groundwater Credits	0	300	2,000	2,000	2,000	2,000
TOTAL	24,855	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250

Table 3-9: Total Water Use

DWR requires water wholesalers and retailers to exchange water demand information. Burbank routinely works with MWD to coordinate water requirements and water demand projections. Table 3-10 contains the City's projected demands for MWD supplies as developed in this Plan. MWD will receive a final version of Burbank's Plan.

W/bolocolor	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Wholesaler	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)
MWD Treated Potable	4,765	7,894	7,383	7,011	6,493	6,303
MWD Untreated GW Replenishment	7,350	6,300	4,700	4,800	4,900	4,900

Table 3-10: Anticipated MWD Demands

3.4 Water Use Reduction Plan

Burbank met the 20% urban water use reduction goals by implementing Stage II of its SWUO. Dramatic reductions in water use have been achieved by programs which include the following:

- Sustainable Water Use Ordinance
- Commercial/multi-family water fixture upgrade program
- Conservation water rate structure
- Retrofit Upon Resale Ordinance
- Expansion of recycled water system
- Green Home House Call Program

Conservation rates and rules apply to Burbank's residential and business properties. Some programs, such as mandatory fixture upgrades and recycled water connections, apply to business. Recycled water utilization is required when available by City policies as a condition of water service. Capital costs to the residents and businesses to implement these programs are often offset by the resulting water use reductions, and in the case of recycled water, its reduced volumetric rate. These programs and policies regarding water use appear to be working.

SECTION 4: SYSTEM SUPPLIES

4.1 Metropolitan Water District

The water supply for the City of Burbank is imported from outside the region through Burbank's membership in MWD. MWD delivers both treated and untreated water to Southern California via two sources. Water from Northern California is imported by way of the SWP and water from the Colorado River reaches the region through the CRA. MWD has five treatment plants which supply most of Southern California with treated water through their distribution system. Burbank obtained about 32% of its treated potable water from MWD in the Calendar Year 2015. In 2015, 100% of the water from MWD was from the CRA due to the drought and DWR restricting SWP. This had a negative effect on customers as well as the recycled water because CRA has a high mineral content.

Burbank has five treated potable water connections to the MWD system, with a maximum rated capacity of 115 cubic feet per second (cfs) (51,610 gallons per minute; see Table 4-1 below). The MWD system pressure is high enough to deliver water to Burbank's Zone 1 and Zone 2 without pumping, but booster pumps are available at MWD connections B-1 and B-2 to increase the capacity for periods of high demand.

MWD	Minimum	Normal	90% of	Maximum
Connection	Flow	Range	Maximum	Flow
B-1	3.0 cfs	15.0 - 22.0 cfs	27.0 cfs	30.0 cfs
B-2	1.5 cfs	3.0 - 7.0 cfs	13.5 cfs	15.0 cfs
B-3	1.0 cfs	3.0 - 4.0 cfs	9.0 cfs	10.0 cfs
B-4	2.0 cfs	11.0 - 14.0 cfs	18.0 cfs	20.0 cfs
B-5	4.0 cfs	7.0 - 26.0 cfs	36.0 cfs	40.0 cfs
Total Treated	11.5 cfs	39.0 - 73.0 cfs	103.5 cfs	115.0 cfs
B-6 Untreated Water Connection at Pacoima	3 cfs	25 - 65 cfs	63 cfs	70 cfs

Table 4-1: MWD Service Connection Capacity

Burbank's MWD service connections are not able to take the maximum flows. Improvements to the service connections could be performed to realize their maximum potential if future demands make it necessary. The nominal maximum capacity of the five connections is vastly more than expected requirements for the next 25 years. The water supply tables in this UWMP use expected requirements not maximum capacity.

Burbank's demand for treated MWD water has actually decreased since groundwater treatment facilities described in Section 4.2 have come on-line. In 1990, Burbank used approximately 23,000 AF of treated MWD water. Burbank used approximately 7,852 AF in 2010 and 4,765 AF in 2015. The projection

for 2040 is 6,303 AF (Table 4-2). The City will continue to depend on MWD treated water for blending purposes and MWD non-potable water to augment its groundwater pumping rights.

Source	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Source	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)	(AF)
Potable:						
MWD Treated Potable	4,765	7,894	7,383	7,011	6,493	6,303
Supplier-Produced Groundwater	10,277	11,000	11,000	11,000	11,000	11,000
Potable Total	15,042	18,894	18,383	18,011	17,493	17,303
Non-potable:						
MWD Replenishment	7,350	6,300	4,700	4,800	4,900	4,900
Recycled Water	2,463	3,327	5,047	5,047	5,047	5,047
Non-Potable Total	9,813	9,627	9,747	9,847	9,947	9,947

Table 4-2: Water Supplies – Current and Projected

In 2010 the City completed a MWD connection (B-6) to deliver untreated imported water for groundwater replenishment to the existing Pacoima and Lopez spreading grounds in the north San Fernando Valley. A schematic of the project is shown in Figure 4-1 below. The City purchased and spread 26,113 AF between 2010 and 2013. Due to the extreme drought there was no replenishment water available for spreading in 2014 and 2015 (except 481 AF from turning over water in the tunnel to maintain water quality). The City, working with MWD and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP), for the years 2014 and 2015, purchased 14,400 AF of untreated water in lieu of spreading and sent the water to LADWP in exchange for groundwater credits.

MWD's projected demands for Burbank are shown in Table 4-3. These demands are higher than BWP's projections (Table 4-2). BWP's projections account for a decrease in water demand due to focused conservation and recycled water exchanges with LADWP. Therefore, MWD will have enough water to meet BWP's anticipated future demands.

Source	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
MWD Potable	7,926	7,675	7,604	7,589	7,725
MWD Replenishment*	5,900	5,898	5,877	5,892	5,844

Table 4-3: Wholesale Supplies	Table 4-3:	Wholesale Supplies
-------------------------------	------------	--------------------

* Assumes no purchase of Physical Solution water from LADWP as described in Section 4.2



Figure 4-1: Burbank's Groundwater Recharge Project

4.2 Groundwater

Burbank pumps its groundwater from the aquifer in the San Fernando Basin (SFB). The SFB consists of 112,000 acres and comprises over 90% of the total San Fernando Valley fill. A map of the basin is shown in Figure 4-2 below. The San Rafael Hills, Verdugo Mountains, and San Gabriel Mountains bound the SFB on the east and northeast. The northern border of the basin is defined by the San Gabriel Mountains and the eroded south limb of the Little Tujunga Syncline which separates it from the Sylmar Basin. The basin is bounded on the northwest and west by the Santa Susana Mountains and Simi Hills and on the south by the Santa Mountains.

Burbank has historically utilized its groundwater resources. Imported water from MWD in the early years was a supplemental supply. During this time, well and pumping capacity was adequate to serve most of the City's needs with local groundwater. As the City grew, it used more MWD water, but groundwater was still a major source.



Figure 4-2: San Fernando Groundwater Basin

The ownership or rights to naturally occurring water in the SFB, also known as the Upper Los Angeles River Area (ULARA), was decided in Superior Court Case No. 650079, City of Los Angeles vs. the City of San Fernando, et al and are adjudicated in the Final Judgment (Judgment) entered on January 26, 1979. The Judgment upheld the Pueblo Water Rights of the City of Los Angeles to all groundwater in the SFB derived from precipitation (infiltration of direct rain fall plus surface water runoff) within ULARA. The Judgment also included provisions for an Import Return Credit (IRC), storage of imported water, stored water credits, and Physical Solution Water for certain parties.

Burbank is entitled to an IRC of 20% of all water delivered in Burbank, including recycled water. This provision was incorporated into the Judgement since a portion of the water delivered in Burbank, which originates from outside ULARA, percolates into the aquifer, becoming part of the groundwater supply. The IRC is calculated on an annual basis by the ULARA Watermaster. For example, total deliveries in the 2014-15 water year were 17,917 AF, so the 20% ICR is calculated to be 3,583 AF. The Watermaster prepares an annual report which describes pumping activities for the basin. Additional information regarding the SFB can be found on the ULARA Watermaster's website at http://ularawatermaster.com/.

Burbank is also entitled to import water and spread or percolate this water into the aquifer thus creating additional groundwater and the right to pump that additional groundwater. Burbank is entitled to accumulate or store these groundwater credits if they are unused in the year they are earned or created.

The provision of a right to Physical Solution Water recognized the investment in wells, pumping equipment, and transmission mains that were made by Burbank and others prior to the Judgment when the parties in ULARA, other than the City of Los Angeles, were believed to have rights to pump water originating from local precipitation. Physical Solution stipulates a right to a specified volume of groundwater "credits" that may be purchased from the City of Los Angeles at the sole discretion of the purchasing party on an annual basis. The cost of this water is set by a formula in the Judgment and is tied to the average cost of water supply to the City of Los Angeles in the preceding year. Burbank is entitled to purchase 4,200 AF of Physical Solution Water annually.

In the 1980s groundwater from the City's production wells were found to have varying degrees of VOC contamination. At this time similar contamination was being found in many parts of the country. Burbank's contamination resulted in a complete loss of the groundwater supply until treatment plants could be built. Burbank now has two treatment plants for VOC removal, described in the following sections and shown in Figure 4-3 below. Also, inorganic substances like nitrate and chromium have presented problems which are discussed in the following sections. In 1997 California State regulators classified highly contaminated groundwater including the aquifer underlying Burbank as "Extremely Impaired Sources".

4.3 Burbank Operable Unit and Valley Pumping Plant

The BOU is an EPA-led project to clean up groundwater impacted by historical industrial releases, primarily by Lockheed-Martin. The BOU project consisted of drilling 8 extraction wells and constructing a state-of-the-art treatment plant using Best Available Technology (Air Stripping Towers and Granular Activated Carbon Filters) to remove and stabilize the VOC plumes within the aquifer. Completion of this project restored a major component to the City's water supply. The Consent Decree for the project was "entered" on March 25, 1992. Lockheed-Martin started construction on June 23, 1993 and the project began operation in January 1996.

The eight wells and the VOC removal treatment plant were operated by Lockheed-Martin until March 2001, when the City of Burbank took over operation. The BOU's design capacity is 9,000 gallons per minute (gpm). Assuming 85% availability, the annual production would be 12,336 AF per year, about two thirds of the City's current potable water requirement. However, mechanical problems and regulated blending requirements to lower nitrate and chromium concentrations in conjunction with lower system demand to accept this blended water has reduced the production levels to 10,000 AF over the last five years.



Figure 4-3: Burbank's Groundwater Production Facilities

A summary of recent groundwater pumping is contained in Table 4-4. The projected output for 2016 is 11,000 AF due to ongoing plant improvements and modifications in the past five years. The City expects to produce 11,000 AF per year through 2035.

Calendar Year	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015
Groundwater Produced	10,138 AF	10,462 AF	11,191 AF	9,511 AF	10,277 AF
Groundwater as a Percent of Total Water Supply	57%	56%	58%	52%	68%

Table 4-4: Groundwater Volume Pumped

The Valley Pumping Plant was designed to allow blending of BOU water with MWD water to reduce nitrate levels. Subsequently, hexavalent chromium (Cr6) has also been found in the groundwater. On July 1, 2014, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) set the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) regulation for Cr6 at 10 parts per billion (ppb). Water from an 'Extremely Impaired Source' must meet stricter limits of 80% of the MCLs. Groundwater from the BOU must be blended with MWD to meet this Cr6 limit of 8 ppb (80% of 10 ppb).

The BOU's drinking water permit mandates blending to meet acceptable nitrate levels. If the MWD supply were interrupted, production of groundwater from the Valley/BOU plant would also need to be stopped to avoid exceeding the nitrate and Cr6 MCL. Recent water quality data shows decreased nitrate levels at the BOU wells indicating it could supply the City without blending in case of an emergency MWD shutdown. However, the facility's drinking water permit requires blending and would have to be amended by State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) – Division of Drinking Water (DDW) formerly CDPH. The Consent Decree calls for treatment at the rate of 9,000 gpm throughout the year, but the blending requirements interfere with this during low water demand months.

Along with nitrate and Cr6, other constituents of concern like 1,4-Dioxane, nitrosamines, and uranium may increase and negatively impact production from the plant. It may eventually be necessary to build additional treatment processes with funding expected to come from parties found to be responsible for the contamination.

4.4 Lake Street GAC

The Lake Street Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) Treatment Plant was constructed in 1992 to remove VOCs from City Wells 7 and 15 located on the BWP campus. The flow capacity is 2,000 gpm, resulting in a production capacity of 200 to 250 AF per month, allowing for carbon changes about every two months. The plant would normally be operated only during the warmer months of the year, due to seasonal demand and operational requirements for the BOU.

Lake Street GAC also has Cr6 concentrations above 10 ppb and no source of blending water. As a result, Lake Street GAC has remained shut down since March 2001 because of elevated Cr6 levels. No production from the GAC plant is included in the current Plan. Lake Street GAC was not designed to remove Cr6 and blending facilities are not available.

4.5 Stormwater Capture/Infiltration

The City continues to evaluate stormwater mitigation methods with the concept of stormwater infiltration and recharge to promote low-impact development (LID). LID improves the effectiveness of groundwater recharge and extraction options by minimizing the loss of recharge areas. This requires certain construction practices that increase or maintain the infiltration capability of lands overlying groundwater basins. BWP completed a pilot percolation (Green Street) project on the Lake Street frontage of its campus.

The Green Street project captures and percolates stormwater from the public right of way. Capturing stormwater reduces run off and increases groundwater recharge. First flush contaminants are captured on site and do not flow to the Los Angeles River and Pacific Ocean. Citywide adoption of infiltration technology will ultimately result in more percolation to the aquifer.

The five stormwater mitigation methods the City implemented in the Green Street project are:

Permeable Pavers with Gravel Reservoir

Permeable pavers are structural units, such as concrete blocks, bricks, or reinforced plastic mats, with regularly inter-dispersed void areas used to create a load-bearing pavement surface. The void areas are filled with permeable materials (gravel, sand, or grass turf) to create a system that allows for the infiltration of stormwater. The use of permeable pavers results in a reduction of the effective impermeable area on a site.



Infiltration Planter Bump-Outs

A stormwater bump-out is a vegetated curb extension that protrudes into the street either mid-block or at an intersection, creating a new curb some distance from the existing curb. A bump-out is composed of a layer of stone that is topped with soil and plants. An inlet or curb-cut directs runoff into the bumpout structure where it can be stored, infiltrated, and taken up by the plants (evapotranspiration). Excess runoff is permitted to leave the system and flow to an existing inlet. The vegetation of the bump-out is low enough to allow for open site lines of traffic. Aside from managing stormwater, bump-outs also help with traffic calming, and when located at crosswalks, they provide a pedestrian safety benefit by reducing the street crossing distance.



Filtration Planters at Open Space

A stormwater planter is a specialized planter installed into the sidewalk area that is designed to manage street and sidewalk runoff. It is normally rectangular, with four concrete sides providing structure and curbs for the planter. The planter is lined with a permeable fabric, filled with gravel or stone, and topped off with soil, plants, and, sometimes, trees. The top of the soil in the planter is lower in elevation than the sidewalk, allowing for runoff to flow into the planter through an inlet at street level. These planters manage stormwater by providing storage, infiltration, and evapotranspiration of runoff. Excess runoff is directed into an overflow pipe connected to the existing combined sewer pipe.



Silva Cell System

Silva Cells essentially function as underground scaffolding for trees. It creates an underground frame that can bear traffic loads and in addition offers freely rootable space that allows urban trees to grow into large and beautiful specimen by the catchment of excess rain or stormwater. It also creates large absorption capacity with uncompacted soil in the cell.



Kristar Tree Pod System

The Kristar Tree Pod is a biofiltration system consisting of conventional tree box filter and a pre-filtration chamber. The pre-filtration chamber separates and retains gross pollutants such as trash, debris and coarse sediments – pollutants known to reduce efficiency and increase maintenance frequency of

typical tree box filters. Collected gross pollutants are removed from the pre-filtration chamber through the maintenance access cover, without disturbing the biofiltration area.



These five stormwater capture systems work together to help BWP achieve the goal of a zero runoff campus where all stormwater falling on the campus is percolated back into the aquifer.

In 2011, BWP installed three green roofs on its Administration Building to help capture stormwater. A green roof is covered in part of whole with vegetation, typically drought tolerant plants. Green roofs are both esthetically pleasing and environmentally preferred. Underground storage tanks were installed to capture the green roof's overflow water during a rain event. The water from these underground tanks is then allowed to percolate through the soil.



Solar Panels were also constructed to serve a multitasking purpose: providing shade to parked cars, channeling rainwater to a filtration system, and providing power to the service center and warehouse.

The rainwater that lands on the solar panels is conveyed to massive underground water storage and percolation tanks. These 8-foot diameter underground storage tanks allow stormwater to percolate down through the soil over time. This process ultimately helps recharge the aquifer.

Besides the Rooftop Gardens and solar panels these underground tanks also captures storm water from Lake Street and the Centennial Courtyard. This creates a zero discharge to the streets during a storm and mitigates storm related discharges to the flood channels which ultimately lead to the Pacific Ocean.

4.6 Exchanges or Transfers

DWR requires water suppliers to describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or long-term basis. Burbank is not currently planning any long-term exchanges or transfers of water. Burbank has two system interconnections with the City of Glendale. These have been used on several occasions to solve short-term operational problems, such as a need for extra water because an MWD connection or pump station is out of service. The policy has been to return the same amount of water, rather than buying and selling water. If MWD had to ration water during a drought, both cities would be affected. The interconnections would only help if one city had extra groundwater capacity to share.

As a member agency of the MWD, Burbank may contribute to the development of exchanges, transfers and water banking through its MWD water purchases. There are plans in the near future to build facilities to transfer potable water to LADWP. This will allow the BOU to operate at a higher capacity when demand is down and treating additional contaminated groundwater basin clean up.

The City of Glendale's and Burbank's recycled water distribution systems are interconnected at one location. Within the past five years there have been a few occasions where Glendale used Burbank's recycled water to accommodate its planned plant shutdowns. There are three other recycled water interconnections scheduled to connect with LADWP in the near future. Burbank will supply LADWP with recycled water and receive groundwater credits in return.

4.7 Desalinated Water

Burbank, located inland in the San Fernando Valley, has limited opportunity for desalination of ocean water. The groundwater is not brackish. To remove substances like chromium or nitrate, membrane processes like those often used for desalination may one day be used. However, disposal of the brine from such processes is more of a problem than for seaside locations which can send it to an ocean outfall.

As a member agency of the MWD, Burbank supports local water supply projects like the development of desalinated water supplies. Burbank is in favor of desalination projects, if they prove to meet standards of engineering and economic feasibility.
4.8 Future Water Projects

The following water supply-related projects are underway:

- Expanded water recycling (discussed in Section 5)
- Aggressive conservation measures (detailed in Section 6)
- North Hollywood Operable Unit (NHOU) wells treated at BOU (Lockheed-Martin is leading the effort to pipe nearby NHOU off-line wells to the BOU to receive VOC removal treatment)
- Indirect potable reuse (IPR)/direct potable reuse (DPR) feasibility study (as State Regulators wrestle with approval, Burbank's future water supply may be sustained by IPR/DPR technologies)

SECTION 5: WATER RECYCLING

5.1 Wastewater Collection and Treatment

Wastewater generated within the City is collected and conveyed by approximately 230 miles of pipelines ranging in diameter from 6" to 30", two pump stations, and 19 diversion manholes. The Los Angeles 48" North Outfall Sewer (NOS) line runs from west to east through the southern portion of the City.

Wastewater flows to the Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (BWRP) which currently treats 8.5 MGD with a design capacity of 12.5 MGD. The BWRP treatment system consists of the following:

- Flow equalization
- Coarse solids grinding
- Primary sedimentation
- Activated sludge biological treatment with nitrification and denitrification
- Secondary sedimentation with coagulation
- Single media deep bed gravity sand filtration
- Chlorination disinfection with sodium hypochlorite
- Chloramination (ammonia addition) for Recycled Water Use
- Dechlorination with sodium bisulfite (for discharge to surface water)

BWRP produces a disinfected tertiary effluent which meets discharge limitations contained in its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB-LA). BWRP's effluent also meets the most stringent criteria for recycled water defined in the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3 requirement as *Disinfected Tertiary Recycled Water* in that it is approved for all uses, including full body contact, with the exception of human consumption.

Up to 10,000 AF of recycled water per year is available for reuse. Recycled water produced at BWRP can be used in one of three ways:

- Flowed via gravity pipeline to the BWP campus
- Pumped into the recycled water distribution system
- Discharged to the Burbank Wester Channel adjacent to BWRP

Water discharged to the Burbank Western Channel flows to the LA River and eventually to the Pacific Ocean.

5.2 Current Recycled Water Use

The recycled water from the BWRP is used in one of three general categories within the City: power production, landscape irrigation, and evaporative cooling. Burbank's recycled water is approved for all uses including full body contact with the exception of human consumption.

Power Production

Recycled water was first used at BWP's power production facilities for cooling in 1967. Originally, all excess recycled water from BWRP not pumped into the recycled water system flowed to the BWP campus. Blowdown water from the cooling towers and excess recycled water was discharged to the Burbank Western Channel, which is adjacent to both the BWRP and the BWP campus.

In August 2005, Construction of the Magnolia Power Project (MPP), a 310 megawatt, natural gas-fired, combined cycle turbine power plant was completed and all recycled water discharges to the Burbank Western Channel were discontinued at the BWP campus. MPP uses recycled water exclusively for cooling and all other power plant uses, including high purity boiler feed. The average annual usage is 1,350 AF (1.2 MGD).

MPP recycles all its process and cooling water to extinction through its zero liquid discharge (ZLD) unit. The ZLD unit purifies cooling tower blowdown and other recaptured water for reuse as cooling tower makeup. The byproduct of the ZLD process is a salt cake that is dried and trucked to a landfill for disposal.

Three other power plants are located at the BWP campus: Lake 1, Olive 1, and Olive 2. Lake 1 is a simple cycle natural gas fired turbine which is used intermittently to meet peak demands. This plant has a small cooling tower and uses minimal amounts of recycled water for gas compressor and lubrication oil cooling. Demineralized recycled water is also used and air emissions control equipment.

The two Olive power plants are on long-term standby. Cooling and process water used in these plants is recycled water with the blowdown from their cooling towers being discharged to the sanitary sewer.

Landscape Irrigation

CalTrans began using recycled water in 1988 for landscape irrigation along the Golden State (I-5) Freeway. The City installed a pipeline under the Golden State Freeway (I-5) in 1992 to distribute recycled water to the east side of the freeway to new customers in the area of the Media City Center, a regional shopping center.

A significant expansion of the recycled water system to quadruple recycled water use began in 1994. This expansion was completed in 1997 and recycled water was used at the Burbank landfill, the DeBell Golf Course, John Muir Middle School, and McCambridge Park. The AMC theater complex and Burbank High School were eventually also connected to these pipelines. The project included upgrading BWRP's existing booster station plus two new booster stations, storage tanks, and 17,000 feet of pipeline.

Expansion of the distribution system continued with the joint support of the Redevelopment Agency, BWP, and infrastructure improvements at major redevelopment sites. These expansions extended the recycled water system to the Chandler Bikeway, the Empire Center, the Burbank (Bob Hope) Airport, and Robert Gross Park. Sales of recycled water for landscape irrigation were about 800 AFY in 2007.

BWP prepared a Recycled Water Master Plan (RWMP) in October 2007 that was subsequently approved by the BWP Board and City Council. The 2007 RWMP outlined a phased expansion of the recycled water system to ultimately increase the use of recycled water provided by BWP by over 900 AF per year. BWP's revised its RWMP in October 2010 to include additional projects which were determined to be economical.

This recycled water system expansion included construction of six major pipeline projects totaling over 20 miles in length and an upgrade of pump station PS-1. Construction of this expansion was completed in 2012. All major landscaped areas which could be economically served, including city parks and schools are now irrigated with recycled water. Figure 5-1 contains a map of the current recycled water system.



Figure 5-1: Existing Recycled Water System

Planning efforts by the LADWP have identified potential recycled water use sites within LA which cannot be economically served from LADWP's recycled water system. Several of these sites are close to the Burbank/LA border, including the LA portion of the Chandler Bikeway. BWP and LADWP have worked together to identify other locations within LA which are feasible to serve with recycled water provided by BWP.

Agreements defining the terms of the exchange were executed in January 2011. Construction of pipelines to serve these locations in LA is in progress. Deliveries of Burbank's recycled water to locations in LADWP's service area are expected to start by the end of 2016.

HVAC Cooling

Early in 2010, BWP identified a major opportunity for use of its recycled water in Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) cooling towers of commercial buildings. The cooling tower serving BWP's administration building was converted to use recycled water in the summer of 2010. BWP has identified 22 cooling locations in Burbank which are feasible to serve with recycled water. These locations use over 450 AF of recycled water per year. Major customer service efforts have resulted in almost 75% of this use converted by the spring of 2016. These efforts will continue until all identified locations are converted.

Table 5-1 below c	contains an e	estimate of f	future recycled	l water use.
-------------------	---------------	---------------	-----------------	--------------

Year	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Landscape Irrigation	936	1,007	1,017	1,017	1,017	1,017
Golf Course Irrigation	222	230	230	230	230	230
Commercial Use - Cooling Towers	150	470	470	470	470	470
Industrial Use - Fotokem	0	20	30	30	30	30
Energy Production - BWP Power Plants	1,155	1,300	1,300	1,300	1,300	1,300
Deliveries to LADWP	0	300	2,000	2,000	2,000	2,000
TOTAL	2,463	3,327	5,047	5,047	5,047	5,047
Recycled Water Produced	8,786	10,000	10,000	10,000	10,000	10,000
Recycled Water Discharged	6,323	6,673	4,953	4,953	4,953	4,953

Table 5-1: Recycled Water Use in AF

5.3 Recycled Water Policies

City Council and Department Managers have always maintained a positive outlook towards the use of recycled water. The use of recycled water has been a tremendous opportunity for the City of Burbank to do its part in conserving the scarce and very important State and local potable water supplies. The citizens and existing users have expressed positive feedback about the use of the recycled water system. Also public notification signs required by regulations provide a friendly message about its use.

The City has full-time staff to help existing users comply with regulatory requirements as well as to inform and encourage the development of new users. To encourage the use of recycled water, the City offers recycled water at approximately 85% of the corresponding potable water rate. The Rules and Regulations also contain other procedures to clarify what is required to receive recycled water service, which standardizes and thus facilitates recycled water use.

City Council expressed support for the addition of new required uses of recycled water where practical and appropriate when the 2007 RWMP was endorsed in October 2007. City Council approved a policy in December 2008 which mandated recycled water use under certain conditions. The Council policy authorized modifications to BWP's Rules and Regulations to require the use of recycled water where these conditions are met. The use of recycled water, when required, is a condition of potable water service.

It is the parcel owner's responsibility to perform all onsite retrofits necessary to use recycled water on the property. BWP completes all work up to the meter at no charge to the property owner. Conversion to recycled water is required when the recycled transmission main fronting the parcel is put in service. The policy has been critical in facilitating recycled water conversions of landowners unenthusiastic to recycled water use.

5.4 Recycled Water Fill Stations

On August 25, 2015, Burbank's City Council approved a Residential Recycled Water Fill Station Pilot Program. During the drought, one question BWP heard frequently from residents is "Why can't you provide my home with recycled water?" The costs to do so would have been astronomical, so BWP created an alternative approach to be responsive to this request. BWP's Water Division fabricated a community recycled water fill station. This enabled Burbank residents and businesses interested in obtaining recycled water to do so, at no cost. They were required to bring appropriate containers to the recycled water fill station and transport the recycled water to their property. Up to three hundred gallons of recycled water could be obtained per visit but residents were allowed to make multiple visits per day. Customers were also required to complete a training program on the safe use of recycled water and sign a form indicating their understanding of the following recycled water guidelines:

- Don't drink recycled water
- Don't use recycled water to wash hands or any other part of body

- Don't remove recycled water identification signs, tags or labels
- Don't cross-connect two dissimilar water systems (recycled to potable)
- Don't allow recycled water to contact drinking fountains or eating areas
- Don't allow recycled water to pond or puddle
- Don't allow recycled water to run off the use site property
- Don't pump recycled water into any on-site irrigation system
- Don't put hose bibbs on recycled water containers
- Don't use the same equipment on both recycled water and domestic water systems (for example, quick couplers, hoses, tools, etc.)

Additionally, BWP provided and applied "Recycled Water – Do Not Drink" stickers, to each container used to transport the water.



While this service represented only a drop in the bucket in potable water savings, it provided valuable publicity regarding BWP's recycled water efforts.

5.5 Potable Reuse

The City of Los Angeles, which owns the rights to the groundwater in the SFB, has shown interest in using recycled water for groundwater replenishment. LADWP will utilize advanced treatment that includes reverse osmosis, microfiltration, and advanced oxidation. This level of treatment will address water quality concerns for the health of the SFB. Burbank's excess recycled water may be used to supplement LADWP's recycled water supply for indirect potable reuse.

BWP is currently pursuing grant funding to study the feasibility of both indirect and direct potable reuse. This study will be used to evaluate options for the use of Burbank's excess recycled water. If either of these options becomes an economic alternative to purchasing MWD water, and regulations permit, BWP will seriously consider their implementation.

SECTION 6: WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN

6.1 MWD Supply Reliability

Burbank depends heavily on MWD for its water supply since Burbank does not have the right to pump native groundwater in the SFB. The City of Los Angeles owns all naturally occurring groundwater as discussed in Section 4.2. Burbank maximizes local resources and minimizes the need to import water from other regions through aggressive use of recycled water, spreading and storing imported water when feasible, and promoting potable water conservation. These are detailed in Sections 5 and 7.

Burbank's location in MWD's distribution system allows it to be supplied by two separate MWD treatment plants, Weymouth and Jensen. The Weymouth plant can treat water from the CRA and the SWP. The Jensen plant can only treat water from the SWP. MWD's multiple supplies allow operational flexibility in case of a treatment plant shutdown or temporary problem within the distribution system. The City can also purchase untreated MWD water for groundwater replenishment. Untreated water delivered through the city's MWD B-6 connection can be spread at Pacoima or Lopez spreading grounds in order to add to its stored groundwater credits.

MWD discusses regional water supply reliability in its 2015 UWMP. The MWD UWMP uses information from the Integrated Water Resources Plan (IWRP), the 1999 Water Surplus and Drought Management (WSDM) Plan, and other MWD planning studies. To develop average year supply and demand estimates, MWD used the historic hydrology for 1922 through 2012. For dry year planning, they used the historic one-year (1977) and three-years (1990-1992) dry periods on the SWP because it is MWD's largest and most variable supply.

MWD strives for a "diverse water portfolio" that allows it to meet demands even in years when its primary supplies would not be enough. Part of MWD's 2015 UWMP is to have water storage capacity to draw on when supplies are short. MWD has management options in place to handle variations in supply and demand. Their goal is to meet 100% of full-service retail demands under foreseeable hydrologic conditions.

Ultimately, if MWD has a sufficient water supply, so does Burbank. In the 2015 IWRP update, MWD describes unprecedented challenges on both the SWP and the CRA imported water supplies. They emphasize that significant action is needed to meet the IWRP goals for reliability. In particular, they are planning on the implementation of the California Water Fix to improve the reliability of water deliveries on the SWP.

MWD's 2015 UWMP includes water quality information regarding CRA and SWP supplies. Salinity is the main concern for the CRA supply. MWD is investigating desalination as a contingency plan for the CRA supply to combat its salinity. Treatment plant improvements are expensive and desalination leads to some water loss.

For the SWP supply the main water quality concern is high levels of total organic carbon (TOC) and bromide. Disinfection byproducts (DBPs) form when source water containing TOC and bromide is treated with disinfectants such as chlorine or ozone. Studies have shown a link between certain cancers and DBP exposure. Ozonation reduces trihalomethane and haloacetic acid formation (both considered DBPs) but produces bromate which is regulated at 10 ppb. MWD has upgraded its pre-treatment process with ozonation capabilities at four of its five treatment plants and monitors bromate to keep the treated water at safe levels. However, MWD does not anticipate any reductions in water supply availability from SWP and CRA supplies due to water quality concerns over the study period.

6.2 Groundwater Supply Reliability

Groundwater helps Burbank's overall supply reliability by providing a reserve during emergencies or droughts. The capacity and reliability of Burbank's groundwater supply requires consideration of many issues including:

- Water rights
- Aquifer storage capacity
- Physical well and pump capacity
- Treatment capacity
- Water quality issues

Los Angeles owns the native groundwater rights to the SFB as detailed in the Judgment described in Section 4.2. The Judgment gives Burbank the right to store water in the aquifer under the administration of the ULARA Watermaster.

Burbank can purchase MWD water for groundwater replenishment through spreading in order to add to its stored water credits. To maintain and optimize groundwater pumping, BWP needs to acquire about 7,500 AF of groundwater per year through replenishment or a combination of replenishment and "physical solution" purchases.

Unavailable replenishment water during a long drought could limit the City's ability to add to its groundwater "bank". However, the City plans to keep a reserve of 10,000 AF in groundwater credits. This would allow normal extractions to continue for about three years without replenishment, assuming the purchase of 4,200 AFY of physical solution water annually from LADWP (see section 4.2). After that, assuming the groundwater basin still held enough water; BWP would have to negotiate the purchase of additional groundwater from LADWP.

Groundwater VOC contamination underlying Burbank has necessitated the construction of two treatment plants for VOC removal, the BOU and Lake Street Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) plants. Burbank's BOU well capacity (12,000 gpm) is greater than its treatment capacity (9,000 gpm). Well pumping redundancy within BOU's well field and rotating their use keeps operations flexible and reliable. Groundwater from the BOU is pumped into Burbank's distribution system via the Valley

Pumping Plant (VPP). The Lake Street GAC is not currently used since it has no blending capacity to meet 80% of the Cr6 MCL limit (80% of 10 ppb = 8 ppb).

All of the City's production wells have varying degrees of VOC contamination and a shutdown of both treatment plants would create a complete loss of the groundwater supply. Elevated nitrate levels in the groundwater make it necessary to blend with MWD water to meet drinking water standards. The VPP was designed to allow blending water from the BOU treatment plant and a MWD connection to reduce nitrate levels. New regulations for lower nitrate levels would require additional and costly treatment processes.

Recent regulations for Cr6 threatened to affect the BOU's supply but blending with MWD water enables the City to meet the regulatory requirement for Cr6 at 8 ppb. If levels of either contaminant increased in the future then groundwater reliability could be affected until costly treatment was constructed. Other emerging constituents like 1,4-Dioxane, nitrosamines, perchlorate, and uranium that cannot be removed by Burbank's existing treatment plants could affect groundwater reliability and may also need costly treatment.

Redundant pumps at the VPP boost treated groundwater to blend with MWD water before entering into the distribution system. This supply can be maintained in case of failure of one of the pumps. Water stored in the elevated tanks and reservoirs could supply the City by gravity in the event of a short-term power outage happened. An electric power outage would interrupt the groundwater supply as well as treatment plant operations. However, Burbank has excellent power supply reliability including local generation making a long-term power outage extremely unlikely.

6.3 Recycled Water Supply Reliability

All of Burbank's recycled water is supplied by BWRP. The BWRP is managed to be highly reliable but contingencies for recycled water outages must be considered. The existing recycled water distribution system includes potable water makeup facilities at the BWRP, Stough Tank, and the Golf Course Tank. A recycled water system interconnect with the City of Glendale was completed in 2010 which results in a backup recycled water supply from the LA-Glendale Water Reclamation Plant. MPP has the ability to supplement or replace the recycled water supply with water from two City wells which normally feed the Lake Street GAC.

Increased salt and nutrient loading is a growing concern to the San Fernando Basin. The State Water Resource Control Board is mandating each basin to adopt a Salt and Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP) by 2016. The City is participating in the SNMP process through the ULARA Watermaster. Recycled water usually has higher Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) and chloride content than potable water which may affect groundwater as it infiltrates. Recent groundwater data suggest TDS and Chloride loading from irrigation with recycled water have not negatively affected the groundwater in the SFB but future salt and nutrient regulations may limit recycled water's availability and use.

6.4 Supply and Demand Comparison

DWR requires agencies to provide a comparison of projected water supply and demand for the next 20 years, through 2035. This plan has been extended to 25 years, through 2040 to be useful through the next five years for Water Supply Assessments (SB 610) and Written Verifications of Water Supply (SB 221), which also require a 20-year planning horizon from the year they are performed.

The future water demands for the City and the entire region have been estimated by MWD using its new and improved model, the MWD Econometric Demand Model, developed by the Brattle Group. This model uses forecast data from Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) for variables including population, housing units, and employment. Although Burbank is using lower demand projections which take into account the reductions to meet 20x2020 targets, these MWD projections provide the basis for dry-year reliability planning. Table 6-1 contains the years used by MWD for their reliability analysis.

Water Year Type	Base Year(s)
Average Water Year	1922-2012
Single-Dry Water Year	1977
Multiple-Dry Water Years	1990-1992

Table 6-1: MWD's Basis of Water Year Data

MWD estimated Burbank's 2020 demand to be 28,340 AF for an average year and a multiple dry year demand of 28,267 AFY. For this projection, MWD did not count future conservation from additional agency efforts after 2015. Region-wide, MWD does have targets for additional conservation and/or recycling. Therefore, MWD actually expects Burbank's water use to be less than the estimates. Burbank's demand projections in this Plan include more conservation than MWD's projections.

MWD and Burbank predict similar demands for normal and dry years. Generally, dry weather, especially hot, dry weather, causes an increase in water demand, mostly for landscape irrigation. But conservation practices during past droughts have been sufficient enough to actually lower demands. Burbank achieved a 10% reduction in water use during the 1990/91 drought, a 20% reduction for the 2008-10 drought, and a 24% reduction in 2015, compared to use in 2013, saving over 1 billion gallons of water.

BWP is required to estimate minimum water supply during the next three years based on the driest three years on record. Supply and demand comparisons for a single dry year and for multiple dry years for each of the planning years must also be evaluated. MWD's plan provides normal and dry-year estimates for each period. Tables 6-2 through 6-5 apply percentages based on MWD's analysis to Burbank's normal-year demand estimates. Since MWD expects to meet demands, and since groundwater and recycled water should be reliable in dry years, the supplies meet the demands.

Multiple Dry Water Year Supply (AF)				
2016	2017	2018		
28,448	28,448	28,448		

Table 6-2: Minimum Supply for Next Three Years

Table 6-3: Supply and Demand—Normal Year

	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Supply Totals (AF)	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250
Demand Totals (AF)	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250
Difference (AF)	0	0	0	0	0

MWD projects 100% reliability for full-service demands through the year 2040 based on its 2015 UWMP. As a result, Burbank does not expect critical shortages during the 25-year planning period. The City will continue to rely on MWD for water either for direct use or for groundwater replenishment.

 Table 6-4: Supply and Demand—Single Dry Year

	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Supply Totals (AF)	28,473	28,082	27,811	27,394	27,204
Demand Totals (AF)	28,473	28,082	27,811	27,394	27,204
Difference (AF)	0	0	0	0	0

Table 6-5: Supply and Demand—Multiple Dry Year Events

		2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
	Supply Totals (AF)	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531
1 st , 2 nd , & 3 rd Year Supply	Demand Totals (AF)	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531
	Difference (AF)	0	0	0	0	0

Burbank cooperates with MWD's regional water supply planning. MWD believes that all member agencies will continue with their demand management efforts since MWD's water demand projections include significant increases in conservation throughout the planning period.

An important component of MWD's contingency plan for responding to water shortages is the Water Supply Allocation Plan (WSAP) which MWD's Board of Directors approved in February 2008. It is based on a guiding principle developed out of the Water Surplus and Drought Management (WSDM) Plan for allocating shortages across MWD's service area. The WSAP formula uses different adjustments and credits to balance impacts of water shortage at the retail level, where local supplies can vary dramatically, and provide equity on the wholesale level among member agencies. It also takes into account the following: growth in demand, local investments, change in local supply conditions, the reduction in potable water demand from recycled water, and the implementation of water conservation programs

6.5 Drought Experience

Burbank has not experienced many water supply deficiency problems or water emergencies in the past. During the 1976-77 drought there was no shortage of imported water but customers were encouraged to conserve water. This resulted in a 16% reduction in water usage which helped mitigate the drought effects throughout the City.

In 1991, due to the prolonged drought of 1987-92, the City implemented an Incremental Water Conservation Ordinance. There had already been a call for voluntary conservation efforts to achieve a 10% reduction in water use. The ordinance included a mandatory 20% conservation requirement, compared to base calendar year 1989. This resulted in financial disincentives (Drought Surcharge) to users who failed to conserve the required amount. There was also a Base Rate Adjustment of 15% from April 1, 1991 through March 31, 1992. By April 1, 1992, the water supply outlook had improved as well as water sales reduced 25%, and Burbank went back to a voluntary conservation program. Temperature and rainfall did affect the demand for water with a cool summer and rainy March in 1991. In addition, Lockheed had vacated most of its manufacturing plant since the base year of 1989, accounting for some of the reduction in water use.

In the years 2008-10, California water supplies saw low levels in major reservoirs and on the Colorado River system. Stricter limits on Delta water exports were enacted due to ecological issues. MWD implemented water supply allocation, which had not been expected during the previous UWMP update cycle in 2005. With SBx7-7, California passed important new legislation calling for 20% reductions in percapita urban water use by 2020 (20x2020). Burbank took action by adopting a Sustainable Water Use Ordinance and other actions which are described in more detail in Section 6.7 and other parts of this UWMP. In September 2009 the City entered into partial Stage II requirements which limit home watering to three days per week. Customer response was excellent and in 2010 Burbank met its 20% reduction.

When the most recent drought period started in 2012 and progressed into 2014 Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. issued a drought emergency proclamation calling for Californians to reduce their water use by 20 percent and for water agencies to implement water shortage plans. Burbank has always implemented Stage I of its Sustainable Water Use Ordinance which includes prudent water saving actions, such as not watering on rainy days or while the sun is out, not hosing down driveways, patios and other hardscape surfaces, and repairing plumbing and irrigation leaks promptly.

On July 22, 2014, Burbank's City Council adopted a Resolution to implement Stage II full requirements of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance. This was in response to the July 15, 2014 California State Water Board emergency regulations requiring urban water suppliers, such as the City of Burbank, to implement

by August 1, 2014 their Water Shortage Contingency Plans at a level that triggered mandatory restrictions on outdoor water use or be directed to limit outdoor water use to two days per week.

California's drought worsened through 2014/2015 and on April 1, 2015 Governor Brown issued an Executive Order (B-29-15) mandating a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use through February 2016 which included provisions to fine water agencies by up to \$10,000/day for not meeting the water use reduction goals established by the SWRCB for each Water Agency.

On April 14, 2015, the MWD Board voted to implement the Water Supply Allocation Plan at a Stage III or 15% reduction in retail supplies. Water agencies exceeding a draw on MWD supplies above the Agency allocation would pay substantial penalties for excess water.

On April 18, 2015, the SWRCB issued conservation requirements for water agencies. The Governor's Executive Order directed the SWRCB to impose restrictions on water agencies to achieve the statewide 25% reduction in potable urban water use through February 2016 as measured against 2013 monthly use. Because of Burbank's historical conservation efforts the reduction was established at 24%.

On April 21, 2015, a Drought Update and Potential Water Conservation Measures Report was presented to City Council and recommending three actions:

- 1. Scheduling a Public Hearing to implement Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance
- 2. Establish fines for large commercial, industrial and institutional customers not compliant with recycled water conversions
- 3. Immediately begin issuing fines provided for in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance to those ignoring repeated outreach related to prohibited water waste practices

An Emergency Public Hearing was held in the City Council chambers on May 14, 2015 which resulted in a 5-0 approval of implementing Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance and to begin issuance of water waste fines.

Stage III of Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance includes all prohibitions contained in Stages I and II plus these four additional requirements:

- Landscape irrigation during April through October is limited to no more than two days per week, on Tuesdays and Saturdays. One day per week landscape watering on Saturdays, as provided for in Stage II of the Ordinance, remains unchanged during Stage III for the cooler months of November through March.
- 2. Do not use outdoor evaporative cooling devices (for example, misters).
- 3. The prohibition on watering outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. extends to include attended hand-watering.
- 4. Cover all swimming pools, wading pools, or spas when not in use with acceptable protection designed to decrease water evaporation.

BWP estimated a 24% total reduction by implementing the following:

- Sustainable Water Use Ordinance Stage III Restrictions an 11% reduction
- Recycled Water Conversion Projects a 3% reduction
- Enforcement of Water Waste Restrictions already in place an 8% reduction
- Indoor Water Waste Behavioral Improvements a 2% reduction

As a result of these efforts, Burbank met the 24% reduction from 2013 usage each month in 2015 and saved over 1 Billion gallons of water.

6.6 Water Shortage Contingency Planning

DWR requires agencies to plan for water shortages which can be categorized by two major types: catastrophe and drought. The two types should be considered separately although some responses are common to both. MWD, along with its member agencies, developed actions that would be implemented in response to water supply shortages. These actions and their triggers are described in the WSDM Plan. This plan provides guidance to minimize the probability of severe shortages and reduce the possibility of extreme shortages and shortage allocations. MWD also developed the WSAP which provides a standardized methodology for allocating supplies during times of shortage.

A water shortage can result from a catastrophe like an earthquake, a major power outage, or a water supply source problem, i.e. major breakdown or a water quality disruption. Catastrophes like these occur with little or no warning but typically a partial restoration of supply can be expected within days or at most a few weeks. MWD developed a catastrophic supply interruption plan which contains the Emergency Storage Requirements (ESR).

The ESR is based on the three major aqueducts (SWP, CRA, and Los Angeles) being out of service for six months after a major earthquake. Diamond Valley Lake and other Southern California reservoirs and groundwater basins provide emergency storage. After such a disaster, MWD's emergency plan implements a mandatory 25% cutback in firm supplies to member agencies. Extraordinary conservation would be required to stay within the reduced supply in either of the above extreme cases.

Burbank has a formal disaster preparedness program. Every City employee is considered a disaster services worker. Training and drills are held regularly. When an emergency occurs, the Emergency Operations Center can be activated. This involves personnel from all City departments and it operates according to the formal SEMS (Standardized Emergency Management System) procedures. There is a formal process for checking the water system for problems.

Burbank could manage a short-term deficiency or emergency situations by encouraging voluntary water conservation and also with the following actions:

- Increasing local groundwater pumping
- Purchasing additional water from the MWD to the extent available
- Using emergency interconnections to adjacent water agencies

If Burbank experiences a major power failure, but MWD is still producing water, Burbank can receive water to Zones 1 and 2. Portable diesel pumps are available to move water to higher zones if necessary. If all the City's water supplies were interrupted, stored water in local reservoirs would last up to three days at average use. Immediate curtailment of non-essential uses, i.e. landscaping, could make supplies last much longer. In the case of a major local earthquake, stored water could be lost due to many broken pipelines.

Since Burbank has two groundwater treatment plants, as well as five MWD connections, there is some flexibility in emergency operations. If a problem developed with one of Burbank's plants, MWD could supply additional water from the five connections. If MWD supply had to be reduced, then treated groundwater could supplement the MWD supply. Blending MWD water with Valley/BOU water is necessary to maintain production due to groundwater nitrate levels but an increased BOU/MWD blending ratio could suffice.

There are presently two emergency interconnections with the City of Glendale. These emergency interconnections have proven to be effective in providing a short-term supplemental supply but Glendale relies on MWD water under the same conditions as Burbank. If no emergency connection is possible, mandatory rationing could be imposed by stages which are outlined below in Section 6.7.

Historically, damage to Burbank's water system from the 1971 Sylmar and 1994 Northridge earthquakes was limited. However, future earthquakes might cause greater damage. The strictest emergency water use restrictions would be put in place, such as prohibiting landscape irrigation, car washing, and reducing water usage to only public health needs. Arrangements could be made to supply drinking water by truck, or depending on system conditions, at distribution points.

Besides catastrophes, a water shortage can result from drought and these drought scenarios are discussed historically in Section 6.5 and sustainably in Section 6.7. Burbank does not expect severe shortages due to drought during the 25-year plan period, based on MWD's UWMP. The WSDM Plan describes the most severe shortage stage 7 or "extreme shortage", which would require allocation of water supplies to full-service customers.

Burbank does have a preferential right to purchase about 0.92% of the available MWD water supply under Section 135 of the Metropolitan Water District Act. However, Burbank supported MWD's WSAP, which did not implement preferential rights, because of the insurance or back-up provision against the loss of local supply, where Burbank has over half of its supply. MWD's WSAP is designed to avoid the extreme shortage stage for some agencies if preferential rights are implemented in lieu of a broader regional allocation.

When advised of a dry water supply year, the City would call for increased voluntary water conservation efforts. In the event of MWD allocation, Burbank would implement water use restrictions in stages contained in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance as necessary to meet the required water use targets. If DWR or MWD required severe rationing due to extreme drought, the City would implement water rationing in addition to the mandated water use reductions.

6.7 Sustainable Water Use Ordinance

Burbank adopted the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance in June 2008. Stage III is currently in effect and helping to meet the Governor's mandatory conservation target as described in Section 6-5. The ordinance defines six stages covering the range from normal water supply to extreme shortages. It provides a basis for achieving water demand reductions which may be required because of emergency or drought conditions. Stage I, consisting of 13 sustainable water use measures, is always in effect. The other five stages can be activated by the City Council in times of water shortage. Some of the measures contained in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance are shown in Table 6-6 below.

Water Use Measures	Stage where Implemented
Thirteen sustainable water use measures	I
 Landscape watering limited to 15 minutes/day three days per week, April – October one day per week, November - March 	П
 Landscape watering limited to 15 minutes/day, two days per week, April – October Use of outdoor cooling devices (misters) prohibited Hand watering also prohibited between 9AM and 6 PM Use of pool and spa covers required 	
Landscape watering limited to one day per week	IV
 Watering limited to deep irrigation of trees and shrubs, 20 min, 2 days per month No new or upgraded potable water services permitted, except R-1 and R-2, unless building permit already issued 	V
No landscape watering permitted	VI

	Table 6-6:	Measures	Contained in	the Sustainable	Water L	Jse Ordinance
--	------------	----------	---------------------	-----------------	---------	---------------

Although shortage percentages are not linked to the ordinance, Stage VI bans all landscape watering with potable water. This could provide the 50% reduction required by the Act. Also, the Water Division would defer main and fire hydrant flushing and reservoir drainage for maintenance. It is likely that a water supply emergency would be declared by the time the maximum reduction was called into effect.

The procedures for recording daily production and monthly metered sales to determine actual reductions in water use are already in place. Regular comparisons to base years and to the previous fiscal year are made every month for metered sales. During a drought, the existing data would be utilized to compare water use to pre-drought conditions. Unaccounted-for water would also be closely watched. Information would be made available to decision-makers as needed for the ongoing drought response.

There are many fixed costs in operating a water system and the overall revenue would be reduced below budgeted levels by the extraordinary conservation measures. Deferment of capital spending would be considered to further offset the loss of water sales revenues. Financial reserves would be drawn on and a rate adjustment could be requested if necessary.

Enforcement of the mandatory restrictions defined in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance is through the issuance of an administrative citation. A notification process is used to alert citizens of reported water waste so corrections can be made. At least two notifications are made to allow citizens the opportunity to correct reported water waste incidents. Continued violation of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance after receiving notifications may result in the issuance of an Administrative Citation, per section 1-1-108.1 of Title 1 of the Burbank Municipal Code. An Administrative Citation allows for fines of \$100 for the first violation, \$200 for the second violation, and \$500 for every violation thereafter.

7.1 Burbank's local water conservation portfolio structure and ordinances

Burbank moved aggressively forward in creating a sustainable water supply for the future. The City's conservation efforts in response to the recent droughts are described in Sections 6.5 through 6.7. Within this last decade Burbank has realized 45% water savings. In 2005, the gallons per capita daily usage was 184 as compared to 127 gpcd in 2015. Burbank hopes to keep the gpcd as low as possible after the drought restrictions are lifted. The following sections contain a description of some of the major tools Burbank used to realize its water savings.

Sustainable Water Use Ordinance

The City Council enacted the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance in 2008 which prohibits the wasteful use of potable water. The Ordinance is comprehensive, including prohibitions on landscape water overspray, prompt leak repair, and that restaurants only serve water by request. Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance provides a tiered response of water use restrictions, allowing the City a nimble mechanism by which to respond to water supply shortages. The provision of penalties for residents or businesses not acting in accordance with the requirements is built into the Ordinance. City Council enacted Stage III of the Ordinance in 2015 to limit landscape watering to two days per week in the summer and one day per week in the winter.

Retrofit Upon Resale Ordinance

This Ordinance, adopted in July 2010, requires that properties resold in Burbank must certify by both seller and buyer that water-using fixtures, including toilets, showerheads, urinals, and faucet aerators meet current California Plumbing Code standards. While initially strongly opposed by the Burbank Association of Realtors, the requirements have not proved to be problematic. In fact, staff has heard several positive remarks from both realtors and escrow agents, thanking the City for not imposing certification fees and for making the compliance process straight-forward and easy to understand. Due to the robust Burbank housing market, this program ensures about 5 MG of water savings annually.

Conservation Rate Structure

A tiered water rate, adopted in 2009 for single-family residential water users, increases the cost of potable water as usage increases. The first tier, up to 15 hundred cubic feet (HCF) per month, is generally enough for most families to use for domestic and irrigation purposes. The cost of water then increases up to 30 HCF, and then again for any usage beyond 30 HCF per month. The tiered rate for single-family residential customers sends a price signal that discretionary water use is more costly.

Seasonal water rates were also adopted for multi-family residential, commercial and industrial services to encourage conservation during warmer months of the year. In addition, these two sectors are required to certify that indoor plumbing fixtures meet high efficiency levels or they will be assessed a 25% surcharge during the first year and 50% thereafter until the requirements are met. These penalty fees will be used solely to support water conservation programs in Burbank.

Water Public Benefits Fund

In 2009, the City of Burbank adopted a policy that annually commits 2% of water sales to fund water conservation in the City. This policy is modeled after the Public Goods Charge mandated by the State of California on electric utilities to fund energy efficiency, renewable energy, and research and development. The 2% funding commitment provides a foundation that allows water efficiency programs to have a broader scope as well as a longer time horizon.

Community Demonstration Garden Grants

Five Community Demonstration Garden grants of up to \$15,000 each have been awarded to non-profit organizations and schools to demonstrate water efficient landscaping. The host organizations are the Burbank Family YMCA, Burbank Adult School, Burbank Temple Emanu El, the Burbank Housing Corporation, and Providence St. Joseph's Medical Center. Demonstration gardens are supported with interpretive signage and online interactive software to provide detailed information about each garden and practical landscape advice.

7.2 Burbank's Customer Water Conservation Programs

Home Improvement Program

There are a wide variety of water efficiency rebates, programs and services available to Burbank residents and businesses. Many of these programs are very similar to programs offered by other municipal utilities. However, Burbank has an additional service, the Burbank Home Improvement Program, which offers installed water and electric conservation services and upgrades at no cost to residents. This program far exceeds what other agencies offer, especially regarding water use both inside of the home and outdoors. The free water upgrades and services of the Burbank Home Improvement Program include:

- Sprinkler controller programming to meet Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance
- Sprinkler head adjustments to prevent overspray
- Toilet leak test and repair
- Installation of low flow showerheads and faucet aerators

The program services about 1,000 homes per year, delivering an estimated water savings of over 20 MG. These water savings estimates were based on factors contained the in American Water Works Association Research Foundation (AWWARF) Residential End Uses of Water study. This award-winning program is exceptional and we hope that it will serve as a model for others to adopt.

Go Native! Turf Removal Program

With the assistance of the Metropolitan Water District, BWP offers a \$3 per square foot rebate to residential customers who remove high water-consuming lawns and replace them with relatively low water demand California Friendly landscapes or synthetic turf. Over the last three years, more than 500 homes have participated in this program, which will save nearly 30 MG annually. Specifically, BWP relies on MWD's estimate of 43.8 gallons per square foot (gpsf) converted annually.

Home Water Reports Program

In April 2015, at the peak of the four year statewide drought, BWP began providing Home Water Reports to 15,000 residential single family water customers. The Home Water Reports contain information on bi-monthly water use, a comparison with similarly sized homes, and program promotional information and tips to reduce water use and monthly bills. A group of 3,600 single family customers that do not receive the reports comprise the control group against which BWP will measure the success of the program.

The program also provides online access to the reports for customers, which includes hourly, daily and weekly water use so that customers can work to reduce their usage before receiving their next bill. In addition, the online component contains a water conservation tip library and a leak detection module so that customers will know within one to two days when a leak is occurring and can take immediate steps to fix it. Through this new service, BWP is estimating a five percent reduction in water usage, or more than 100 MG annually, based on similar initiatives implemented by the East Bay Municipal Utility District in Oakland and the Irvine Ranch Water District.

Water Leak Detection Program

Through a review of hourly consumption data, similar to the Home Water Reports program, provided by advanced meters, staff reports to customers about possible water leaks. As customers repair these leaks, water savings are tracked. BWP saves customers about 7 MG per year through these efforts.

Free Water-Saving Fixture Program

For the past 20 years, BWP has been providing free water-saving devices to Burbank residents and businesses including faucet aerators and low-flow showerheads. At least 25,000 low-flow showerheads and 50,000 water efficient faucet aerators have been distributed since 1989. For this fiscal year alone, water savings from faucet aerators and low-flow showerheads are estimated at nearly 5 MG.

High Efficiency Clothes Washer Rebate Program

BWP offers rebates to residential customers who purchase high efficiency washing machines. Approximately 500 rebates are issued annually to Burbank residents purchasing high efficiency washing machines. These machines reduce water usage by 50 percent and are expected to top over 1.1 MG annually. BWP also offers rebates for the purchase of ENERGY STAR dishwashers.

LivingWise Program

For years, BWP has partnered with the Burbank Unified School District (BUSD) to provide sixth grade students in Burbank a LivingWise home retrofit kit. These kits contain water and energy saving devices that teach students the importance of water and energy conservation through a series of in-home and classroom activities. The students and their parents install these devices in their home and are rewarded with immediate and lasting savings. More than 1,100 students participate annually, achieving savings of over 6 MG per year, in addition to 60,000 kilowatt-hours per year.

Public Information Programs

BWP provides extensive water conservation and efficiency information through workshops and BWP's native plant landscaping classes. Information is also distributed through advertising, public service announcements, newsletters, and community events, as described in further detail below.

7.3 Other Burbank Conservation Efforts

BWP prides itself with many communications outlets to help spread the sustainability issues forward. In response to changing and challenging environmental issues, the BWP staff has significantly ramped up customer programs and customer communications over the past decade. BWP staff makes use of a variety of media, both active and passive, to engage and inform individuals and organizations about programs and services available to them. BWP hopes that these communication efforts will involve the community to preserve resources with heightened attention on sustainability. Current communication vehicles used by BWP staff are described below:

- BWP's produced Newsletter, "Currents" a twelve page quarterly newsletter mailed to all Burbank addresses covering a wide range of topics
- Utility Bill Newsletter a City newsletter with BWP items prominently featured is mailed to each BWP account holder with their utility bill
- BWP Sponsored Events free workshops on California friendly landscaping are offered to Burbank residents
- City Events with BWP staff present ongoing presence at City events to disseminate information and respond to questions
- Burbank Chamber of Commerce Events and Advertising attendance at monthly Chamber luncheons with opportunity to speak briefly to business community on water and power issues; monthly program advertising in the Chamber newsletter
- Personalized Customer Communications Letters and/or phone calls are made to customers related to specific issues
- Paid Advertising annual full cover wrap in Burbank's newspaper, The Burbank Leader, special July 4th advertising pull-out for the Starlight Bowl concert season; Annual Project Share advertising in Burbank Leader; Smart Kart advertising space on grocery store shopping carts
- Event Sponsorship BWP supports several community organizations and events, receiving advertising as part of the sponsorship
- BWP Website BWP's website has about 50,000 unique visitors each month, highlighting BWP programs and issues important to the industry and community
- Twitter BWP created "BurbankH2OPower" Twitter account which has over 1,600 followers
- BWP Guest Speakers Presentations to organizations as requested
- Key Accounts BWP staff members act in part as Key Account representatives meeting face-toface three times a year with Burbank's 40 largest energy and water users
- Muzak On-hold Messaging Customers receive BWP messages while on hold for a Customer Service Representative and messages are reviewed quarterly

- Burbank Unified School District and Student Outreach BWP has student sustainability programs in place that are run on an annual basis and also participating in ad hoc programs
- Grant and Award Opportunities BWP actively seeks appropriate grant opportunities
- Press Releases BWP regularly sends out Press Releases highlighting grants awarded, programs, and significant accomplishments

BWP has a multitude of brochures and pamphlets free to anyone who walks through the doors, or can be downloaded directly from the website. These brochures and publications can help customers save energy, water, money and receive rebates. Details of the programs and how to take advantage of them are available at BurbankWaterAndPower.com:

• Water Tips

Fix Leaks

• Caulking Your Home

- Energy Cost CalculatorEnergy Tips
- Home CoolingLook for the Label
- 7.4 CUWCC Compliance

Compliance with California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC) Best Management Practices (BMPs) is required to receive financial assistance from the State of California for water projects (grants and loans). Demonstrating compliance with the BMPs has changed significantly.

The CUWCC's 14 BMPs are now organized into five categories. Two categories, Utility Operations and Education, are "Foundational BMPs", because they are considered to be essential water conservation activities by any utility and are adopted for implementation by all signatories to the MOU as ongoing practices with no time limits.

The remaining BMPs are "Programmatic BMPs" and compliance with the Programmatic water savings goals can be demonstrated in one of three ways:

- 1. Accomplishing the specific measures as listed in Section A of each BMP listed in the CUWCC Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
- 2. Accomplishing a set of measures which achieves equal or greater water savings, referred to in the CUWCC Memorandum of Understanding as the Flex Track Menu
- 3. Accomplishing set water savings goals as measured in gallons per capita per day consumption compared to baseline historical water usage, i.e. 20x2020 target

BWP chose the 3rd option to comply with CUWCC Programmatic reporting standards. This method allows for results-oriented approach to water conservation, as opposed to the historic specific measures contained in the BMPs. Burbank has met and exceeded the 20% water use reduction already.

The City's completed forms needed to satisfy the CUWCC BMP reporting requirements for years 2011 and 2012 and the draft forms which were finalized in 2014 are contained in Attachment E. These submittals show Burbank is in compliance with the Gallons Per Capita per Day option.

SECTION 8: WATER AUDIT/WATER LOSS CONTROL

As required for this UWMP, BWP used the American Water Works Association (AWWA) Water Audit Software (version 5) to complete a water loss audit and calculate water losses. Total water loss was calculated by subtracting water sold (metered) from the total water supplied to the system from all sources (imported and locally produced). There are two broad types of losses which occur in drinking water utilities, apparent losses and real losses.

Apparent Losses

Apparent losses are the non-physical losses that occur in utility operations due to customer meter inaccuracies, systematic data handling errors in customer billing systems, and unauthorized consumption. This is water that is consumed but is not properly measured, accounted, or paid for. These losses cost utilities revenue and distort data on customer consumption patterns.

BWP controls these apparent losses by providing regular meter maintenance, testing, and replacement. Our proactive meter replacement program is on a 20-year cycle, meaning every meter in the system will be replaced after 20 years in service. BWP will continue to refine and enhance our maintenance and replacement programs to minimize meter inaccuracy as much as possible. Additionally, BWP does not allow the installation of unmetered services and provides rental hydrant meters for temporary usage of water.

BWP has also recently deployed advanced Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) and Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) systems. These systems improve efficiency by capturing customer consumption data, identifying wasteful usage and leakage, and include other enhancements to improve revenue capture and manage water losses.

A small component of apparent water losses is Unauthorized Water Consumption, which includes:

- water illegally withdrawn from fire hydrants
- illegal connections
- bypasses to customer consumption meters
- tampering with metering or meter reading equipment

Unauthorized consumption results in unrealized revenue and creates an error that understates customer consumption. In most water utilities this volume is low. BWP used the default value included in the AWWA Audit software of 0.25% of the volume of water supplied.

Water loss due to meter inaccuracy was calculated as recommended by AWWA Manual #36 using the weighted average meter accuracy method. Random meter testing was done to a sample of meters based on the percentage of each size class of meters in the overall system. Results are shown in Table 8-1 below:

Meter Size	Number of Meters in the System	Meters Tested	Average Accuracy	Volume of Water Sold (AF)	Apparent Losses from Meter's Accuracy (AF)
5/8" x 3/4"	16,125	63	0.9952	6,200	29.76
3/4"	2,110	23	0.9962	750	2.85
1"	5,892	16	0.9943	2,350	13.40
1.5″	1,183	7	0.9973	1,825	4.93
2″	1,212	4	0.9961	2,150	8.39
3″	61	5	0.9947	435	2.31
4"	52	6	0.9986	412	0.58
6"	26	3	0.9785	385	8.28
				14,507	70.48

Table 8-1: Water Meter Evaluation

For data handling and systematic error, BWP used the AWWA Audit software default value of 0.25% of the total water supplied to the system.

Real Losses

Real losses are the physical losses of water from the distribution system, including leakage and storage, and tank overflows. These losses inflate the water utility's production costs and stress water resources since they represent water that is extracted and treated, yet never reaches beneficial use. Real losses are calculated by subtracting apparent losses from total system loss. As the worksheet in Appendix F shows, BWP's real losses in 2015 were approximately 347 AF or 2.3% of the water supplied to the system. BWP minimizes real losses by regularly and methodically replacing vulnerable water mains, which are identified and prioritized on our 5-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP). Additionally, BWP has a proactive water leak detection program. When leaks are found and located, repairs are done in a timely manner. BWP budgets to purchase 2.5% more potable water than expected sales to allow for non-revenue water.

Appendix A

Completed Urban Water Management Plan Checklist

		Orthingt	Burbank's UWMP
CWC Section		Subject	Location
10620(b)	Every person that becomes an urban water supplier shall adopt an urban water management plan within one year after it has become an urban water supplier.	Plan Preparation	Section 1.2
10620(d)(2)	Coordinate the preparation of its plan with other appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a common source, water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent practicable.	Plan Preparation	Section 1.3 & Table 1-1
10642	Provide supporting documentation that the water supplier has encouraged active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and during the preparation of the plan.	Plan Preparation	Section 1.3 & Appendix B
10631(a)	Describe the water supplier service area.	System Description	Section 2.1 & Figure 2.1
10631(a)	Describe the climate of the service area of the supplier.	System Description	Section 2.3 & Table 2-2
10631(a)	Provide population projections for 2020, 2025, 2030, and 2035.	System Description	Section 2.2 & Table 2-1
10631(a)	Describe other demographic factors affecting the supplier's water management planning.	System Description	Section 2.2
10631(a)	Indicate the current population of the service area.	System Description and Baselines and Targets	Section 2.2
10631(e)(1)	Quantify past, current, and projected water use, identifying the uses among water use sectors.	System Water Use	Sections 3.1 & 3.2; Tables 3-2 & 3- 6
10631(e)(3)(A)	Report the distribution system water loss for the most recent 12-month period available.	System Water Use	Sections 3.1,3.3 & Table 3-8; Section 8 & Table 8.1
10631.1(a)	Include projected water use needed for lower income housing projected in the service area of the supplier.	System Water Use	Section 3.3 & Table 3.7
10608.20(b)	Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use target using one of four methods.	Baselines and Targets	Section 3.2 & Tables 3.3 to 3.5
10608.20(e)	Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily per capita water use, urban water use target, interim urban water use target, and compliance daily per capita water use, along with the bases for determining those estimates, including references to supporting data.	Baselines and Targets	Section 3.2 & Tables 3.3 to 3.5
10608.22	Retail suppliers' per capita daily water use reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of base daily per capita water use of the 5 year baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers base GPCD is at or below 100.	Baselines and Targets	Section 3.2
10608.24(a)	Retail suppliers shall meet their interim target by December 31, 2015.	Baselines and Targets	Section 3.2
10608.24(d)(2)	If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance GPCD using weather normalization, economic adjustment, or extraordinary events, it shall provide the basis for, and data supporting the adjustment.	Baselines and Targets	n/a
10608.40	Retail suppliers shall report on their progress in meeting their water use targets. The data shall be reported using a standardized form.	Baselines and Targets	Section 3.2 & Appendix C
10631(b)	Identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of water available for 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, and 2035.	System Supplies	Section 4.1 & Table 4-2
10631(b)	Indicate whether groundwater is an existing or planned source of water available to the supplier.	System Supplies	Sections 4.1 & 4.2
10631(b)(1)	Indicate whether a groundwater management plan has been adopted by the water supplier or if there is any other specific authorization for groundwater management. Include a copy of the plan or authorization.	System Supplies	Section 4.2 (& link to ULARA Website)
10631(b)(2)	Describe the groundwater basin.	System Supplies	Section 4.2
10631(b)(2)	Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated and include a copy of the court order or decree and a description of the amount of water the supplier has the legal right to pump.	System Supplies	Section 4.2 & Appendix D
10631(b)(2)	For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether or not the department has identified the basin as overdrafted, or projected to become overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier to eliminate the long-term overdraft condition.	System Supplies	n/a
10631(b)(3)	Provide a detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years	System Supplies	Section 4.3 & Table 4-4

Retail Checklist Arranged by Subject

10631(b)(4)	Provide a detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that is projected to be pumped.	System Supplies	Section 4.3 & Table 4-2
10631(d)	Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of water on a short-term or long- term basis.	System Supplies	Section 4.6
10631(g)	Describe the expected future water supply projects and programs that may be undertaken by the water supplier to address water supply reliability in average, single-dry, and multiple-dry years.	System Supplies	Sections 3.4, 4.8, 5.5 & Appendix C
10631(h)	Describe desalinated water project opportunities for long-term supply.	System Supplies	Section 4.7
10631(j)	Retail suppliers will include documentation that they have provided their wholesale supplier(s) – if any - with water use projections from that source.	System Supplies	Sections 4.1 & 6.4 & Appendix C
10633	For wastewater and recycled water, coordinate with local water, wastewater, groundwater, and planning agencies that operate within the supplier's service area.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Sections 5.1, 5.2, 5.3
10633(a)	Describe the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's service area. Include quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the methods of wastewater disposal.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Section 5.1 & Table 5-1, Appendix C
10633(b)	Describe the quantity of treated wastewater that meets recycled water standards, is being discharged, and is otherwise available for use in a recycled water project.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Sections 5.1, 5.2, 5.3 & Table 5-1, Appendix C
10633(c)	Describe the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service area.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Section 5.2
10633(d)	Describe and quantify the potential uses of recycled water and provide a determination of the technical and economic feasibility of those uses.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Sections 5.2 & 5.3; Table 5-1
10633(e)	Describe the projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description of the actual use of recycled water in comparison to uses previously projected.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Section 5.2 & Table 5-1
10633(f)	Describe the actions which may be taken to encourage the use of recycled water and the projected results of these actions in terms of acre-feet of recycled water used per year.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Sections 5.2 & 5.3
10633(g)	Provide a plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area.	System Supplies (Recycled Water)	Sections 5.2 & 5.3
10620(f)	Describe water management tools and options to maximize resources and minimize the need to import water from other regions.	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Sections 6.1 & 6.2
10631(c)(1)	Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage.	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Sections 6.1 & 6.2
10631(c)(1)	Provide data for an average water year, a single dry water year, and multiple dry water years	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Section 6.4
10631(c)(2)	For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, describe plans to supplement or replace that source.	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Section 6.4
10634	Provide information on the quality of existing sources of water available to the supplier and the manner in which water quality affects water management strategies and supply reliability.	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Sections 6.1 & 6.2
10635(a)	Assess the water supply reliability during normal, dry, and multiple dry water years by comparing the total water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total projected water use over the next 20 years.	Water Supply Reliability Assessment	Section 6.4
10632(a) and 10632(a)(1)	Provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that specifies stages of action and an outline of specific water supply conditions at each stage.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Sections 6.6 & 6.7; Appendix C
10632(a)(2)	Provide an estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next three water years based on the driest three- year historic sequence for the agency.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Section 6.4 & Table 6-2; Appendix C
10632(a)(3)	Identify actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in case of a catastrophic interruption of water supplies.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Section 6.6
10632(a)(4)	Identify mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water shortages.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Sections 6.5, 6.6, 6.7; Appendix C
10632(a)(5)	Specify consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Sections 6.5, 6.6, 6.7; Appendix C

10632(a)(6)	Indicated penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Section 6.5 & 6.7
10632(a)(7)	Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions in the water shortage contingency analysis on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Section 6.5 & 6.7
10632(a)(8)	Provide a draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Section 6.7
10632(a)(9)	Indicate a mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the water shortage contingency analysis.	Water Shortage Contingency Planning	Sections 6.5, 6.6, 6.7; Appendix C
10631(f)(1)	Retail suppliers shall provide a description of the nature and extent of each demand management measure implemented over the past five years. The description will address specific measures listed in code.	Demand Management Measures	Section 7.1
10631(i)	CUWCC members may submit their 2013-2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, or in addition to, describing the DMM implementation in their UWMPs. This option is only allowable if the supplier has been found to be in full compliance with the CUWCC MOU.	Demand Management Measures	Section 7.4 & Appendix E
10608.26(a)	Retail suppliers shall conduct a public hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, and economic impact of water use targets.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B
10621(b)	Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing, any city or county within which the supplier provides water that the urban water supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering amendments or changes to the plan.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Section 1.3 & Appendix B
10621(d)	Each urban water supplier shall update and submit its 2015 plan to the department by July 1, 2016.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Section 1.3 & Appendix B
10635(b)	Provide supporting documentation that Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been, or will be, provided to any city or county within which it provides water, no later than 60 days after the submission of the plan to DWR.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B
10642	Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier made the plan available for public inspection, published notice of the public hearing, and held a public hearing about the plan.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Section 1.3 & Appendix B
10642	The water supplier is to provide the time and place of the hearing to any city or county within which the supplier provides water.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Section 1.4 & Appendix B
10642	Provide supporting documentation that the plan has been adopted as prepared or modified.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Section 1.4 & Appendix B
10644(a)	Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to the California State Library.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B
10644(a)(1)	Provide supporting documentation that the urban water supplier has submitted this UWMP to any city or county within which the supplier provides water no later than 30 days after adoption.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B
10644(a)(2)	The plan, or amendments to the plan, submitted to the department shall be submitted electronically.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B
10645	Provide supporting documentation that, not later than 30 days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, the supplier has or will make the plan available for public review during normal business hours.	Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation	Appendix B

Appendix B

Documentation of Postings/Notifications



March 9, 2016

County of Los Angeles Chief Executive Office Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 500 W. Temple St. Los Angeles, CA 90012

SUBJECT: City of Burbank Urban Water Management Plan Update

The City of Burbank is currently preparing to update its Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). California law requires the Burbank City Council to adopt an updated UWMP by July 1st, 2016. Public involvement and comment are encouraged, and the law specifically requires that notice be given to counties within which water service is provided. A public hearing regarding the draft Plan will be held in June of this year.

The Plan includes the following:

Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands Evaluation of the future reliability of our water supplies Information regarding water conservation and water management activities Discussion of water recycling activities Contingency planning for water shortages Evaluation of distribution water losses

The 2010 version of the Plan is available on the Burbank Water and Power website (www.burbankwaterandpower.com). The Draft 2016 will be posted before the public hearing.

If you would like more information or have any questions, please contact Matthew Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer, at (818) 238-3500.

Sincerely, Willin O. More, J.

William O. Mace, Jr., P.E. Assistant General Manager–Water Systems

County UWMP Letter.docx

c: Urban Water Management Plan File Chron File








From: To:	Umphenour, Anthony "RTakidin@GlendaleCA.GOV"; "LChan@GlendaleCA.GOV"; "bboman@cityofpasadena.net"; "David Gould"; "Simon.hsu@ladwp.com"; "mlombos@dpw.lacounty.gov"; "efandialan@mwdh2o.com"; "Michael DeGhetto"; "sergio.fierro@water.ca.gov": "Tony Salazar"
Cc: Subject: Date: Attachments:	Elsner, Matthew RE: Burbank''s Draft 2015 UWMP Tuesday, May 10, 2016 11:55:42 AM image001.png image002.png

Burbank's Draft 2015 UWMP Update:

The public hearing will be held at Burbank's City Council on June 14, 2016.

Thanks,

Tony

From: Umphenour, Anthony
Sent: Monday, May 09, 2016 11:00 AM
To: 'RTakidin@GlendaleCA.GOV'; 'LChan@GlendaleCA.GOV'; 'bboman@cityofpasadena.net'; 'David Gould'; 'Simon.hsu@ladwp.com'; 'mlombos@dpw.lacounty.gov'; 'efandialan@mwdh2o.com'; Michael DeGhetto; 'sergio.fierro@water.ca.gov'; 'Tony Salazar'
Cc: Elsner, Matthew
Subject: Burbank's Draft 2015 UWMP

Good Morning,

On April 28th, 2016 Burbank posted its Draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) on the Burbank Water and Power website which can be found at the following link:

https://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/news/756-urban-water-management-plan-update

A public hearing will be held at Burbank's City Council on June 7, 2016 to hear comments on the Draft 2015 UWMP.

California law requires the Burbank City Council to adopt an updated UWMP by June 30, 2016.

Public involvement and comments are encouraged.

Also, all water and other governmental agencies are welcome to review the Draft 2015 UWMP and forward your comments to Matthew Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer, before the hearing on June 7, 2016.

If you have any questions regarding the UWMP, please contact Matt Elsner at (818) 238-3500 or via email at <u>MElsner@Burbankca.gov</u>.

Best regards,

Tony Umphenour

Water Quality Analyst Burbank Water and Power 818-238-3500



Burbank Water and Power

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 5, 2016

TO: BWP Board

FROM: Jorge Somoano, Interim General Manager

SUBJECT: ENDORSEMENT OF THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

PURPOSE:

This report is to request board endorsement of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan.

BACKGROUND:

California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Act), Water Code Sections 10610 through 10657 requires many urban water suppliers to assess the reliability of its water sources over a 20-year planning horizon every five years through the preparation of an Urban Water Management Plan (Plan). Preparation of a Plan is required for suppliers that either provide over 3,000 acre-feet (AF) of water annually or serve 3,000 or more connections. The City of Burbank has over 26,000 water services and supplies more than 17,000 AF of potable water annually.

Plans were completed at the end of 1985, 1990, 1995, 2000, and 2005. In November 2009, Senate Bill 7 (SBx7-7) was passed into law, mandating a 20 percent per capita reduction in water use by December 31, 2020, along with an interim 10 percent reduction by the end of 2015. In order for urban water suppliers to incorporate these new changes into their upcoming 2010 plans, a six month deadline extension was granted, with the 2010 plans being due on or before July 1, 2011. Likewise, the 2015 Plan is due on or before July 1, 2016.

The Plan must include:

- Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands
- Evaluation of the future reliability of Burbank's water supplies
- Water conservation and water management activities
- Discussion of water recycling activities
- Contingency planning for water shortages
- Evaluation distribution system water losses

Page 2

Staff has prepared a revised and updated 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, copies of which are attached for Board review and endorsement. Public involvement and comment have been solicited though BWP's website. Staff will present the highlights of the draft plan and requests the Board's comment and endorsement. A public hearing regarding the Plan will be held at the June 14 City Council Meeting. City Council must formally adopt the plan by resolution, after which it will be submitted to the California Department of Water Resources.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff requests Board endorsement of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan and recommendation of its approval to City Council.

Doxsee, Bob

From:	Doxsee, Bob
Sent:	Tuesday, May 10, 2016 12:03 PM
То:	Rynn, Daniel
Subject:	Urban Water Management Plan Draft for Review

The draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan is now available on the BWP website. Here is the link:

https://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/news/756-urban-water-management-plan-update

Any comments and suggestions for improvement will be appreciated. Section 5, especially, has important discussions of wastewater collection and treatment and water recycling.

A public hearing on the plan is expected to be held at the June 14 City Council meeting. Your comments are welcome any time, but preferably by the hearing date in order to be considered for the final version of the plan.

For more information, or to send comments, contact Matt Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer, at (818) 238-3500 or <u>melsner@burbankca.gov</u>.

Thank you very much.

Robert Doxsee, P.E. • City of Burbank Water and Power 164 W. Magnolia Blvd. • P.O. Box 631 • Burbank, CA 91503 (818) 238-3500 • <u>bdoxsee@burbankca.gov</u>

Doxsee, Bob

From:	Doxsee, Bob
Sent:	Tuesday, May 10, 2016 11:58 AM
То:	Hernandez, Alfonso
Cc:	Barrett, Carol; Plambaeck, Scott; Foote, Brian; Elsner, Matthew
Subject:	Urban Water Management Plan Draft for Review

The draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan is now available on the BWP website. Here is the link:

https://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/news/756-urban-water-management-plan-update

Any comments and suggestions for improvement will be appreciated. Section 2, and especially Part 2.2, are the ones most related to CDD Planning. Thank you to Carol Barrett, who already gave me helpful information on population and the Burbank2035 General Plan and Housing Element.

A public hearing on the plan is expected to be held at the June 14 City Council meeting. Your comments are welcome any time, but preferably by the hearing date in order to be considered for the final version of the plan.

For more information, or to send comments, contact Matt Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer, at (818) 238-3500 or melsner.ci.burbank.ca.us.

Thank you very much.

Robert Doxsee, P.E. • City of Burbank Water and Power 164 W. Magnolia Blvd. • P.O. Box 631 • Burbank, CA 91503 (818) 238-3500 • <u>bdoxsee@burbankca.gov</u>

From: Foote, Brian
Sent: Monday, April 18, 2016 1:06 PM
To: Doxsee, Bob; Elsner, Matthew
Cc: Barrett, Carol; Plambaeck, Scott; Hernandez, Alfonso
Subject: RE: CDD Contact for Urban Water Management Plan

Alfonso Hernandez will be the primary point of contact for this.

Brian Foote, AICP | Senior Planner City of Burbank | Planning Division ☎ (818) 238-5250 | ⊠: bfoote@burbankca.gov

From: Elsner, Matthew
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 11:24 AM
To: Prescott, Patrick
Cc: Mace, Bill
Subject: CDD Contact for Urban Water Management Plan

Patrick,

BWP is in the process of updating our Urban Water Management Plan. The plan includes a discussion of population and land use as it relates to future water use. Who in your department would be the best person to coordinate our efforts with?

Thanks

Matt

Matthew M. Elsner, P.E. Burbank Water and Power

Doxsee, Bob

From:	Fandialan,Edgar P <efandialan@mwdh2o.com></efandialan@mwdh2o.com>
Sent:	Wednesday, March 23, 2016 1:25 PM
То:	Doxsee, Bob
Subject:	RE: Questions about reliability findings in IRP and UWMP

Hi Bob,

You are welcome. And yes, those table are being corrected for the final UWMP.

Thanks, Edgar

From: Doxsee, Bob [mailto:BDoxsee@burbankca.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2016 11:58 AM
To: Fandialan,Edgar P
Subject: RE: Questions about reliability findings in IRP and UWMP

Edgar,

Thank you for these answers and for your comments on my draft Burbank UWMP paragraphs. I will incorporate the comments.

About the historic hydrologic period of 1922-2012, not 1922-2004, the City of Burbank Average Year data sheet, Draft, November 13, 2015, says it used the average of 1922-2004. Also, I just noticed that 1922-2004 is cited in several places in the latest MWD draft UWMP. Please see Tables 3-1, 3-2, 3-3, and A.3-7. Should all these be taken as 1922-2012? If so, which seems most likely, they will be corrected in the final UWMP, right?

Thanks again,

Robert B. Doxsee, P.E. Civil Engineering Associate

Water Engineering/Planning Section City of Burbank Water and Power P.O. Box 631 Burbank, CA 91503-0631

Telephone: (818) 238-3500 Fax: (818) 238-3508

From: Fandialan,Edgar P [mailto:efandialan@mwdh2o.com]
Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2016 3:29 PM
To: Doxsee, Bob
Subject: RE: Questions about reliability findings in IRP and UWMP

Hi Bob,

Here are a few bullets that I hope will answer your questions:

- The UWMP is consistent with the IRP, and there is no contradiction.
- The 2015 IRP "Do Nothing" case that you were referring to shows likelihood of allocation based on sequential analysis of a repeat of the historic 91 hydrology.
- The 2015 UWMP Tables 2-4, 2-5, and 2-6 show Metropolitan's supply reliability to meet forecasted demands using supply projects that are existing and under development. The supply capability takes into account all the programs (including program constraints) that may be exercised to meet the projected demand <u>not</u> necessarily the water that will be available on the year.
- In developing the supply capabilities for the 2015 UWMP, Metropolitan is showing a repeat of hydrologic condition (as specified in the Act) in each of the 5-year increment for the next 25 years.
 - As the draft UWMP indicates, Metropolitan assumed the current (2015) storage levels at the start of simulation and used the median storage levels going into each of the five-year increments based on the balances of supplies and demands. Using this storage condition, there is an estimated 50 percent probability that storage levels would be higher than the assumption used, and a 50 percent probability that storage levels would be lower than the assumption used.
 - It is important to note that under some conditions, Metropolitan may choose to implement the WSAP in order to preserve storage reserves for a future year, instead of using the full supply capability. This can result in impacts at the retail level even under conditions where there may be adequate supply capabilities to meet demands.
- The supply reliability tables illustrates that, while there are "surplus" for multiple dry year scenarios under capability of existing programs and with median storage, the surplus is only a freeboard of 60 TAF to 150 TAF. This is a small surplus if you consider that the total demand on Metropolitan is projected to be almost 2 MAF by 2040. Thus, there is a need for proposed programs to be developed as recommended by the 2015 IRP.
- Comment on your paragraph:
 - The average year covers historic hydrologic period of 1922-2012 not 1922-2004.
 - In addition to diverse supply portfolio, Metropolitan also has management options in place to handle variations in supply and demand.
- The data Metropolitan distributed to the member agencies in November 2015 is current.

Thanks, Edgar

From: Doxsee, Bob [mailto:BDoxsee@burbankca.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 8:43 AM
To: Fandialan,Edgar P
Subject: Questions about reliability findings in IRP and UWMP

Thank you for taking time this afternoon to discuss my questions by telephone. As you suggested, I will put them in writing here.

I need to understand the reliability findings in the IRP and UWMP, because Burbank's reliability depends on that of MWD. In Chapter 2 of the UWMP, at the bottom of page 2-4 under Findings and Conclusions (of the 2015 IRP Update), it says that the California WaterFix is necessary to avoid "unacceptable level of shortage allocation frequency". On page 6-1 of the Draft IRP, Figure 6-1 shows an 80 percent likelihood of allocation by 2040 with the "Do Nothing" case. I suppose these two passages are talking about the same thing. (Of course, there are many more references to these facts throughout the documents.)

Then, in the UWMP on pages 2-14 through 2-16, Tables 2-4, 2-5, and 2-6 present the supply capability and projected demands under three conditions required for UWMPs. In all three cases, comparing the capability of

current programs with the projected demands, there are surpluses, even without programs under development. This seems to indicate that there is reliability through 2040 even without the WaterFix, which is among the programs under development.

So, this seems to be a contradiction. I expect there is an explanation. The plans are very complex, and there may be some differences between what is described by these two sections. So, the question is, how do we explain the apparent contradiction? Will we have reliability even without the WaterFix?

Since beginning this e-mail, I noticed the following lines at the top of page EW-5 in the UWMP. "It is important to note that under some conditions, Metropolitan may choose to implement the WSAP in order to preserve storage reserves for a future year, instead of using the full supply capability. This can result in impacts at the retail level even under conditions where there may be adequate supply capabilities to meet demands." Maybe this is part of the answer.

Here is an excerpt from our work-in-progress 2015 UWMP. While we are on the subject of reliability, please let me know any suggested improvements.

MWD discusses regional water supply reliability in its Regional 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP; Draft, February 2016). The UWMP uses information from the Integrated Water Resources Plan Draft 2015 Update), the 1999 Water Surplus and Drought Management (WSDM) Plan, and other MWD planning studies. To develop average year supply and demand estimates, MWD used the historic hydrology for 1922 through 2004. For dry year planning, they used the historic one-year (1977) and three-years (1990-1992) dry periods on the SWP because "it is Metropolitan's largest and most variable supply."

MWD works to have access to a "diverse water portfolio" with alternatives that allow it to meet demands even in years when the primary supplies would not be enough. Part of the plan is to have water storage capacity to draw on when supplies are short. They use an "adaptive management" approach to better respond to uncertainty. The goal is to meet 100% of full-service retail demands under foreseeable hydrologic conditions. Ultimately, if MWD has sufficient water, so does Burbank. In the 2015 IRP update, MWD describes unprecedented challenges on both the State Water Project and the Colorado River imported water supplies. They emphasize that significant action is needed to meet the IRP goals for reliability. In particular, they are planning on the implementation of the California Water Fix to improve water deliveries on the State Water Project.

Thank you very much.

Robert Doxsee

Civil Engineering Associate Burbank Water and Power (818) 238-3500

This communication, together with any attachments or embedded links, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain information that is confidential or legally protected. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, disclosure, copying, dissemination, distribution or use of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail message and delete the original and all copies of the communication, along with any attachments or embedded links, from your system.

Doxsee, Bob

From: Barrett, Carol		
Sent:	Monday, April 18, 2016 9:53 AM	
То:	Doxsee, Bob	
Cc:	Kriske, David	
Subject:	RE: P.S. about population, etc.	
Expires:	Saturday, October 15, 2016 12:00 AM	

Your numbers look a little lower than the adopted General Plan for 2035, but development has been so slow the past couple of years that I don't see a problem. I reviewed the table with David Kriske who is our guru on this forecasting.

Carol B.

Carol D. Barrett, FAICP | Assistant Director

City of Burbank | Planning Division 150 North Third Street Burbank, CA 91502-1264 Office: 818-238-5250 | Fax: 818-238-5150 <u>cbarrett@burbankca.gov</u>

From: Doxsee, Bob Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 5:02 PM To: Barrett, Carol Subject: P.S. about population, etc.

Thank you for your help this afternoon. You asked if I needed anything else. While you gave a good answer already, it would be good if you could look at the table of MWD numbers in my e-mail when you have time and just see if you have any comments on them.

Thanks again,

Bob Doxsee

Robert Doxsee

Civil Engineering Associate Burbank Water and Power (818) 238-3500

Doxsee, Bob

From:	Doxsee, Bob
Sent:	Thursday, April 14, 2016 4:39 PM
То:	Barrett, Carol
Subject:	Population Projections and Recent Residential Units for UWMP

BWP is preparing the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). This plan is updated every five years as required by State law. The new UWMP looks at water supply reliability through 2040.

Metropolitan Water District (MWD) does regional water supply planning. MWD provided demographic and water demand projections developed with its econometric computer models. The growth projections were based on the SCAG 2012 Regional Transportation Plan, and they also looked at the work-in-progress SCAG 2016 plan. Will you please take a look at the table (especially the populations) and let me know if there are any concerns, anything you would recommend modifying for our planning purposes? By the way, for 2015 population, I have 106,084 from the California Department of Finance website.

City of Burbank Average Year (Average of 1922-2004 Hydrology)

Demographics ¹	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040
Population	112,451	113,179	114,850	115,680	118,821
Occupied Housing Units	46,002	46,334	46,666	46,998	48,468
Single Family	22,208	21,981	22,067	22,245	22,698
Multi-Family	23,794	24,353	24,599	24,753	25,769
Persons Per Household	2.43	2.42	2.44	2.44	2.43
Urban Employment	104,363	108,881	112,732	116,441	119,280

Also, do you have any data on numbers of single-family and multiple-family residential units that have been added per year for the last two or three years? I was asked to get this to compare with the long-term projections.

Thank you for taking the time to look at this. If you have any questions about the request, or if you would like to discuss any aspect of the UWMP, please let me know.

Robert B. Doxsee, P.E. Civil Engineering Associate

Water Engineering/Planning Section City of Burbank Water and Power P.O. Box 631 Burbank, CA 91503-0631

Telephone: (818) 238-3500 Fax: (818) 238-3508

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE

The City of Burbank has prepared a Final version of its 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) to be presented to the Burbank City Council. California law requires the Burbank City Council to adopt an updated UWMP by June 30, 2016.

A draft 2015 UWMP was endorsed on May 5th, 2016 by the BWP's Board and recommended adoption to the Burbank City Council.

The Hearing at the Council Meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 14th, 2016 at 6:00pm. The Council Chamber is located at 275 E. Olive Avenue, Burbank, CA 91502.

Public involvement and comment are encouraged.

If you have a question about any matter on the agenda, please call the office of the City Clerk at (818) 238-5851.

The Plan includes the following:

- Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands
- Evaluation of the future reliability of our water supplies
- Information regarding water conservation and Demand Management Measures
- Discussion of water recycling activities
- Contingency planning for water shortages
- Report distribution system water loss

The Final version for City Council can be found at the below link:

[Burbank Urban Water Management Plan 2015 Final Version]

For more information, contact Matt Elsner, Principal Civil Engineer at (818) 238-3500 or melsner@burbankca.gov.

The following public hearing report is being distributed to City Council in advance.

This item is scheduled for June 14, 2016

Please retain this copy as it will not be distributed again with the agenda packet



CITY OF BURBANK

BURBANK WATER AND POWER

STAFF REPORT

DATE: June 14, 2016

TO: Ron Davis, Interim City Manager

FROM: Jorge Somoano, Acting General Manager, Burbank Water and Power

SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

RECOMMENDATION

Staff requests City Council adoption of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan and move to adopt the Resolution entitled "A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN" ("Exhibit A").

BACKGROUND

California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Act), Water Code Sections 10610 through 10657 requires many urban water suppliers to assess the reliability of its water sources over a 20-year planning horizon every five years through the preparation of an Urban Water Management Plan (Plan). Preparation of a Plan is required for suppliers that either provide over 3,000 acre-feet (AF) of water annually or serve 3,000 or more connections. The City of Burbank has over 26,000 water services and supplies more than 17,000 AF of potable water annually.

Plans were completed at the end of 1985, 1990, 1995, 2000, and 2005. In November 2009, Senate Bill 7 (SBx7-7) was passed into law, mandating a 20 percent per capita reduction in water use by December 31, 2020, along with an interim 10 percent reduction by the end of 2015. In order for urban water suppliers to incorporate the changes mandated by SBx7-7 into their 2010 plans, a six month deadline extension was granted for the 2010 plans to be submitted by July 1, 2011. The 2015 Plan is due on or before July 1, 2016.

The Plan must include:

- Assessment of past and future water supplies and demands
- Evaluation of the future reliability of Burbank's water supplies
- Water conservation and water management activities

- Discussion of water recycling activities
- Contingency planning for water shortages
- Evaluation of distribution system water losses

DISCUSSION

Staff has prepared a 2015 Plan ("Exhibit B") meeting all statutory requirements, copies of which are attached for review and approval. Public involvement and comment have been solicited through Burbank Water and Power's website. City Council must formally adopt the Plan by resolution, after which it will be submitted to the California Department of Water Resources.

The 2015 Plan includes a revised calculation of a 2020 water use target of 157 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) and an interim (2015) target of 177 gpcd. Burbank's 2015 calendar year water use was less than the 2015 and 2020 targets at 127 gpcd due to mandatory conservation requirements imposed by the Governor's Executive Order. We expect to meet the 2020 target through continued water conservation efforts, continued water system maintenance, and maximizing recycled water use.

The City's potable water supply is composed of groundwater resources and surface water resources provided by the Metropolitan Water District (MWD). There are factors which could affect the reliability of groundwater supply which we cannot control, such as new water quality standards for emerging contaminants. This uncertainty is bridged by our status as a member agency of the MWD. MWD stated, through its own Urban Water Management Plan, that it has adequate supplies for its service area through 2040.

FISCAL IMPACT

No fiscal impact.

CONCLUSION

Staff requests City Council adopt the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan.

If the Council concurs, the appropriate action would a motion to adopt the Resolution entitled "A "A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN".

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A – Resolution Exhibit B – 2015 Urban Water Management Plan RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN.

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK FINDS:

A. The Urban Water Management Planning Act (Water Code Section 10610 <u>et</u> <u>seq</u>.; hereinafter "the Act") mandates that every supplier providing water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre feet of water annually, prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, the primary objectives of which are to evaluate water supplies and demands, including the reliability of supplies, to plan for the conservation and efficient use of water, and to prepare for water shortages.

B. The City of Burbank is an urban supplier of water providing water to a population of over 100,000 and is required to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan pursuant to the Act.

C. The Act provides that the Plan be reviewed and updated at least once every five years, in years ending in five and zero, and that the City make any changes or amendments to the Plan which are indicated by the review.

D. Any such changes or amendments to the Plan must be adopted by July 1, 2016, after public review and hearing, and filed with the California Department of Water Resources and the California State Library within thirty (30) days of adoption.

E. The City has prepared and circulated for public review a draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, which changes or amends the 2010 Plan.

F. A duly noticed public hearing regarding such changes or amendments to the Plan was held by the City Council on June 14, 2016.

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK RESOLVES:

1. The 2015 Urban Water Management Plan is hereby adopted and ordered filed with the City Clerk.

2. The General Manager of Burbank Water and Power is hereby authorized and directed to file the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan with the California Department of Water Resources and the California State Library within thirty (30) days after this date.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED and ADOPTED this _____day of ______, 2016.

Jess A. Talamantes Mayor of the City of Burbank

Attest:

Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk

Approved as to Form: Office of the City Attorney

By: ____

Christopher Chwang Senior Assistant City Attorney

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)CITY OF BURBANK)COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES)

I, Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Burbank, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted by the Council of the City of Burbank at its regular meeting held on the ____ day of _____, 2016 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk



6/8/16



Home | About Us | Privacy Policy | Contact BWP 164 W. Magnolia Blutanik, CA 91502-1720 | Phone: (818) 238-3700 | Hours: M+E800 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. (213) 6 Burbanik Water and Prover. All Rights Reserved. NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BURBANK CITY COUNCIL REGARDING THE CITY OF BURBANK'S 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

On Tuesday, June 14, 2016, at 6:30 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the City Hall, 275 East Olive Avenue, Burbank, California, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the City of Burbank's 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. The California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Assembly Bill 797, California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.6) requires that the City's Urban Water Management Plan be reviewed and updated this year; that the Plan be made available for public inspection; and, that a public hearing be held prior to adoption of the Plan.

The Urban Water Management Plan includes evaluations of historical and future water supplies and demands, and of the reliability of the supplies, and descriptions of water conservation and water management activities, including water recycling and preparation for water shortages.

The Draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan for the City of Burbank is available for inspection at the Water Division of Burbank Water and Power and on the Burbank Water and Power website, www.burbankwaterandpower.com.

Los Angeles Times MEDIAGROUP

Sold To: City Clerk - City of Burbank - CU00064602 275 E Olive Ave BURBANK,CA 91502-1267

<u>Bill To:</u> City Clerk - City of Burbank - CU00064602 275 E Olive Ave BURBANK,CA 91502-1267

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BURBANK CITY COUN-CIL REGARDING THE CITY OF BURBANK'S 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN

On Tuesday, June 14, 2016, at 6:30 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the City Hall, 275 East Olive Avenue, Burbank, California, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the City of Burbank's 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. The California Urban Water Management Planning Act (Assembly Bill 797, California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.6) requires that the City's Urban Water Management Plan be reviewed and updated this year; that the Plan be made available for public inspection; and, that a public hearing be held prior to adoption of the Plan.

The Urban Water Management Plan includes evaluations of historical and future water supplies and demands, and of the reliability of the supplies, and descriptions of water conservation and water management activities, including water recycling and preparation for water shortages.

The Draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan for the City of Burbank is available for inspection at the Water Division of Burbank Water and Power and on the Burbank Water and Power website, www. burbankwaterandpower. com. COLERK '16JUN17AM10:38

Los Angeles Times MEDIAGROUP

PROOF OF PUBLICATION (2015.5 C.C.P.)

STATE OF ILLINOIS County of Cook

I am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the County aforesaid; I am over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to or interested in the action for which the attached notice was published. I am a principal clerk of the Burbank Leader, which was adjudged a newspaper of general circulation on June 21, 1927, Cases 221017 for the City of Burbank, County of Los Angeles, and State of California. Attached to this Affidavit is a true and complete copy as was printed and published on the following date(s):

May 21, 2016; May 25, 2016; May 28, 2016; Jun 01, 2016; Jun 04, 2016; Jun 08, 2016; Jun 11, 2016

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated at Chicago, Illinois on this 13 day of <u>Ob</u>, 20<u>16</u>.

435 N. Michigan Ave. Chicago, IL 60611



Always There for You!

Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan

June 14, 2016

Why Are We Here?

- California Urban Water Management Planning Act
 - Assessment of the reliability of water sources over a 20-year horizon every five years
 - Triggers:
 - > 3,000 AF of water annually or
 - > 3,000 connections
- BWP has >26,000 water services and supplies >15,000 AF of potable water annually

Plan Requirements

- Service Area Information
- System Demands
- System Supplies
- Water Recycling
- Water Supply Reliability
- Demand Management Measures
- Water Loss

Service Area Information

- Area: 17 Sq. Miles
- Population: 100,000 +
- Households: 45,000
- Businesses: 6,000
- Commercial/Industrial:
 - Media: Disney, Warner Bros.
 - Airport
 - Magnolia Power Project (MPP)

Burbank's Population



Potable System

- 286 Miles of Pipe
- 6,217 Valves
- 1,844 Hydrants
- 35 Boosters
- 5 MWD Connections
- 11 Pressure Zones



Potable Water Pressure Zones

System Demands

2015 Potable Water Use (AF)



• Total = 15,042 AF (4,902 MG)

Burbank's Water Resources







Water Resources

- Increase in Recycled Water Use
- 20% Reduction from Baseline Use by 2020


2020 Urban Water Use Target

- 10-year base period (1997-2006)
- Base Use = 197 gpcd
- 2020 Target = 157 gpcd
- 2015 Interim Target = 177 gpcd
- 2015 Actual Water Use = 127 gpcd

Potable Water Supplies

- MWD Treated 30% / Groundwater 70%
- Groundwater (BOU)
 - Import Return Credits
 - Replenishment
 - Physical Solution
 - Other Exchanges



2015 Groundwater Credit Mix

Recycled Water System

- >110 sites
- >2,300 AF Annual Deliveries
- Most Burbank
 Parks and BUSD
 Schools +
 Valhalla
- Street Sweepers and Construction Sites



Burbank's Recycled Water

- Sustainable potable water conservation
- Reduces GHG Emissions
- Uses an existing resource
- Drought proof
- Reduces potable water expenses
- Will approach 15% of our water supply

Water Supply Reliability

- MWD Potable Water
- Groundwater
 - Nitrate
 - Chromium-6
 - 1,4 Dioxane
- MWD Replenishment Water
- Recycled Water
 - TDS/salts

Demand Management Measures

- Sustainable Water Use Ordinance
- Home Improvement Program
- Retrofit on Resale Ordinance
- Business Bucks Program
- Tiered Water Rates
- California Friendly Landscape Classes

Water Loss Audit

- AWWA Guidance
 - Apparent Losses
 - Unauthorized Consumption
 - Meter Inaccuracies
 - Default value of 0.25%
 - Real Losses
 - Leaks
 - Overflows

BWP's Total Unaccounted Water is 2.3%

Summary

- Plan meets statutory requirements
- 2020 water use target of 157 gpcd
- 2015 water use at 127 gpcd
- Efficient use ensured by:
 - Everyday water conservation practices
 - Water system maintenance
 - Maximizing recycled water use

Summary (cont.)

- Water supplies to meet our needs through at least 2040
- Groundwater supplies have some risk but can be replaced by MWD supplies
- Salt and Nutrient Management Plan will ensure future viability of recycled water supply

Recommendation

 Staff Requests City Council's Adoption of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan

RESOLUTION NO. 16-28,848

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN.

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK FINDS:

A. The Urban Water Management Planning Act (Water Code Section 10610 <u>et</u> <u>seq</u>.; hereinafter "the Act") mandates that every supplier providing water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 3,000 acre feet of water annually, prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan, the primary objectives of which are to evaluate water supplies and demands, including the reliability of supplies, to plan for the conservation and efficient use of water, and to prepare for water shortages.

B. The City of Burbank is an urban supplier of water providing water to a population of over 100,000 and is required to prepare and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan pursuant to the Act.

C. The Act provides that the Plan be reviewed and updated at least once every five years, in years ending in five and zero, and that the City make any changes or amendments to the Plan which are indicated by the review.

D. Any such changes or amendments to the Plan must be adopted by July 1, 2016, after public review and hearing, and filed with the California Department of Water Resources and the California State Library within thirty (30) days of adoption.

E. The City has prepared and circulated for public review a draft 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, which changes or amends the 2010 Plan.

F. A duly noticed public hearing regarding such changes or amendments to the Plan was held by the City Council on June 14, 2016.

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK RESOLVES:

1. The 2015 Urban Water Management Plan is hereby adopted and ordered filed with the City Clerk.

2. The General Manager of Burbank Water and Power is hereby authorized and directed to file the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan with the California Department of Water Resources and the California State Library within thirty (30) days after this date.

3. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED and ADOPTED this 14th day of June, 2016.

<u>s/Jess A. Talamantes</u> Jess A. Talamantes Mayor

Attest:

<u>s/Zizette Mullins</u> Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk

Approved as to Form: Office of the City Attorney

By: <u>s/Christopher Chwang</u> Christopher Chwang Senior Assistant City Attorney

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)CITY OF BURBANK)SS.COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Burbank, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted by the Council of the City of Burbank at its regular meeting held on the 14th day of June, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: Frutos, Gabel-Luddy, Gordon, Rogers and Talamantes.

- NOES: None.
- ABSENT: None.

<u>s/Zizette Mullins</u> Zizette Mullins, CMC, City Clerk



CITY OF BURBANK - BWP

164 WEST MAGNOLIA BOULEVARD P.O. BOX 631 BURBANK, CALIFORNIA 91503

WATER and POWER

TRANSMITTAL

To: California State Library Government Publications Section P.O. Box 942837 Sacramento, CA 94237-0001 Coordinator,				Date:July 1, 2016Project:2015 Urban Water Management Plan		
Attention: Urban Water Management Plans						
We are forwarding						
Encle	 ☐ Enclosed ☐ By Mail ☐ Under separate cover ☐ Hand deⁱ 			By Mail Picked up		
Reason:Per our callPer your requestFor reviewFor your informationApproved				Per our conversationApprove and returnFor review and commentFinal for constructionApproved as noted		
No. of Copies	Date	Drawing No.	Rev.	Description		
1				2015 Urban Water Management Plan for the City of Burbank		

Remarks:

Copies to:

Burbank Water and Power

By:

Matt Elsner

818-238-3500



July 1, 2016

County of Los Angeles Chief Executive Office Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 500 W. Temple St. Los Angeles, CA 90012

SUBJECT: CITY OF BURBANK 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN ADOPTION

The City of Burbank adopted its 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) on June 14, 2016. Public involvement and comment was encouraged. California law specifically requires the water agency to submit a copy of the adopted 2015 UWMP to any city or county in which the supplier provides water no later than 30 days after adoption. This copy may be in an electronic format.

The adopted 2015 UWMP is available electronically on the Burbank Water and Power website at www.burbankwaterandpower.com.

If you would like more information or have any questions, please contact me at (818) 238-3500.

Sincerely,

AM Chm

Matthew Elsner P.E. Principal Civil Engineer

L:\Clerical\Manager Documents\mace\letters-16\County UWMP Letter Final_7-1-16.docxCounty UWMP Letter.docx

c: Urban Water Management Plan File Chron File Exhibit B

.. .

Eff.: 7/3/09

ORDINANCE NO. ____3761

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK AMENDING ARTICLE 3 OF TITLE 8, CHAPTER 2 OF THE BURBANK MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO SUSTAINABLE WATER USE PRACTICES.

1504

City Attorney's Synopsis

This ordinance amends Article 3 of Title 8, Chapter 2 of the Burbank Municipal Code (formerly Article 3 of Chapter 30) which establishes procedures for implementing and enforcing sustainable water use practices. The ordinance applies to all users of potable water service and prescribes mandatory water use practices related to outdoor uses such as irrigation of outdoor landscaped areas, washing down of driveways and walkways, and use of evaporative coolers (misters). The ordinance also establishes mandatory restrictions on service of drinking water at restaurants, hotels and eating establishments if not requested by customers. Implementation of Stages II, III, IV, V or VI requires future action of the Council. Enforcement of restrictions of Stages II, III, IV, V or VI, if ever adopted, would be by issuance of administrative citations pursuant to section 1-1-108.1 of the Burbank Municipal Code

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK FINDS:

- A The City of Burbank (City) owns and operates a municipal water system that provides potable water to retail customers in the community through its municipal utility department known as Burbank Water and Power.
- B. The City's primary sources of water are locally produced ground water, and water imported from the State Water Project and the Colorado River by the Metropolitan Water District.
- C. It is desirable and in the best interests of the water users within Burbank's City limits to conserve and protect existing water supplies against waste and unreasonable uses.
- D. Water supply conditions exist from time to time that may require the reduction of the community's consumption of water.
- E. A Sustainable Water Use Ordinance encompassing mandatory conservation measures to reduce water use will best achieve the goals of conserving the water supply and avoiding wasteful uses, without unnecessary adverse economic consequences.

K \ord\2009\rjm\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clean docx

-1-

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

1. Article 3 of Title 8, Chapter 2 of the Burbank Municipal Code is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

• 4.

Sec, 8-2-301. Short Title.

This article shall be known and may be cited as the "Sustainable Water Use Ordinance."

Sec. 8-2-302. Statement of Policy and Purpose

(a) Policy. It is desirable and in the general welfare of the City that the water resources available to the City be put to maximum beneficial use to the extent possible and that waste, unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use be prevented, and that conservation of such water resources be exercised in a reasonable and beneficial manner for the residents and businesses of Burbank.

(b) Purpose. Conditions may arise from time to time that will limit the water supply to the City. This article provides procedures to reduce water use citywide and thereby mitigate the effect of a shortage of water resources. Through the use of incremental stages, as appropriate for prevailing conditions, this article provides for increasing levels of water use restrictions and penalties in order to discourage wasteful water use practices and achieve reduced water consumption.

Sec. 8-2-303. Application.

(a) The provisions of this article shall apply to all users of potable water service in the City, with the exceptions set forth in subsections (b) and (c) of this section.

(b) This article shall not apply to uses of water necessary to protect public health and safety or for essential public services such as police. fire, or sanitation

(c) This article shall not apply to use of recycled water.

Sec. 8-2-304. Sustainable Water Use Stages.

The water use restrictions imposed by this article shall be implemented in six stages. Stage I, consisting of sustainable water use measures that will be in place at all times, shall take effect immediately on the effective date of the ordinance enacting this article Stages II, III, IV, V and VI shall require subsequent action of the City Council pursuant to section 8-2-305. The six stages are as follows:

(a) Stage I. In Stage I, water users shall follow these sustainable water use practices:

K lord/2009/rjm/Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clean dixx

-

1. 10.

- Do not water outdoor landscaped areas on rainy days and at least two days thereafter.
- (2) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. except by use of attended hand-watering, or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation system
- (3) Adjust sprinklers and irrigation systems to eliminate overspray and avoid run-off into streets, sidewalks, parking lots, alleys or other paved surfaces.
- (4) Do not hose or wash driveways, patios, sidewalks, or other hard or paved surfaces except when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary hazards, and then only by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a hand-held hose equipped with a positive selfclosing water shut-off device, or a low-volume, high-pressure cleaning machine equipped to recycle any water used.
- (5) Promptly repair all leaks from plumbing fixtures and irrigation systems, including but not limited to sprinkler systems.
- (6) When washing vehicles, use a hand-held bucket or similar container or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off device. This subsection does not apply to any commercial car washing facility.
- (7) Do not serve drinking water, unless specifically requested by the customer, in all restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias or other public places where food is sold, served, or offered for sale.
- (8) Hotels, motels and other commercial lodging establishments must provide customers the option of not having towels and linen laundered daily. Commercial lodging establishments must prominently display notice of this option in each bathroom using clear and easily understood language.
- (9) Food preparation establishments such as restaurants or cafes, are prohibited from using non-water conserving dish wash spray valves
- (10) Operating a water fountain or other decorative water feature that does not use re-circulated water is prohibited.
- (11) Installation of single pass cooling systems is prohibited in buildings requesting new water service.
- (12) Installation of non-re-circulating water systems is prohibited in new commercial conveyor car wash and new commercial laundry systems.
- (13) Effective January 1, 2010, all commercial conveyor car wash systems and commercial laundry systems must have installed operational re-circulating water systems.
- (b) Stage II. In Stage II, the conservation measures applicable in Stage I shall be augmented with the following additional mandatory measures:

K \ord\2009\ym\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clean doc \

-

· · y ...

- (1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per day per station and no more than three (3) days per week during the months of April through October. Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per day per station and no more than one (1) day per week during the months of November through March. Regardless of month, areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of this requirement, but must comply with the number of days per week watering limit
- (2) During the months of April through October, the three allowable irrigation days are Tuesdays, Thursdays and Saturdays. During the months of November through March, the one allowable irrigation day is Saturday. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of the requirement listed here.
- (c) Stage III. In Stage III, all conservation measures applicable in Stage II shall apply, along with the following additional measures:
 - (1) During the months of April through October do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per station and no more than two (2) days per week. Areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of this requirement, but must comply with the limit of two days per week watering requirement. The two allowable irrigation days are Tuesdays and Saturdays. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of Tuesday or Saturday.
 - (2) Do not use outdoor evaporative cooling devices (for example, misters).
 - (3) The prohibition on watering outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. extends to include attended handwatering
 - (4) Cover all swimming pools, wading pools, or spas when not in use with acceptable protection designed to decrease water evaporation
- (d) Stage IV. In Stage IV, all conservation measures applicable in Stage III shall apply, along with the following additional measures:
 - (1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per station and no more than one (1) day per week. Areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of

K \ord\2009\nm\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clcan docs

this requirement, but must comply with the limit of one day per week watering requirement The one allowable irrigation day is Saturday. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of Saturday.

- (e) Stage V. In Stage V, all conservation measures applicable in Stage IV shall apply, along with the following additional measures:
 - (1) Deep irrigation of trees and shrubs only, two (2) days per month, 20 minutes per watering station The two allowable deep irrigation days are the first and third Saturdays of each calendar month. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of these two Saturdays.
 - (2) No new or upgraded potable water service will be permitted, excepting R-1 and R-2 zones, unless a building permit has already been issued.
- (f) Stage VI. In Stage VI, all conservation measures applicable in Stage V shall apply, along with the following additional measures:

(1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas at any time.

Sec. 8-2-305. Implementation of Sustainable Water Use Stages.

The sustainable water use practices provided for in section 8-2-304 shall be declared by resolution of the City Council. Before adopting any such resolution, the City Council shall hold a public hearing when required by Water Code section 350 or other applicable law. Any such resolution shall contain findings in support of the City Council's decision to impose any sustainable water use practices, and such findings or other determinations as may be required to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act.

Sec. 8-2-306. Enforcement

Any violation of this article shall be subject to enforcement by issuance of an administrative citation pursuant to section 1-1-108.1 of this Code Prior to issuance of an administrative citation, the City shall give one courtesy notice requesting voluntary correction of the violation. The General Manager of Burbank Water and Power, or his or her designee, may enter into a written agreement with a customer to resolve any violation provided that such agreement is consistent with the purpose and intent of this article.

2. If any phrase, section, sentence, or word of this Ordinance is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any other phrase, section, sentence, or word of the Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid phrase, section, sentence, or word, and to this end each phrase, section, sentence, or word of this Ordinance is declared to be severable.

K \ord\2009\rjm\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clean dock

-5-

Exhibit B

The proposed project is exempt from environmental review under the 3. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) as it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed project would have an environmental impact. The proposed practices would conserve and protect existing water supplies through small-scale improvements and efforts that would not result in any environmental impacts. The project is further exempt from environmental review pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 relating to the repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing public and private structures or facilities involving negligible or no expansion of use and Section 15304 relating to the minor public or private alterations in the condition of land, water, and/or vegetation. Water conservation practices No. 1-8 would conserve and protect existing water supplies by regulating the time and manner of certain water use and methods of application of water for certain uses, require that plumbing fixtures and irrigation systems be in working order to avoid the unnecessary use of water, and provide the general public with opportunities to conserve at local businesses. Water conservation practices No. 9-13 involve minor alterations to existing buildings and facilities. with no expansion of structures or uses, that would conserve and protect existing water supplies. The Community Development Director or her designee, shall execute and cause a Notice of Exemption to be filed with the County Clerk of the County of Los Angeles pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act.

4. Mer

4. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this Ordinance and cause it to be published once in a newspaper of general circulation, published and circulated within (14) days of adoption, in the City of Burbank, California.

 5. This Ordinance shall become effective at 12:01 a.m. of the thirty-first day after adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of _____, 2009.

Gary Bric Mayor of the City of Burbank

Attest

Margarita Dampos, CMC

K \ord\2009\rjm\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - clean dix v

-6-

Exhibit A

-

Approved as to Form and Legal Content Dennis A Barlow, City Attorney

By: Richard J. Motillo

Senior Assistant City Attorney

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES) ss. CITY OF BURBANK)

I, Margarita Campos, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Burbank, do hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. <u>3761</u> was duly and regularly passed and adopted by the Council of the City of Burbank at its regular meeting held on the <u>2nd</u> day of <u>June</u>, 2009, by the following vote:

AYES' Council Members Golonski, Reinke, Talamantes and Bric.

NOES: Council Member Gordon.

ABSENT: Council Members None.

I further certify that said Ordinance was published as required by law in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Burbank, California on the <u>10th</u> day of <u>June</u>, 2009.

Margarita Campos, CMC, City Clerk

K \ord\2009\rjm\Sustainable Water Use 6-2-09 - cican docx

-7-

ARTICLE 3. SUSTAINABLE WATER USE ORDINANCE

8-2-301: SHORT TITLE:

This article shall be known and may be cited as the "Sustainable Water Use Ordinance." [Added by Ord. No. 3737, eff. 5/23/08; Amended by Ord. No. 3761, eff. 7/3/09.]

8-2-302: STATEMENT OF POLICY AND PURPOSE:

A. Policy. It is desirable and in the general welfare of the City that the water resources available to the City be put to maximum beneficial use to the extent possible and that waste, unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use be prevented, and that conservation of such water resources be exercised in a reasonable and beneficial manner for the residents and businesses of Burbank.

B. Purpose. Conditions may arise from time to time that will limit the water supply to the City. This article provides procedures to reduce water use citywide and thereby mitigate the effect of a shortage of water resources. Through the use of incremental stages, as appropriate for prevailing conditions, this article provides for increasing levels of water use restrictions and penalties in order to discourage wasteful water use practices and achieve reduced water consumption. [Added by Ord. No. 3737, eff. 5/23/08; Amended by Ord. No. 3761, eff. 7/3/09.]

8-2-303: APPLICATION:

A. The provisions of this article shall apply to all users of potable water service in the City, with the exceptions set forth in subsections (b) and (c) of this section.

B. This article shall not apply to uses of water necessary to protect public health and safety or for essential public services such as police, fire, or sanitation.

C. This article shall not apply to use of recycled water. [Added by Ord. No. 3737, eff. 5/23/08; Amended by Ord. No. 3761, eff. 7/3/09.]

8-2-304: SUSTAINABLE WATER USE STAGES:

The water use restrictions imposed by this article shall be implemented in six stages. Stage I, consisting of sustainable water use measures that will be in place at all times, shall take effect immediately on the effective date of the ordinance enacting this article. Stages II, III, IV, V and VI shall require subsequent action of the City Council pursuant to section $\underline{8-2-305}$. The six stages are as follows:

A. Stage I. In Stage I, water users shall follow these sustainable water use practices:

(1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas on rainy days and at least two days thereafter.

(2) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. except by use of attended hand-watering, or for very short periods of time for the express purpose of adjusting or repairing an irrigation system.

(3) Adjust sprinklers and irrigation systems to eliminate overspray and avoid run-off into streets, sidewalks, parking lots, alleys or other paved surfaces.

(4) Do not hose or wash driveways, patios, sidewalks, or other hard or paved surfaces except when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary hazards, and then only by use of a hand-held bucket or similar container, a high pressure, low volume spray hose using only potable water with no cleaning agents at an average water usage of 0.006 gallons per square feet of sidewalk area in accordance with Resolution No. 98-08 issued by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board, or a low-volume, high-pressure cleaning machine equipped to recycle any water used.

(5) Promptly repair all leaks from plumbing fixtures and irrigation systems, including but not limited to sprinkler systems.

(6) When washing vehicles, use a hand-held bucket or similar container or a hand-held hose equipped with a positive self-closing water shut-off device. This subsection does not apply to any commercial car washing facility.

(7) Do not serve drinking water, unless specifically requested by the customer, in all restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias or other public places where food is sold, served, or offered for sale.

(8) Hotels, motels and other commercial lodging establishments must provide customers the option of not having towels and linen laundered daily. Commercial lodging establishments must prominently display notice of this option in each bathroom using clear and easily understood language.

(9) Food preparation establishments, such as restaurants or cafes, are prohibited from using non-water conserving dish wash spray valves.

(10) Operating a water fountain or other decorative water feature that does not use recirculated water is prohibited.

(11) Installation of single pass cooling systems is prohibited in buildings requesting new water service.

(12) Installation of non-re-circulating water systems is prohibited in new commercial conveyor car wash and new commercial laundry systems.

(13) Effective January 1, 2010, all commercial conveyor car wash systems and commercial laundry systems must have installed operational re-circulating water systems.

B. Stage II. In Stage II, the conservation measures applicable in Stage I shall be augmented with the following additional mandatory measures:

(1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per day per station and no more than three (3) days per week during the months of April through October. Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per day per station and no more than one (1) day per week during the months of November through March. Regardless of month, areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of this requirement, but must comply with the number of days per week watering limit.

(2) During the months of April through October, the three allowable irrigation days are Tuesdays, Thursdays and Saturdays. During the months of November through March, the one allowable irrigation day is Saturday. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of the requirement listed here.

C. Stage III. In Stage III, all conservation measures applicable in Stage II shall apply, along with the following additional measures:

(1) During the months of April through October do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per station and no more than two (2) days per week. Areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of this requirement, but must comply with the limit of two days per week watering requirement. The two allowable irrigation days are Tuesdays and Saturdays. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of Tuesday or Saturday.

(2) Do not use outdoor evaporative cooling devices (for example, misters).

(3) The prohibition on watering outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. extends to include attended hand-watering.

(4) Cover all swimming pools, wading pools, or spas when not in use with acceptable protection designed to decrease water evaporation.

D. Stage IV. In Stage IV, all conservation measures applicable in Stage III shall apply, along with the following additional measures:

(1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas more than fifteen (15) minutes per station and no more than one (1) day per week. Areas watered with drip irrigation systems or with low-flow sprinkler heads that require additional spray time are exempt from the 15-minute time restriction of this requirement, but must comply with the limit of one day per week watering requirement. The one allowable irrigation day is Saturday. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of Saturday.

E. Stage V. In Stage V, all conservation measures applicable in Stage IV shall apply, along with the following additional measures:

(1) Deep irrigation of trees and shrubs only, two (2) days per month, 20 minutes per watering station. The two allowable deep irrigation days are the first and third Saturdays of each calendar month. Irrigation will not be allowed any day outside of these two Saturdays.

(2) No new or upgraded potable water service will be permitted, excepting R-1 and R-2 zones, unless a building permit has already been issued.

F. Stage VI. In Stage VI, all conservation measures applicable in Stage V shall apply, along with the following additional measures:

(1) Do not water outdoor landscaped areas at any time. [Added by Ord. No. 3737, eff. 5/23/08; Amended by Ord. No. 13-3,848, eff. 1/17/14; 3761.]

8-2-305: IMPLEMENTATION OF SUSTAINABLE WATER USE STAGES:

The sustainable water use practices provided for in section <u>8-2-304</u> shall be declared by resolution of the City Council. Before adopting any such resolution, the City Council shall hold a public hearing when required by Water Code section <u>350</u> or other applicable law. Any such resolution shall contain findings in support of the City Council's decision to impose any sustainable water use practices, and such findings or other determinations as may be required to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act. [Added by Ord. No. 3737, eff. 5/23/08; Amended by Ord. No. 3761, eff. 7/3/09.]

8-2-306: ENFORCEMENT:

Any violation of this article shall be subject to enforcement by issuance of an administrative citation pursuant to section <u>1-1-108.1</u> of this Code. Prior to issuance of an administrative citation, the City shall give one courtesy notice requesting voluntary correction of the violation. The General Manager of Burbank Water and Power, or his or her designee, may enter into a written agreement with a customer to resolve any violation provided that such agreement is consistent with the purpose and intent of this article. [Added by Ord. No. 3737,eff. 5/23/08; amended by Ord. No. 3761, eff. 7/3/09.]

State law reference: As to Public Utility Commission regulation of water distributors to municipalities, see Pub.Util.C. §§ <u>2702</u>, <u>2703</u>. As to authority of a municipality to operate public utilities, see Pub.Util.C. § <u>10001</u> et seq. As to acquisition of water and facilities by municipalities, see Gov.C. § <u>13000</u> et seq. and Health & S.C. § <u>25249.5</u>.

<u>2</u>

State law reference: As to fixing distribution rates of water, see Const. Art. XI, § 9.



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

BURBANK LIMITS LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION TO THREE DAYS PER WEEK

Burbank, CA (July 25, 2014) On July 22, in response to the state's dire drought and the July 14 adoption of emergency water saving regulations made by the California State Water Board, the Burbank City Council voted 5-0 to activate Stage II of the Burbank Sustainable Water Use Ordinance. This action limits landscape watering in the city of Burbank to Tuesdays, Thursdays and Saturdays and for no more than 15 minutes each day for each irrigation station.

Following three dry years in California and with 80 percent of the state experiencing extreme drought conditions, Governor Brown issued a drought emergency proclamation in January and called for 20% reductions in water use by California's citizens.

On July 15, the California State Water Board adopted emergency regulations that require urban water suppliers, such as the City of Burbank, to implement mandatory restrictions on outdoor water use, effective August 1, 2014. Per the State Water Board regulations, water suppliers that do not have water shortage contingency plans in place would have to limit landscape irrigation to two days per week.

In 2009, Burbank adopted the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance to help Burbank best manage this most precious of resources. The Ordinance has six Stages, each with progressively restrictive uses of water that could be required due to water supply constraints. Stage 1 is always in effect and includes prudent water-saving actions, such as not watering on rainy days or while the sun is out, not hosing down driveways, patios and other hardscape surfaces, and repairing plumbing and irrigation leaks promptly. Stages II through VI progressively limit the use of potable water for irrigation.

Stage II of Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance, which will be in effect as of August 1, limits potable landscape irrigation to no more than 15 minutes/day/station and no more than three days per week during April through October (limited to Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays), and no more than one day per week during November through March (limited to Saturdays).

Most of the water being used in Southern California is coming from storage and about half the water goes to watering landscape. Limiting landscape watering helps extend the availability of stored water to help us through this current drought.

Landscape professionals have long cited a three day landscape irrigation schedule as more than sufficient to maintain healthy plants and lawns. In fact, over-watering can lead to less hearty plants.

"Three days a week works. We proved that in the last drought when this schedule was required in Burbank and we didn't see brown lawns. It's a waste to send us your money for water that's not really needed, and needlessly use up the water we have in storage" said Ron Davis, Burbank Water and Power General Manager.

About Burbank Water and Power

BWP is a community owned utility serving the City of Burbank since 1913 with safe, reliable, affordable, and sustainable electric and water service. A leader in energy policy, BWP was the first utility in America to commit to 33% renewable energy attainment by 2020 and boasts among the highest electric reliability numbers in the country.

Contact:

Joe Flores Public Information Officer <u>JLFlores@burbankca.gov</u> (818) 238-3773



CITY OF BURBANK BURBANK WATER AND POWER STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 14, 2015

TO: Mark Scott, City Manager

FROM: Ronald Davis, General Manager - BWP

SUBJECT: Implementation of Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a resolution entitled A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURBANK IMPLEMENTING STAGE III OF THE SUSTAINABLE WATER USE ORDINANCE.

BACKGROUND

In 2009, Burbank adopted the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance (Title 8, Chapter 2, Article 3 of the Burbank Municipal Code) to establish procedures for the maximum beneficial use of water. The Ordinance includes six Stages, each with progressively restrictive uses of water. Stage I is always in effect and includes prudent water saving actions, such as not watering on rainy days or while the sun is out, not hosing down driveways, patios and other hardscape surfaces, and repairing plumbing and irrigation leaks promptly. Stages II through VI progressively limit the use of potable water for irrigation:

- Stage II: Limit potable landscape irrigation to no more than 15 minutes/day/station and no more than three days per week during April through October (limited to Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays), and no more than one day per week during November through March (limited to Saturdays).
- Stage III: Limits April through October months to no more than two days per week, on Tuesdays and Saturdays.
- Stage IV: Throughout the year, no more than one day per week landscape irrigation allowed, on Saturdays.
- Stage V: Deep irrigation of trees and shrubs only, no more than two days per week (the first and third Saturday of each month), up to 20 minutes per watering station.
- Stage VI: No potable watering of outdoor landscape at any time.

On July 22, 2014, the City Council adopted a Resolution to implement Stage II of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance. This was in response to the July 15, 2014 California State Water Board emergency regulations requiring urban water suppliers, such as the City of Burbank, to implement by August 1, 2014 their Water Shortage Contingency Plans at a level that triggered mandatory restrictions on outdoor water use or be directed to limit outdoor water use to two days per week.

Staff is now recommending that Stage III of the Ordinance be implemented, effective June 1, 2015.

DISCUSSION

The state of California remains in the midst of a record-setting four year drought with no assurance that the next winter season will see it end. Over the past 20 years, the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) and its Member Agencies, including the City of Burbank, have made significant investments to create storage facilities and store water for future times of drought and other emergencies. The City of Burbank and others in the region have been living off of that stored water and sustaining "normal" water use for the past three years. Water rationing has not occurred in Burbank and Southern California because of this storage.

Over the past four weeks, much has transpired in California related to the drought:

<u>April 1, 2015 – Executive Order Issued</u>. Governor Brown issued an Executive Order (B-29-15) mandating a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use through February 2016. There is a provision for extending the reduction dependent upon precipitation in the next winter season. The Governor's Executive Order limits potable water use well below what is covered by MWD's Water Supply Allocation Plan and contains provisions to fine Water Agencies by up to \$10,000/day for not meeting the water use reduction goals established by the State Water Resources Control Board for each Water Agency.

<u>April 14, 2015 – MWD Allocations</u>. The MWD Board voted to implement the Water Supply Allocation Plan at a Stage III or 15% reduction in retail supplies. Water agencies exceeding a draw on MWD supplies above the Agency allocation would pay substantial penalties (up to 400%, \$2,960/acre foot) for excess water. Burbank is well positioned through prior Council and community conservation actions to avoid these penalties.

<u>April 18, 2015 – State Water Board Issues Conservation Requirements for Water Agencies</u>. The Governor's Executive Order directed the State Water Resources Control Board to impose restrictions on water agencies to achieve the statewide 25% reduction in potable urban water use through February 2016. The City of Burbank was assigned a 28% reduction requirement. It must be made clear that this is a cumulative volumetric reduction of 28% for the period June 2015 through February 2016, measured against water production in the period June 2013 through February 2014. Reductions not achieved in June rollover to July, etc. Burbank achieved 7% of this goal in the period June 2014 through February 2015. The remaining 21%, one billion gallons, must be accomplished before the end of February 2016, starting June 1, 2015.

<u>April 21, 2015 – Drought Update and Potential Water Conservation Measures Report to</u> <u>Council.</u> Given the length and severity of the drought, in concert with the drawdown of stored water across the last three years, staff recommended three actions:

- 1. Scheduling a Public Hearing to implement Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance;
- 2. Establish fines for large Commercial, Industrial and Institutional customers not compliant with recycled water conversions; and
- 3. To immediately begin issuing fines provided for in the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance to those ignoring repeated outreach related to prohibited water waste practices.

Staff was directed by the City Council to schedule the Public Hearing as quickly as possible, to bring back an Ordinance related to recycled water fines, and to begin issuance of water waste fines.

Stage III of Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance expands from Stages I and II and includes these four additional requirements:

- 1. Landscape irrigation during April through October is limited to no more than two days per week, on Tuesdays and Saturdays. One day per week landscape watering on Saturdays, as provided for in Stage II of the Ordinance, remains unchanged during Stage III for the cooler months of November through March.
- 2. Do not use outdoor evaporative cooling devices (for example, misters).
- 3. The prohibition on watering outdoor landscaped areas between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. extends to include attended hand-watering.
- 4. Cover all swimming pools, wading pools, or spas when not in use with acceptable protection designed to decrease water evaporation.

FISCAL IMPACT

The City of Burbank could be subject to State Water Resources Control Board fines of up to \$10,000 per day if we do not achieve the required 28% reduction in water use by the end of February 2016.

CONCLUSION

Both Burbank's state-mandated water reduction goal of 28% and the threat of daily fines of \$10,000 are daunting. Once again, this is a cumulative volumetric goal for the period of June 1, 2015 through February 28, 2016. We have an exceedingly short window to achieve reductions in use by June 1, 2015 to meet the goal and avoid fines.

BWP is hopeful that the goal can be achieved, but only if all sectors of the community do their part. This means reduced watering of landscaping, judicious and sensible water use in the home, maximizing the use of recycled water where it can permanently displace potable water use, continuing education and assistance in changing water use, and finally, enforcement where other alternatives have not succeeded. As previously stated, Burbank has already achieved a 7% reduction against the 28% requirement. The remaining 21%, one billion gallons, must be accomplished before the end of February 2016. The following table details where staff believes water use reductions can be achieved. Enforcement of restrictions already in place accounts for about one-third of the necessary reduction. Reductions not achieved in one segment would need to be made up in other segments in order to achieve the mandated goal.

Water Use Reduction Percentage Estimates						
Measure	Range of Percent Savings	Range of Potable Water Reductions (in Gallons)				
Sustainable Water Use Ordinance Stage III Restrictions	10% – 11%	471,000,000 - 518,000,000				
Recycled Water Conversion Projects	2% - 3%	94,000,000 - 141,000,000				
Enforcement of Water Waste Restrictions already in place	6% - 8%	283,000,000 - 377,000,000				
Indoor Water Waste Behavioral Improvements	1% - 2%	47,000,000 - 94,000,000				
Total Estimated Percent Savings	19% - 24%	895,000,000 - 1,130,000,000				

As shown, the lion's share of the savings will come from landscape watering restrictions in moving to Stage III. To this end, City Council adoption of the Resolution to implement Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance is required and staff urgently recommends adoption of the Resolution, which would go into effect June 1, 2015.

Exhibits

- A Resolution of the Council of the City of Burbank Implementing Stage III of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance
- B Burbank's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE Drew Sugars Public Information Officer (818) 238-5849 dsugars@burbankca.gov

Burbank Orders Further Reductions in Water Use

City Council unanimously votes to implement Stage III of drought plan

BURBANK, Calif. (May 15, 2015) – California's four years of record setting drought has prompted Burbank City Council to vote 5-0 to increase water conservation efforts in light of dwindling water reserves.

Representatives of Burbank Water and Power, the City resident owned utility, gave a stark presentation of the water challenges facing residents during a <u>special Council meeting</u> that took place in Council Chambers Thursday night, May 14, 2015.

The City is under a directive to reduce water usage 28% following Governor Jerry Brown's Executive Order (B-29-15) in early April mandating drastic reduction in statewide potable urban water use. Previous efforts by Burbank residents have already resulted in 7% savings, but another 21% (one billion gallons) must be accomplished by the end of February, 2016 or the City may be fined up to \$10,000 per day.

Council passed a resolution Thursday night to implement Stage III of the City's Sustainable Water Use Ordinance (Burbank Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 2, Article 3) which was originally passed in 2009. Stage III includes the following expanded requirements:

- April-October landscape irrigation limited to two days per week (Tues & Sat.).
- No use of outdoor evaporative cooling devices (misters).
- Hand-watering now included in prohibition on watering outdoor landscaped areas between 9:00 a.m. 6:00 p.m.
- All swimming pools, wading pools, spas must be covered with acceptable protection to decrease water evaporation.

The new rules take effect Monday, June 1, 2015. For a complete list of water restrictions imposed in Stages I and II of the Sustainable Water Use Ordinance, go <u>here</u> (https://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/water/water-drought).

Appendix C

Required Data Tables in DWR Format
Table 2-1 Retail Only: Public Water Systems							
Public Water System Number	Public Water System Name	Number of Municipal Connections 2015	Volume of Water Supplied 2015				
1910179	Burbank, City of	26,661	15,042				
	TOTAL	26,661	15,042				
NOTES: Connections and volume are for drinking water system only (not recycled water system)							

Table 2-2:	Table 2-2: Plan Identification								
Select Only One		Type of Plan	Name of RUWMP or Regional Alliance applicable drop down list	if					
~	Individual	UWMP							
		Water Supplier is also a member of a RUWMP							
		Water Supplier is also a member of a Regional Alliance							
	Regional U	rban Water Management Plan (RUWMP)							
NOTES:									

Table 2-3: Agency Identification					
Type of Ag	ency (select one or both)				
	Agency is a wholesaler				
1	Agency is a retailer				
Fiscal or Ca	lendar Year (select one)				
~	UWMP Tables Are in Calendar Years				
	UWMP Tables Are in Fiscal Years				
If Using Fiscal Years Provide Month and Date that the Fiscal Year Begins (mm/dd)					
Units of Me	easure Used in UWMP (select from Drop down)				
Unit	AF				
NOTES:					

Table 2-4 Retail: Water Supplier Information Exchange

The retail supplier has informed the following wholesale supplier(s) of projected water use in accordance with CWC 10631.

Wholesale Water Supplier Name (Add additional rows as needed)

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

NOTES: Burbank participated in the IRP update process

Table 3-1 Retail: Population - Current and Projected							
Population Served	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 <i>(opt)</i>	
	106,084	112,451	113,179	114,850	115,680	118,821	
NOTES: 2015 from DOF, others from MWD							

	2015 Actual	
Additional Description (as needed)	Level of Treatment When Delivered <i>Drop down list</i>	Volume
	Drinking Water	6,679
	Drinking Water	3,946
Commercial/Industrial/Institutio nal/Governmental	Drinking Water	3,882
Difference between metered sales and metered amount into system ("non-revenue water" on audit form)	Drinking Water	535
Untreated MWD water for direct recharge by Burbank or for delivery to LA treatment plant in exchange for groundwater credits	Raw Water	7,350
	Additional Description (as needed) Commercial/Industrial/Institutio nal/Governmental Difference between metered sales and metered amount into system ("non-revenue water" on audit form) Untreated MWD water for direct recharge by Burbank or for delivery to LA treatment plant in exchange for groundwater credits	2015 ActualAdditional Description (as needed)Level of Treatment When Delivered Drop down listDrinking WaterDrinking WaterCommercial/Industrial/Institutio nal/GovernmentalDrinking WaterDifference between metered sales and metered amount into system ("non-revenue water" on audit form)Drinking WaterUntreated MWD water for direct recharge by Burbank or for delivery to LA treatment plant in exchange for groundwater creditsRaw Water

Use Type (Add additional rows as needed)	Additional Description	Projected Water Use Report To the Extent that Records are Available					
<u>Drop down list</u> Mayselect acch use multiple times These are the only Use Types that will be recognized by the WUE data online submitta i to al	(as needed)	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040-opt	
Single Family		8,481	8,061	7,817	7,543	7,412	
Multi-Family		5,011	4,924	4,805	4,629	4,640	
Other	Commercial/Industrial/Institu tional/Governmental	4,930	4,938	4,939	4,884	4,818	
Losses	Difference between metered sales and metered amount into system ("non-revenue water" on audit form)	472	460	450	437	433	
Groundwater recharge	Untreated MWD water for direct recharge by Burbank or for delivery to LA treatment plant in exchange for groundwater credits	6,300	4,700	4,800	4,900	4,900	
	TOTAL	25,194	23,083	22,811	22,393	22,203	

300 AFY by 2020 and then 2000 AFY for 2025-2040. Without the LA credits, groundwater recharge amounts need to increase to make up the difference.

Table 4-3 Retail: Total Water De	Table 4-3 Retail: Total Water Demands								
	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (opt)			
Potable and Raw Water From Tables 4-1 and 4-2	22,392	25,194	23,083	22,811	22,393	22,203			
Recycled Water Demand* From Table 6-4	2,463	3,327	5,047	5,047	5,047	5,047			
TOTAL WATER DEMAND	24,855	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250			
*Recycled water demand fields will be blank until Table 6-4 is complete.									
NOTES:									

Reporting Period Start Date (mm/yyyy)	Volume of Water Loss*
01/2015	347
* Taken from the field "Water Losses" losses and real losses) from the AWWA	(a combination of apparent worksheet.

Table 4-5 Retail Only: Inclusion in Water Use Projections						
Are Future Water Savings Included in Projections? (Refer to Appendix K of UWMP Guidebook) Drop down list (y/n)	Yes					
If "Yes" to above, state the section or page number, in the cell to the right, where citations of the codes, ordinances, etc utilized in demand projections are found.	MWD UWMP Appendix 6					
Are Lower Income Residential Demands Included In Projections? Drop down list (y/n)	Yes					
NOTES:						

Table 5-1 Baselines and Targets Summary								
Retail Agency or Regional Alliance Only								
Baseline Period	Start Year	End Year	Average Baseline GPCD*	2015 Interim Target *	Confirmed 2020 Target*			
10-15 year	1997	2006	197	177	157			
5 Year	2003	2007	196					
*All values	are in Gallons p	er Capita per D	ay (GPCD)					
NOTES:								

Table 5-2: 2015 Compliance Retail Agency or Regional Alliance Only Optional Adjustments to 2015 GPCD Enter "0" if no adjustment is made From Methodology 8							2015 GPCD*	Did Supplier Achieve
Actual 2015 GPCD*	Target GPCD*	Extraordinary Events*	Economic Adjustment*	Weather Normalization*	TOTAL Adjustments*	Adjusted 2015 GPCD*	(Adjusted if applicable)	Targeted Reduction for 2015? Y/N
127	177	0	0	0	0	127	127	Yes
*All values an	e in Gallons p	er Capita per Do	ny (GPCD)					
NOTES:	NOTES:							

Table 6-1 Retail: Groundwater Volume Pumped								
	Supplier does not pump groundwater. The supplier will not complete the table below.							
Groundwater Type Drop Down List May use each category multiple times	Location or Basin Name	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015		
Add additional rows as needed								
Alluvial Basin	San Fernando Basin	10138	10462	11191	9511	10277		
	TOTAL	10,138	10,462	11,191	9,511	10,277		
NOTES:								

Table 6-2 Retail: V	Vastewater Collected	l Within Service Area	a in 2015			
	There is no wastewate	er collection system. Th	he supplier will not comple	ete the table below	<i>N</i> .	
100	Percentage of 2015 se	rvice area covered by	wastewater collection syst	em (optional)		
100	Percentage of 2015 se	rvice area population o	covered by wastewater co	llection system (<i>o</i> j	ptional)	
	Wastewater Collectio	n		Recipient of Coll	ected Wastewater	
Name of Wastewater Collection Agency	Wastewater Volume Metered or Estimated? Drop Down List	Volume of Wastewater Collected from UWMP Service Area 2015	Name of Wastewater Treatment Agency Receiving Collected Wastewater	Treatment Plant Name	ls WWTP Located Within UWMP Area? Drop Down List	Is WWTP Operation Contracted to a Third Party? (optional) Drop Down List
Add additional rows as needed						
City of Burbank	Metered	8,786	City of Burbank	Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (BWRP)	Yes	Yes
Total Wastewater C Area i	ollected from Service n 2015:	8,786				
NOTES:						

Table 6-3 Ret	ail: Wastewa	ter Treatmen	t and Dischar	ge Within Ser	vice Area in 2015					
	No wastewate The supplier v	er is treated or vill not complet	disposed of wit e the table bel	thin the UWMP ow.	service area.					
								2015 vo	lumes	
Wastewater Treatment Plant Name	Discharge Location Name or Identifier	Discharge Location Description	Wastewater Discharge ID Number (optional)	Method of Disposal Drop down list	Does This Plant Treat Wastewater Generated Outside the Service Area?	Treatment Level Drop down list	Wastewater Treated	Discharged Treated Wastewater	Recycled Within Service Area	Recycled Outside of Service Area
Add additional n	ows as needed				•					
Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (BWRP)	002	Burbank Western Channel		River or creek outfall	No	Tertiary	8,786	6,323	2,463	0
	1	I	1	1	1	Total	8,786	6,323	2,463	0
NOTES:										

Table 6-4 Retail: Current and Projected Recy	ded Water Direct Beneficial Uses W	/ithin Service Area						
Recycled water is not used and is The supplier will not complete the	not planned for use within the service a e table below.	rrea of the supplier.						
Name of Agency Producing (Treating) the Recycle	d Water:	City of Burbank Public Works						
Name of Agency Operating the Recycled Water Di	istribution System:	Burbank Water and Power						
Supplemental Water Added in 2015		5						
Source of 2015 Supplemental Water		Potable water, treated groundw	ater					
Beneficial Use Type	General Description of 2015 Uses	Level of Treatment Drop down list	2015	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (opt)
Agricultural irrigation			0	0	0	0	•	0
Landscape irrigation (excludes golf courses)	City-wide	Tertiary	936	1,007	1,017	1,017	1,017	1,017
Golf course irrigation	DeBell Golf Course	Tertiary	222	230	230	230	230	230
Commercial use	Cooling Towers	Tertiary	150	470	470	470	470	470
Industrial use	Fotokem	Tertiary	0	20	30	30	30	30
Geothermal and other energy production	MPP/Lake Power Plants	Tertiary	1,155	1,300	1,300	1,300	1,300	1,300
Seawater intrusion barrier			0	0	0	0	0	0
Recreational impoundment			0	0	0	0	0	0
Wetlands or wildlife habitat			0	0	0	0	•	0
Groundwater recharge (IPR)*			0	0	0	0	•	0
Surface water augmentation (IPR)*				0	0	0	0	0
Direct potable reuse				0	0	0	0	0
Other (Provide General Description)	Future export to LADWP system	Tertiary	0	300	2,000	2,000	2,000	2,000
		Total:	2,463	3,327	5,047	5,047	5,047	5,047
*IPR - Indirect Potable Reuse								
NOTES:								

Table 6-5 Retail: 2010 UWMP Recycled Water Use Projection Compared to 2015 Actual

Recycled water was not used in 2010 nor projected for use in 2015. The supplier will not complete the table below.

Use Typ)e	2010 Projection for 2015	2015 Actual Use
Agricultural irrigation		0	0
Landscape irrigation (exclude	es golf courses)	975	936
Golf course irrigation		300	222
Commercial use		525	150
Industrial use		1,360	0
Geothermal and other energ	y production	0	1,155
Seawater intrusion barrier		0	0
Recreational impoundment		0	0
Wetlands or wildlife habitat		0	0
Groundwater recharge (IPR)		0	0
Surface water augmentation	(IPR)	0	0
Direct potable reuse		0	0
Other	Export to LAD WP	500	0
	Total	3,660	2,463

NOTES: 2010 projections included some irrigation with Commercial use, and Burbank power plant was called Industrial. For 2015, Commercial is mostly water for cooling towers and Burbank power plant is called "other energy production."

Table 6-6 Retail: Metl	hods to Expand Future Recycled Water Us	se	
Π	Supplier does not plan to expand recycled wa the table below but will provide narrative ex	ater use in the future. planation.	Supplier will not complete
	Provide page location of narrative in UWMP		
Name of Action	Description	Planned Implementation Year	Expected Increase in Recycled Water Use
Add additional rows as nee	eded		
LA Exchange	Deliver recycled water to LADWP in exchange for groundwater credits	2016	300
		Total	300
NOTES: Planned exchar	nge of Burbank recycled water for LADWP grou	undwater pumping cre	dits will increase use of
recycled water and redu	ice the need for Burbank to purchase MWD in	nported water for grou	indwater recharge. By
2025, the amount may b	be 2000 AF per year.		

Table 6-7 Retail: Exp	ected Future Water	r Supply Projects	or Programs			
v	No expected future v Supplier will not com	vater supply projec plete the table belo	ts or programs that provid ow.	le a quantifiable incre	ase to the agency'	s water supply.
	Some or all of the su in a narrative format	pplier's future wate	er supply projects or progr	ams are not compatik	le with this table a	and are described
	Provide page location	n of narrative in the	e U WMP			
Name of Future Projects or Programs	Joint Project with	other agencies?	Description (if needed)	Planned Implementation Year	Planned for Use in Year Type Drop Down List	Expected Increase in Water Supply to Agency
	Drop Down List (y/n)	If Yes, Agency Name				This may be a range
Add additional rows as n	eeded		1	1	1	1
NOTES:						

Table 6-8 Retail: Water Supplies -	– Actual			
Water Supply			2015	
Drop down list May use each category multiple times. These are the only water supply categories that will be recognized by the WUEdata online submittal tool	Additional Detail on Water Supply	Actual Volume	Water Quality Drop Down List	Total Right or Safe Yield <i>(optional)</i>
Add additional rows as needed	•			
Groundwater	SF Basin water treated at BOU	10,277	Drinking Water	
Purchased or Imported Water	MWD treated water	4,765	Drinking Water	
Recycled Water	from BWRP	2,463	Recycled Water	
Purchased or Imported Water	MWD untreated water for replenishment or LA exchange	7,350	Raw Water	
	Total	24,855		0
NOTES:			•	

Table 6-9 Retail: Water Supp	lies — Projected										
Water Supply					8	Projected W eport To the Ext	ater Supply tent Practicable				
Drop down list May use each category multiple times.	Additional Detail on	202	50	20	125	20:	30	20	35	2040	(opt)
These are the only water supply categories that will be reagaized by the WUEdata online submittal tool	Water Supply	Reasonably Available Volume	Total Right or Safe Yield (optional)	Reasonably Available Volume	Total Right or Safe Yield (optional)	Reasonably Available Volume	Total Right or Safe Yield (optional)	Reasonably Available Volume	Total Right or Safe Yield (optional)	Reasonably Available Volume	Total Right or Safe Yield (optional)
Add additional rows as needed											
Groundwater	SF Basin water treated at BOU	11,000		11,000		11,000		11,000		11,000	
Purchased or Imported Water	MWD treated water	7,894		7,383		7,011		6,493		6,303	
Recycled Water	from BWRP	3,327		5,047		5,047		5,047		5,047	
Purchased or Imported Water	MWD untreated water for replenishment or LA exchange	6,300		4,700		4,800		4,900		4,900	
	Total	28,521	0	28,130	0	27,858	0	27,440	0	27,250	0
NOTES: Recycled water includes depend on these LA exchange an	s proposed deliveries to LA mounts. If less recycled $w_{\rm i}$	A in exchange fu ater is exchang	or groundwater ed for groundw	r credits: 300 vater credits, t	AFY by 2020, th the difference m	ien 2,000 AFY fr nust be made u	r 2025-2040. 1 p by increased i	'he amounts e eplenishment	istimated for un purchases.	treated replen	ishment

Table 7-1 Retail: Basis of Water Year Data	1				
	Base Year	Available S Year Type	upplies if Repeats		
Year Type	If not using a calendar year, type in the last year of the fiscal, water year, or range of years, for example,	Compatible with this to elsewhere in the UWN Location	of available supplies is not e UWMP. 		
	2000, use 2000	only, or both.	olume only, percent		
		Volume Available	% of Average Supply		
Average Year	1922-2012		100%		
Single-Dry Year	1977		100%		
Multiple-Dry Years 1st Year	1990		100%		
Multiple-Dry Years 2nd Year	1991		100%		
Multiple-Dry Years 3rd Year	1992		100%		
Multiple-Dry Years 4th Year Optional					
Multiple-Dry Years 5th Year Optional					
Multiple-Dry Years 6th Year Optional					
Agency may use multiple versions of Table 7-1	if different w	ater sources have different	base years and the		

supplier chooses to report the base years for each water source separately. If an agency uses multiple versions of Table 7-1, in the "Note" section of each table, state that multiple versions of Table 7-1 are being used and identify the particular water source that is being reported in each table.

NOTES: Used supply and demand estimates for Burbank prepared by MWD. MWD averaged hydrologies from 1922-2012.

Table 7-2 Retail: Normal	Year Supp	ly and Den	nand Comp	parison	
	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (Opt)
Supply totals (autofill from Table 6-9)	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250
Demand totals (autofill from Table 4-3)	28,521	28,130	27,858	27,440	27,250
Difference	0	0	0	0	0
NOTES:					

Table 7-3 Retail: Sing	le Dry Year	Supply an	d Demand	Comparis	on
	2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (Opt)
Supply totals	28,473	28,082	27,811	27,394	27,204
Demand totals	28,473	28,082	27,811	27,394	27,204
Difference	0	0	0	0	0
NOTES:					

Table 7-4 Retail: Multiple Dry Years Supply and Demand Comparison							
		2020	2025	2030	2035	2040 (Opt)	
	Supply totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
First year	Demand totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
	Supply totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
Second year	Demand totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
	Supply totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
Third year	Demand totals	28,448	28,470	28,183	27,741	27,531	
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
	Supply totals						
Fourth year (optional)	Demand totals						
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
	Supply totals						
Fifth year (optional)	Demand totals						
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
	Supply totals						
Sixth year (optional)	Demand totals						
	Difference	0	0	0	0	0	
NOTES:	NOTES:						

Table 8-1 Retail Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan				
		Complete Both		
Stage	Percent Supply Reduction ¹ Numerical value as a percent	Water Supply Condition (Narrative description)		
Add additional r	ows as needed			
Stage I		In force at all times		
Stage II	10%	Implementation requires the action of City Council		
Stage III	20%	Implementation requires the action of City Council		
Stage IV	30%	Implementation requires the action of City Council		
Stage V	40%	Implementation requires the action of City Council		
Stage VI	50%	Implementation requires the action of City Council		
¹ One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%.				
NOTES:				

Table 8-2 Ret	tail Only: Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses		
Stage	Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Users Drop down list These are the only categories that will be accepted by the WUE data anline submittal tool	Additional Explanation or Reference <i>(optional)</i>	Penalty, Charge, or Other Enforcement? Drop Down List
Add additional i	rows as needed		
Stage I	Landscape - Restrict or prohibit runoff from landscape irrigation		Yes
	Landscape - Limit landscape irrigation to specific times	Prohibited between 9am - 6pm. Prohibited on rainy days and for two days after.	Yes
	Other - Require automatic shut of hoses		Yes
	CII - Lodging establishment must offer opt out of linen service		Yes
	CII - Restaurants may only serve water upon request		Yes
	CII - Commercial kitchens required to use pre-rinse		Yes
	CII - Other CII restriction or prohibition	Single-pass cooling systems prohibited where new water service requested	No
	CII - Other CII restriction or prohibition	commercial conveyor car wash and commercial laundry systems must recirculate water	Yes
	Water Features - Restrict water use for decorative water features, such as fountains	Must use recirculated water	Yes
	Other - Customers must repair leaks, breaks, and		Vor
	malfunctions in a timely manner		Tes
	Other - Prohibit use of potable water for washing hard surfaces		Yes
Stage II	Landscape - Limit landscape irrigation to specific times	15 minutes per station	Yes
	Landscape - Limit I andscape irrigation to specific days	1 day Nov - March, Saturday 3 day Apr - Oct, Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday	Yes
Stage III	Landscape - Limit landscape irrigation to specific times	Prohibited hand watering between 9am - 6pm	Yes
	Landscape - Limit I andscape irrigation to specific days	2 day Apr - Oct, Tuesday, Saturday	Yes
	Pools and Spas - Require covers for pools and spas		Yes
	Other	No outdoor evaporative cooling devices	Yes
Stage IV	Landscape - Limit Iandscape irrigation to specific days	1 day per week, Saturday	Yes
Stage V	Landscape - Limit landscape irrigation to specific times	20 minutes per station	Yes
	Landscape - Limit I andscape irrigation to specific days	2 days month, trees and shrubs only, first and third Saturday	Yes
	Other	No new water service permits except R-1, R-2 zones	Yes
Stage VI	Landscape - Prohibit all landscape irrigation		Yes
NOTES:			

Stage	Consumption Reduction Methods by Water Supplier Drop down list These are the only categories that will be accepted by the WUEdata online submittal tool	Additional Explanation or Reference <i>(optional)</i>
Add additional	rows as needed	
Stage I	Offer Water Use Surveys	
	Provide Rebates on Plumbing Fixtures and Devices	
	Provide Rebates for Landscape Irrigation Efficiency	
	Provide Rebates for Turf Replacement	
Stage II	Expand Public Information Campaign	
Stage III	Increase Water Waste Patrols	
Stage V	Moratorium or Net Zero Demand Increase on New Connections	As in Sustainable Water Use Ordinance; R-1 and R 2 not included
Stage VI	Decrease Line Flushing	

Table 8-4 Retail: Minimum Supply Next Three Years							
	2016	2017	2018				
Available Water 28,448 28,448 28,448 28,448							
NOTES:							

Table 10-1 Retail: Notification to Cities and Counties					
City Name	60 Day Notice	Notice of Public Hearing			
A	dd additional rows as need	led			
Burbank	7	\checkmark			
County Name Drop Down List	60 Day Notice	Notice of Public Hearing			
County Name Drop Down List A	60 Day Notice dd additional rows as need	Notice of Public Hearing led			
County Name Drop Down List A Los Angeles County	60 Day Notice dd additional rows as need √	Notice of Public Hearing Jed			
County Name Drop Down List A Los Angeles County	60 Day Notice	Notice of Public Hearing ded			

SB X7-7 Table 0: Units of Measure Used in UWMP*

(select one from the drop down list)

Acre Feet

*The unit of measure must be consistent with Table 2-3

NOTES:

SB X7-7 Table-1: Baseline Period Ranges							
Baseline	Parameter	Value	Units				
	2008 total water deliveries	23,909	Acre Feet				
	2008 total volume of delivered recycled water	2,032	Acre Feet				
10- to 15-year	2008 recycled water as a percent of total deliveries	8.50%	Percent				
baseline period	Number of years in baseline period ^{1, 2}	10	Years				
	Year beginning baseline period range	1997					
	Year ending baseline period range ³	2006					
Europe	Number of years in baseline period	5	Years				
o-year baseline period	5-year Year beginning baseline period range 2003						
Year ending baseline period range ⁴ 2007							
¹ If the 2008 recycled water percent is less than 10 percent, then the first baseline period is a continuous 10-year period. If the amount of recycled water delivered in 2008 is 10 percent or greater, the first baseline period is a continuous 10- to 15-year period. ² The Water Code requires that the baseline period is between 10 and 15 years. However, DWR recognizes that some water suppliers may not have the minimum 10 years of baseline data.							
³ The ending year must be between December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2010.							
⁴ The ending year must be b	netween December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2010.						
NOTES:							

SB X7-7 Table 2: Method for Population Estimates				
	Method Used to Determine Population			
	(may check more than one)			
	1. Department of Finance (DOF)			
1	DOF Table E-8 (1990 - 2000) and (2000-2010) and			
	DOF Table E-5 (2011 - 2015) when available			
	2. Persons-per-Connection Method			
	3. DWR Population Tool			
	4. Other			
DWR recommends pre-review				
NOTES: DOF tables downloaded 2-16-2016				

Y	'ear	Population
10 to 15 Ye	ear Baseline F	opulation
Year 1	1997	97,326
Year 2	1998	98,303
Year 3	1999	98,817
Year 4	2000	100,316
Year 5	2001	100,869
Year 6	2002	101,572
Year 7	2003	102,574
Year 8	2004	102,872
Year 9	2005	103,122
Year 10	2006	103,060
Year 11		
Year 12		
Year 13		
Year 14		
Year 15		
5 Year Base	eline Populat	ion
Year 1	2003	102,574
Year 2	2004	102,872
Year 3	2005	103,122
Year 4	2006	103,060
Year 5	2007	103,121
2015 Comp	liance Year P	Population
2	015	106,084
NOTES: DO	OF numbers a	as of 2-16-2016

Baseline Year <i>Em SB X7-7 Table 3</i> Volume into Distribution System <i>This column will</i> <i>emain blank</i> <i>unti JS X7-7 Table 4.4 is completed.</i> Indirect Paper for Dist. System <i>Storage</i> (+/-) Indirect Recycled <i>Water</i> <i>This column will</i> <i>remain blank</i> <i>unti JS X7-7 Table 4.4 is completed.</i> Process Water Dist. System <i>Storage</i> (+/-) Process Water <i>Dist. System</i> <i>unti JS X7-7</i> <i>Table 4.4 is completed.</i> Arr Origination (-/			Valuma Into			Deduction	5		
10 to 15 Year Baseline - Gross Water Use - - - - Year 1 1997 21,910 - - - - Year 2 1998 20,726 - - - - - Year 3 1999 21,890 - - - - - - Year 4 2000 23,084 -	Basel Fm SB X	ine Year 7-7 Table 3	Volume into Distribution System This column will remain blank until SB X7-7 Table 4-A is completed.	Exported Water	Change in Dist. System Storage (+/-)	Indirect Recycled Water This column will remain blank until SB X7-7 Table 4-B is completed.	Water Delivered for Agricultural Use	Process Water This column will remain blank until SB X7-7 Table 4-D is completed.	Annua Gross Water U
Year 1 1997 21,910 - - - Year 2 1998 20,726 - - - - Year 3 1999 21,890 - - - - - Year 4 2000 23,084 - - - - - - Year 5 2001 22,287 - <th>10 to 15 Ye</th> <th>ear Baseline -</th> <th>Gross Water Us</th> <th>e</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	10 to 15 Ye	ear Baseline -	Gross Water Us	e					
Year 2 1998 20,726 - - - Year 3 1999 21,890 - - - Year 4 2000 23,084 - - - Year 5 2001 22,287 - - - Year 6 2002 22,576 - - - Year 7 2003 22,636 - - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - - Year 11 0 - <th>Year 1</th> <th>1997</th> <th>21,910</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>-</th> <th></th> <th>-</th> <th>21,9</th>	Year 1	1997	21,910			-		-	21,9
Year 3 1999 21,890 - - - Year 4 2000 23,084 - - - Year 5 2001 22,287 - - - Year 6 2002 22,576 - - - Year 6 2002 22,576 - - - Year 7 2003 22,636 - - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 11 0 - - - - - Year 12 0 - - - - - - Year 13 0 - - - - - - - Year 13 0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Year 2	1998	20,726		1	-		-	20,7
Year 4 2000 23,084 - - - Year 5 2001 22,287 - - - Year 6 2002 22,576 - - - Year 7 2003 22,636 - - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 -	Year 3	1999	21,890			-		-	21,8
Year 5 2001 22,287 - - - Year 6 2002 22,576 - - - Year 7 2003 22,636 - - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - 202 2	Year 4	2000	23,084			-		-	23,0
Year 6 2002 22,576 - - Year 7 2003 22,636 - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - Year 11 0 - - - Year 12 0 - - - Year 13 0 - - - Year 14 0 - - - - Year 15 0 - - - - - Year 12 0 - - - - - - Year 14 0 - <td< td=""><td>Year 5</td><td>2001</td><td>22,287</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>-</td><td>22,2</td></td<>	Year 5	2001	22,287			-		-	22,2
Year 7 2003 22,636 - - Year 8 2004 22,852 - - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - Year 12 0 - - - - - Year 13 0 - - - - - - Year 14 0 - <	Year 6	2002	22,576			-		-	22,5
Year 8 2004 22,852 - - Year 9 2005 21,839 - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - - - - Year 11 0 - - - - - - - Year 12 0 -	Year 7	2003	22,636			-		-	22,
Year 9 2005 21,839 - - Year 10 2006 22,479 - - Year 11 0 - - - Year 12 0 - - - Year 13 0 - - - Year 14 0 - - - Year 15 0 - - - Year 15 0 - - - 10 - 15 year baseline average gross water use 22 - - 5 Year 1 2003 22,636 - - - Year 2 2004 22,852 - - - - Year 3 2005 21,839 - - - - Year 4 2006 22,479 - - - - - Year 5 2007 23,029 - - - - - - S year baseline average gross water use 20 - - - - 2015 - - -<	Year 8	2004	22,852			-		-	22,8
Year 10 2006 22,479 - - Year 11 0 -	Year 9	2005	21,839			-		-	21,8
Year 11 0 - </td <td>Year 10</td> <td>2006</td> <td>22,479</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>22,4</td>	Year 10	2006	22,479			-		-	22,4
Year 12 0 - </td <td>Year 11</td> <td>0</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td>	Year 11	0	-			-		-	
Year 13 0 - 10 - - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 13 10 <th10< th=""> <th10< t<="" td=""><td>Year 12</td><td>0</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td></th10<></th10<>	Year 12	0	-			-		-	
Year 14 0 - Image: Constraint of the second of the s	Year 13	0	-			-		-	
Year 15 0 - 0 - 22 10 - 15 year baseline average gross water use 22 5 Year Baseline - Gross Water Use 22 Year 1 2003 22,636 -	Year 14	0	-			-		-	
10 - 15 year baseline average gross water use 22 5 Year Baseline - Gross Water Use - <t< td=""><td>Year 15</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td></t<>	Year 15	0				-		-	
5 Year Baseline - Gross Water Use Year 1 2003 22,636 -	10 - 15 yea	r baseline ave	rage gross wat	er use					22,22
Year 1 2003 22,636 -	5 Year Bas	eline - Gross V	Vater Use						
Year 2 2004 22,852 - - Year 3 2005 21,839 - - - Year 4 2006 22,479 - - - Year 5 2007 23,029 - - - 5 year baseline average gross water use 2015 2015 15,042 - -	Year 1	2003	22,636	 	 '	-	ļ	-	22,
Year 3 2005 21,839 - - Year 4 2006 22,479 - - Year 5 2007 23,029 - - S year baseline average gross water use 22 2015 Compliance Year - Gross Water Use - -	Year 2	2004	22,852	 	ļ'	-	 '	-	22,0
Year 4 2006 22,479 - 201 - - 1 - 1 <th1< th=""> <th1< th=""> <th1< th=""> <</th1<></th1<></th1<>	Year 3	2005	21,839	 	ļ'	-	 '	-	21,0
Year 5 2007 23,029 2 <th2< th=""> 2 <th2< th=""> <t< td=""><td>Year 4</td><td>2006</td><td>22,479</td><td> </td><td><u> </u>'</td><td>-</td><td><u> </u></td><td>-</td><td>22,</td></t<></th2<></th2<>	Year 4	2006	22,479	 	<u> </u> '	-	<u> </u>	-	22,
2015 Compliance Year - Gross Water Use -	Fyeer base	2007							23,
2015 15.042	2015 Comr	aliance Vear - (Cross Water Us						22,50
2013 13.042	2013 00111	0015	15 042	-	T	-		-	15
	-	.015	15,042		<u> </u>				15,

SB X7-7 Table 4-A: Volume Entering the Distribution							
System(s)							
Complete one table for each source.							
Name of So	ource	City Wells/ Lak	e St. GAC				
This water	source is:						
~	The supplie	er's own water	source				
	A purchase	d or imported	source				
		Volume	Meter Frror	Corrected			
Rasolir	e Vear	Entering	Adjustment*	Volume			
Em SB X7-	7 Table 3	Distribution	Ontional	Entering			
1111 00 117	/ 100/2 0	System	(+(-)	Distribution			
		System	(1))	System			
10 to 15 Ye	ar Baseline	- Water into D	istribution Syst	em			
Year 1	1997	1,197		1,197			
Year 2	1998	1,821		1,821			
Year 3	1999	1,085		1,085			
Year 4	2000	1,460		1,460			
Year 5	2001	500		500			
Year 6	2002	-		-			
Year 7	2003	-		-			
Year 8	2004	-		-			
Year 9	2005	-		-			
Year 10	2006	-		-			
Year 11	0			-			
Year 12	0			-			
Year 13	0			-			
Year 14	0			-			
Year 15	0			-			
5 Year Baseline - Water into Distribution System							
Year 1	2003	-		-			
Year 2	2004	-		-			
Year 3	2005	-		-			
Year 4	2006	-		-			
Year 5	2007	-		-			
2015 Comp	liance Year	- Water into D	istribution Syst	tem			
20	15	-		-			
* Mete	r Error Adjustr	nent - See guidan Methodologies D	ce in Methodology	1, Step 3 of			
		wethouologies D	ocument				
NOTES:							

SB X7-7 Table 4-A: Volume Entering the Distribution					
Name of Source Burbank Operable Unit Wells and T.P.					
This water source is:					
	The supplie	er's own water	source		
	A purchase	d or imported	source		
Baselir Fm SB X7-	ne Year -7 Table 3	Volume Entering Distribution System	Meter Error Adjustment* <i>Optional</i> (+/-)	Corrected Volume Entering Distribution System	
10 to 15 Ye	ar Baseline	- Water into D	istribution Syst	em	
Year 1	1997	10,757		10,757	
Year 2	1998	724		724	
Year 3	1999	12,279		12,279	
Year 4	2000	10,121		10,121	
Year 5	2001	9,582		9,582	
Year 6	2002	10,340		10,340	
Year 7	2003	9,009		9,009	
Year 8	2004	9,748		9,748	
Year 9	2005	6,999		6,999	
Year 10	2006	10,368		10,368	
Year 11	0			0	
Year 12	0			0	
Year 13	0			0	
Year 14	0			0	
Year 15	0			0	
5 Year Baseline - Water into Distribution System					
Year 1	2003	9,009		9,009	
Year 2	2004	9,748		9,748	
Year 3	2005	6,999		6,999	
Year 4	2006	10,368		10,368	
Year 5	2007	9,782		9,782	
2015 Comp	liance Year	- Water into D	istribution Syst	tem	
20	15	10,277		10,277	
* Mete	er Error Adjustr	ment - See guidan Methodologies D	ce in Methodology ocument	1, Step 3 of	
NOTES:					

SB X7-7 Table 4-A: Volume Entering the Distribution							
Name of Se	Name of Source Metropolitan Water District of S.C.						
This water	This water source is:						
	The supplier's own water source						
✓	A purchased or imported source						
Baselir Fm SB X7-	ne Year -7 Table 3	Volume Entering Distribution System	Meter Error Adjustment* <i>Optional</i> (+/-)	Corrected Volume Entering Distribution System			
10 to 15 Ye	ear Baseline	- Water into D	istribution Syst	em			
Year 1	1997	9,956		9,956			
Year 2	1998	18,180		18,180			
Year 3	1999	8,527		8,527			
Year 4	2000	11,503		11,503			
Year 5	2001	12,206		12,206			
Year 6	2002	12,236		12,236			
Year 7	2003	13,628		13,628			
Year 8	2004	13,103		13,103			
Year 9	2005	14,840		14,840			
Year 10	2006	12,111		12,111			
Year 11	0			0			
Year 12	0			0			
Year 13	0			0			
Year 14	0			0			
Year 15	0			0			
5 Year Base	eline - Wate	r into Distribu	tion System				
Year 1	2003	13,628		13,628			
Year 2	2004	13,103		13,103			
Year 3	2005	14,840		14,840			
Year 4	2006	12,111		12,111			
Year 5	2007	13,247		13,247			
2015 Comp	liance Year	- Water into D	istribution Syst	em			
20	15	4,766		4,766			
* Mete	er Error Adjustr	ment - See guidan Methodologies D	ce in Methodology ocument	1, Step 3 of			
NOTES:							

SB X7-7 Ta	able 5: Gallo	ns Per Capita Pe	er Day (GPCD)	
Baseli Fm SB XX	ine Year 7-7 Table 3	Service Area Population Fm SB X7-7 Table 3	Annual Gross Water Use Fm SB X7-7 Table 4	Daily Per Capita Water Use (GPCD)
10 to 15 Ye	ear Baseline G	PCD		
Year 1	1997	97,326	21,910	201
Year 2	1998	98,303	20,726	188
Year 3	1999	98,817	21,890	198
Year 4	2000	100,316	23,084	205
Year 5	2001	100,869	22,287	197
Year 6	2002	101,572	22,576	198
Year 7	2003	102,574	22,636	197
Year 8	2004	102,872	22,852	198
Year 9	2005	103,122	21,839	189
Year 10	2006	103,060	22,479	195
Year 11	0	-	-	
Year 12	0	-	-	
Year 13	0	-	-	
Year 14	0	-	-	
Year 15	0	-	-	
10-15 Year	Average Base	eline GPCD		197
5 Year Bas	eline GPCD	-	_	-
Baseli Fm SB XX	ine Year 7-7 Table 3	Service Area Population Fm SB X7-7 Table 3	Gross Water Use Fm SB X7-7 Table 4	Daily Per Capita Water Use
Year 1	2003	102,574	22,636	197
Year 2	2004	102,872	22,852	198
Year 3	2005	103,122	21,839	189
Year 4	2006	103,060	22,479	195
Year 5	2007	103,121	23,029	199
5 Year Ave	rage Baseline	GPCD		196
2015 Com	pliance Year G	BPCD		_
2	015	106,084	15,042	127
NOTES:				

SB X7-7 Table 6 : Gallons per Capita per Day Summary From Table SB X7-7 Table 5				
10-15 Year Baseline GPCD	197			
5 Year Baseline GPCD	196			
2015 Compliance Year GPCD	127			
NOTES:				

SB X7-7 Table 7: 2020 Target Method Select Only One							
Target Method Supporting Documentation							
$\overline{}$	Method 1	SB X7-7 Table 7A					
	Method 2	SB X7-7 Tables 7B, 7C, and 7D Contact DWR for these tables					
	Method 3	SB X7-7 Table 7-E					
	Method 4	Method 4 Calculator					
NOTES	:						

SB X7-7 Table 7-A: Target Method 1 20% Reduction					
10-15 Year Baseline GPCD	2020 Target GPCD				
197	157				
NOTES:					

SB X7-7 Table 7-F: C	SB X7-7 Table 7-F: Confirm Minimum Reduction for 2020 Target							
5 Year Baseline GPCD From SB X7-7 Table 5	Maximum 2020 Target ¹	Calculated 2020 Target ²	Confirmed 2020 Target					
196	186	157	157					
¹ Maximum 2020 Target is 95% of the 5 Year Baseline GPCD ² 2020 Target is calculated based on the selected Target Method, see SB X 7-7 Table 7 and corresponding tables for agency's calculated target.								
NOTES:								

SB X7-7 Table 8: 2	SB X7-7 Table 8: 2015 Interim Target GPCD					
Confirmed 2020 Target Fm SB X7-7 Table 7-F	10-15 year Baseline GPCD <i>Fm SB X7-7</i> Table 5	2015 Interim Target GPCD				
157	197	177				
NOTES:						

SB X7-7 Table	9: 2015 Comp	liance						
		Enter "0	Optional if Adjustment N	Adjustments <i>(in</i> ot Used	GPCD)			Did Supplier
Actual 2015 2015 Interim GPCD Target GPCD	Extraordinary Events	Weather Normalization	Economic Adjustment	TOTAL Adjustments	Adjusted 2015 GPCD	(Adjusted if applicable)	Targeted Reduction for 2015?	
127	177	-	-	-	-	127	127	YES
NOTES:								

Appendix D

San Fernando Water Rights Judgment

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES.

THE	CIT	Y OF	1.05	ANGELE	s,		2		
			I	lainti	ff,		į		NO
vs.							į		
CITY	OF	SAN	PE H	ιла юо,	et al	-,	į		
			ſ	Dofenda	nts.		ş		
					·		_;		

JUDGMENT

650079

January 26, 1979

ı	
2	
З	ORIGINAL FILED
4	IAN 2 (5 1373)
5	
6	JCH., J. CDRCORSN, Doanty Linex
7	
8	SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
9	FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
10	
11	THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES,)
12	Plaintiff,) No. 650079
13	VEL) JUDGMENT
14	CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, et al.,)
15	Defendants.))
16	
17	
18	There follows by consecutive paging a Table of Contents
19	(pages i. to vi.), Recitals (page 1), Definitions and
80 	List of Attachments (pages 1 to 6), Designation of Parties
21	(page 6), Declaration re Geology and Hydrology (pages 6
88	to 12), Declaration of Rights (pages 12 to 21), Injunc-
23	tions (pages 21 to 23), Continuing Jurisdiction (page 23),
24	Watermaster (pages 23 to 29), Physical Solution (pages 29
25	to 34), and Miscellancous Provisions (pages 34 to 35),
26 	and Attachments (pages 36 to 46). Each and all of said
27	several parts constitute a single integrated Judgment
88	herein.

'1		TABLE OF CONTENTS	
2			Pade
3		RECTTALS	1
4	2.	DEFINITIONS AND ATTACHMENTS	1
5		2.1 Definitions of Terms	ľ
6		2.2 List of Attachments	5
7	3.	PARTIES	6
8	Į	3.1 Detaulting and Disclaiming Defendants	6
9		3.2 No Rights Other Than as Morein Declared	6
10	4.	DECLARATION RE GEOLOGY AND HYDROLOGY	6
11		4.1 Geology	6
1.2		4.1.1 ULARA	G
13,		4.1.2 San Fernando Basin	7
14		4.1.3 Sylmar Basin	8
15		4.1.4 Verdugo Basin	8
16		4.1.5 Eagle Rock Basin	9
17		4.2 Hydrology	9
18		4.2.1 Water Supply	9
19		4.2.2 Ground Water Movement	9
20		4.2.3 Separate Ground Water Basins	10
ะา	!	1.2.4 Safe Yield and Mative Safe Yield	11.
22		4.2.5 Separate Basins Separate Rights	11
23		4.2.6 Hydrologic Condition of Basins	n
24		4.2.6.1 San Mernando Basin	11
25		4.2.6.2 Sylmar Basin	1.2
26		4.2.6.3 Verdugo Basin	12
27		4.2.6.4 Eagle Rock Basin	12
28	5.	DECLARATION OF RIGHTS	12
		:	

ı	
2	5.1 Right to Native Waters
3	5.1.1 Los Angeles River and San Fernando Basin .
4	5.1.1.1 Los Angeles' Pueblo Right
5	5-1.1.2 Extent of Fuchic Right
6	5.1.1.3 Pueblo Right Nature and
7	Priority of Exercise
8	5.1.1.4 Rights of Other Parties
9	5.1.2 Sylmar Basin Rights
тоļ	5.1.2.1 No Pueblo Rights
11	5.1.2.2 Overlying Rights
าะ	5.1.2.3 Appropriative Rights of San
13	Fernando and Los Angeles
14	5.1.2.4 No Propeription
1.5	5.1.2.5 Other Parties
16	5.1.3 Verdugo Banin Rights
17	5-J.3.1 No Pueblo Rights
18	5.1.3.2 Prescriptive Rights of Glendale
19	and Cresconto Valley
20	5.1.3.3 Other Partics
21	5.1.4 Magle Rock Basin Rights
22	5.1.4.1 No Pueblo Rights
23	5.1.4.2 No Rights in Native Waters
24	5.2 Rights to imported Waters
25	5.2.1 San Fernando Basin Rights
26	5.2.1.1 Rights to Recapture Import Return
27	Water
28	5.2.1.2 Rights to Store and Recupture
	Stored Water
	ii.

ı		Page
2	5.2.1.3 Calculation of Import Return	
3	Water and Stored Water Credits .	37
4	5.2.1.4 Cummulative Import Return	
5	Water Credits	18
6	5.2.1.5 Overextractions	18
7	5.2.1.6 Private Defendant	18
8	5.2.2 Sylmar Basin Rights	1.9
9	5.2.2.1 Rights to Recapture Import	
10	Return Waters	19
11	5.2.2.2 Rights to Store and Recapture	
12	Stored Water	19
13	5.2.2.3 Carty Over	19
14	5.2.2.4 Private Defendants	20
15	5.2.3 Verdugo Basin Rights	20
16	5.2.3.1 Clendale and Crescenta Valley	20
17	5.2.3.2 Los Angeles	20
18	5.2.3.3 Private Deiendants	20
19	5.2.4 Eagle Rock Basin Rights	2.0
80	5.2.4.1 Los Angeles	20
21	5.2.4.2 Private Defendants	21
22	A. DUMOTIONS	2,0
23	6.1 Each and Every Defendant	21
24	6.2 Each and Every Private Defendant	21
25	6.3 Defaulting and Disclaiming Parties	21
26	6.4 Glendale	21
27	6-5 Burbank	212
28	6.6 San Fernando	22
	111.	

1		P	age
2		6.7 Crescenta Valley	22
3		6.8 Los Angeles	22
4		6.9 Non-Consumptive and Mipimal Consumptive Use Parties	22
5	7.	CONTINUING JURISDICTION	23
6		7.1 Jurisdiction Reserved	2.3
7	8.	WATERMASTER	23
ន		8.1 Designation and Appointment	23
9		8.1.) Watermaster Appointment	23
10		8.2 Powers and Duties	24
11		8.2.1 Scope	24
12		8.2.2 Requirement for Reports, Information and	
13		Records	24
14		8.2.3 Requirement of Measuring Devices	24
15		8.2.4 Inspection by Watermaster	24
16		8.2.5 Policies and Procedures	24
17		8.2.6 Data Collection	25
18	1	8.2.7 Cooperation With Other Agencies	25
19	ĺ	8.2.8 Accounting for Mon-consumptive Use	25
20	:	8.2.9 Accounting for Accumulated import Return	
2). 2		Water and Stored Water	25
22		8.2.10 Recalculation of Safe Yield	26
23		8.2.11 Watermaster Report	2 G
24	1	8.2.12 Active Party List	2.6
25		8.3 Administrative Committee	26
26		8.3.1 Committee to be Formed	26
27		8.3.2 Organization and Voting	27
28	i	8.3.3 Function and Powers	27
!		iv.	
l		Page	
-----	---	------	
2	8.4 Watermaster Budget and Assessments	27	
з	8.4.1 Walermaster's Proposed Budget	27	
4	8.4.2 Objections and Review	28	
5	8.4.3 Notice of Assessment	2.8	
6	8.4.4 Payment	28	
7	8.5 Review of Watermaster Activities	28	
8	0.5.1 Review Procedures	28	
9	8.5.1.1 Noticed Motion	28	
3.0	8.5.1.2 De Novo Nature of Procoedings	28	
ΪĪ	8.5.1.3 Decision	29	
12	9. PHYSICAE SOLUTION	29	
13,	9.1 Circumstances Indicating Need for Physical Solution	29	
14	9.2 Prior Stipulated Judgment	29	
16	9.2.1 Eagle Rock Basin Parties	30	
16	9.2.2 Non-Consumptive or Minimal-Consumptive		
17	Operations	30	
18	9.2.3 Abandoned Operations	31	
19	9.3 Private Defendants	31	
20	9.3.1 Private Defendants and Appropriate Cities	32	
81	9.3.2 Reports and Accounting	32	
22	9.3.3 Paymont	32	
23	9.3.3.1 Los Angeles	32	
84	9.3.3.2 Glendale or Burbank	32	
25	9.4 Glendale and Burbank	33	
26	9.5 San Fernando	34	
27	9.6 Effective Dáte	34	
28	10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	34	
	V -		

1 Pag 2 10.1 Designation of Address for Notice And Service . 34 3 10.2 Notice of Change in Hydrologic Condition 35 4
2 10.1 Designation of Address for Notice and Service . 34 3 10.2 Notice of Change in Hydrologic Condition 35 4 Sylmar Basin
3 10.2 Notice of Change in Hydrologic Condition 4 Sylmar Basin
4 Sylmar Basin 35 5 10.3 Judgment Binding on Successors 35 6 10.4 Costs 35 7 ATTACHMENTS 36 8 ATTACHMENTS 37 9 "A" Map entitled "Upper Los Angeles River Area", 36 10 Bhowing separate basins therein 36 11 "B" List of "Dismissed Parties" 37 12 "C" List of "Disclaiming Parties" 39 13 "D" List of "Disclaiming Parties" 41 "E" List of "Prior Stipulated Judgment" 42 14 "E" List of "Stipulated Non-consamptive or Minimal- 6 15 "F" List of "Stipulated Non-consamptive or Minimal- 6 16 Onsamptive Ose Practices" 43 17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 45 18 Private Defendents" 45 19 "II" Mab entitled "Public Arearey Water Service Areas" 45
5 10.3 Judgment Binding on Successors
6 10.4 Costs 3% 7 7 8 ATTACHMENTS 9 "A" Map entitled "Upper Los Angeles River Area", 10 Showing separate basins therein 11 "B" List of "Dismissed Parties" 12 "B" List of "Defaulted Parties" 13 "D" List of "Disclaiming Parties 14 "E" List of "Prior Stipulated Judgment" 15 "P" List of "Stipulated Non-consumptive or Minimal- 16 Consumptive Use Practices" 17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 18 "Private Defendants" 19 "II" Map entitled "Public Areney Water Service Areas"
7 8 ATTACHMENTS 9 "A" Map entitled "Upper Los Angeles River Area", 36 10 Showing separate basins therein
8 ATTACHMENTS 9 "A" Map entitled, "Upper Los Angeles River Area", 10 Showing separate basins therein
9 "A" Map entitled "Upper LOB Angeles River Area", 860wing separate basins therein
10 Showing separate basins therein
11 "B" List of "Dismissed Parties" 37 18 "C" List of "Defaulted Parties" 39 13 "D" List of "Disclaiming Parties 41 14 "S" List of "Prior Stipulated Judgment" 42 15 "P" List of "Stipulated Non-consumptive or Minimal- 43 16 Consumptive Use Practices" 43 17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 45 18 Private Defendents" 45 19 "H" Map entitled "Public Accept Water Service Areas" 45
12 "C" List of "Defaulted Parties"
<pre>13 "D" List of "Disclaiming Parties</pre>
14 "E" List of "Prior Stipulated Judgment" 42 15 "E" List of "Stipulated Non-consumptive or Minimal- 43 16 Consumptive Use Practices" 43 17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 43 18 Private Defendants" 44 19 "H" Map entitled "Public Agency Water Service Areas" 45
<pre>15 "F" List of "Stipulated Non-consumptive or Minimal- 16 consumptive Use Practices"</pre>
16 Consumptive Use Practices" 43 17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 43 18 Private Defendants" 45 19 "H" Map entitled "Public Access Water Service Areas" 45
<pre>17 "G" Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 18 Private Defendants"</pre>
18 Private Defendants" 45 19 "H" Man entitled "Public Access Water Service Areas" 45
19 "II" May optitled "Public Access Water Service Armas"
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
vi.

Ţ	I. RECITATS
2	This matter was originally tried before the Honorable Edmund
3	M. MOUR, without jury, commencing on March 1, 1966, and concluding
4	with entry of Findings, Conclusions and Judgment on March 14,
5'	1968, after more than 181 trial days. Los Angeles appealed from
6	said judgment and the California Supreme Court, by unanimous
7	Opinion, (14 Cal. 3d 199) reversed and remanded the case; after
8	trial of some remaining issues on remand, and consistent with the
9	opinion of the Supreme Court, and pursuant to stipulations, the
10	Court signed and filed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.
11	Good cause thereby appearing,
12	IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED;
13	
14	2. DEFINITIONS AND ATTACHMENTS
15	2.1 <u>Definitions of Terms</u> . As used in this Judgment, the
16 j	following terms shall have the meanings herein set forth:
17	 <u>Basin</u> or <u>Ground Water Basin</u> A subsurface geo-
18	logic formation with defined boundary conditions, containing
19	a ground water reservoir, which is capable of yielding a sig-
20	pilicant quantity of ground water.
21	[2] <u>Burbank</u> Defendant City of Burbank.
22	[3] <u>Crescenta Valley</u> Defendant Crescenta Valley
23	County Water District.
24	[4] <u>Colorado Aqueduct</u> The aqueduct facilities and
29	system owned and operated by MWD for the importation of water
26	from the Colorado River to its service area.
27	[5] <u>Deep Rock</u> Defendant Evelyn M. Pendleton, dba
28	Deep Rock Artesian Water Company.

-1-

[6] <u>Delivered Water</u> -- Water utilized in a water supply distribution system, including reclaimed water.

٠,

i.

.

1

2

3

4

5

6

 $^{\prime}$

8

20

28

[7] <u>Eagle Rock Basin</u> -- The separate ground water basin underlying the area shown as such on Attachment "A".

(8) Extract or <u>Extraction</u> -- To produce ground water, or its production, by pumping or any other means.

[9] <u>Fiscal Year</u> -- July 1 through June 30 of the following calendar year.

9 [10] <u>Foremost</u> -- Defendant Foremost Foods Company, 10 successor to defendant Sparkletts Drinking Water Corp.

[11] [11] Forest Lawn -- Collectively, defendants Forest Lawn Cemetery Association, Forest Lawn Company, Forest Lawn Memorial=Park Association, and American Security and Fidelity Corporation,

[12] <u>Gage F-57</u> -- The surface stream gaging station
operated by Los Angeles County Flood Control District and
situated in Los Angeles Narrows immediately upstream from the
intersection of the Los Angeles River and Arroyo Seco, at
which point the surface outflow from ULARA is measured.

[13] Glendale -- Defendant City of Glendale.

21 [14] <u>Ground Water</u> -- Water beneath the surface of the 22 ground and within the zone of saturation.

[15] <u>Horsch & Plumb</u> -- Detendants David and Eleanor λ.
 Nersch and Gerald B. and Lucille Plumb, successors to
 Wollesley and DuckWorth defendants.

26[16] Import Return Water -- Ground water derived from27percolation attributable to delivered imported water.

[17] Imported Water -- Water used within ULARA, which

-2-

is derived from sources outside said watershed. Said term l 2 does not include inter-basin transfers wholly within ULARA. 3 [18] In Liew Storage -- The act of accumulating ground Water in a basin by intentional reduction of extractions of 4 5 ground water which a party has a right to extract. 6 · Lockheed -- Defendant Lockheed Aircraft Corporation. (19)7 [20] Los Angeles -- Plaintiff City of Los Angeles, 8 acting by and through its Department of Water and Power. 9 [2]] Los Angeles Narvows -- The physiographic area 10 northerly of Gage P-57 bounded on the cast by the San Rafael 11 and Repetto Hills and on the west by the Elysian Hills, 12through which all natural outflow of the San Fernando Basin 13 and the Lup Angeles River flow on route to the Pacific Ocean. 14 [22] MWD -- The Metropolitan Water District of Southern 15 California, a public agency of the State of California. 16 [23] Native Safe Yield -- That portion of the sale 17 yield of a basin derived from native waters. 18 [24] Native Waters -- Surface and ground waters derived 19 from precipitation within GLARA. 20 Overdraft -- A condition which exists when the [25] 21 total annual extractions of ground water from a basin exceed 22 its safe yield, and when any temporary surplus has been 23 removed. 24[26] Owens-Mono Aqueduct -- The aqueduct facilities 25 Owned and Operated by Los Angeles for importation to ULARA 26 water from the Owens River and Mono Basin watersheds easterly 27 of the Sierra-Nevada in Central California. 28Private Defendants -- Collectively, all of those [27]

ſ

-3-

defendants who are parties, other than Glendale, Burbank, San Fernando and Crescenta Valley.

[28] <u>Reclaimed Water</u> -- Water which, as a result of processing of waste water, is made suitable for and used for a controlled beneficial use.

[29] Regulatory Storage Capacity -- The volume of storage capacity of San Fernando Basin which is required to regulate the safe yield of the basin, without significant loss, during any long-term base period of water supply.

[30] <u>Rising Water</u> -- The effluent from a ground water basin which appears as surface flow.

[31] <u>Rising Water Outflow</u> -- The quantity of rising water which occurs within a ground water basin and does not rejoin the ground water body or is not captured prior to flowing past a point of discharge from the basin.

[32] <u>Safe Yield</u> -- The maximum quantity of water which
[32] <u>Safe Yield</u> -- The maximum quantity of water which
[32] can be extracted annually from a ground water basin under a
[33] given set of cultural conditions and extraction patterns,
[34] based on the long-term supply, without causing a continuing
[36] reduction of water in storage.

21 ||

22

23

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

(33) San Fernando -- Defendant City of San Fernando.

[34] <u>San Fernando Basin</u> -- The separate ground water basin underlying the area shown as such on Attachment "A".

 24
 [35]
 Sportsman's Lodge
 -- Defendant Sportsman's Lodge

 25
 Banquet Association.

26 [36] <u>Stored Water</u> -- Ground water in a basin consisting
 27 of either (1) imported or reclaimed water which is inten 28 tionally spread, or (2) safe yield water which is allowed to

-4-

1 accumulate by Th Lieu Storage. Said ground waters are dis-2 tinguished and separately accounted for in a ground water. 3 basin, notwithstanding that the same may be physically com-4 Mingled with other waters in the basis. 5 Sylmar Basin -- The separate ground water basin [37] 6 underlying the area indicated as such on Attachment "A". 7 Temporary Surplus -- The amount of ground water [38] 8 which would be required to be removed from a basin in order 9 to avoid waste under safe yield operation. 10 Toluca Lake -- Defendant Toluca Lake Property [39] 11 Owners Association. 12 (40) ULARA or Upper Los Angeles River Area --- The Upper 13 Los Angeles River watershed, being the surface drainage area 14 of the Los Angeles River tributary to Gage F-57. 15 [42] Underlying Pueblo Waters -- Native ground waters 16 in the San Fernando Basin which underlie safe yield and 17 stored waters. 38 [42] Valhallo -- Collectively, Valhalla Properties, 39 Valhalla Memorial Park, Valhalla Mausoleum Park. 20 Van de Kamp -- Defendant Van de Kamp's Holland [43] 23, Dutch Bakers, Inc. 22 Verdugo Basin -- The separate ground water basin [44] 23 underlying the area shown as such on Attachment "A". 24[45] Water Year -- October 1 through September 30 of 29 the following calendar year. 26 Geographic Names, not herein specifically defined, are used to 27refer to the places and locations thereof as shown on Attachment "A". 28 2.2 List of Attachments. There are attached hereto the

-5-

following documents, which are by this reference incorporated in 1 this Judgment and specifically referred to in the text hereof: а "A" -- Map entitled "Opper Los Angeles River Area", 3 showing Separate Busins therein. 4 "B" -- List of "Dismissed Parties." 5 "C" -- List of "Defaulted Parties." 6 "D" -- List of "Disclaiming Parties." 7 "E" -- List of "Prior Stipulated Judgments." 8 "F" -- List of "Stipulated Non-Consumptive or Minimal-9 Consumptive Use Practices." 10 "G" -- Map entitled "Place of Use and Service Area of 11 Privato Defendants." 12 "H" -- Map ontitled "Public Agency Water Service Areas." 13 14 3. PARTIES 15 16 3.1 Defaulting and Disclaiming Detendants. Each of the defendants listed on Attachment "C" and Attachment "D" is without 17 any right, title or interest in, or to any claim to extract ground 18 water from ULARA or any of the separate ground water basing thereing 19 203.2 No Rights Other Than as Herein Declared. No party to 21 this action has any rights in or to the waters of ULARA except to 22. the extent declared herein. 23 DECLARATION RE GEOLOGY AND HYDROLOGY 24 4. 4.1 Ceology. 25 26 4.1.1 ULARA. CLARA (or Upper Los Angeles River Area), 27is the watershed or surface drainage area tributary to the 28. LOS Angeles River at Cage P-57. Said watershed contains a

-6-

1 total of 329,000 acres, consisting of approximately 123,000 2 seres of valley fill area and 206,000 acres of hill and 3 mountain area, located primarily in the County of Los Angeles, 4 with a small portion in the County of Ventura. Its boundaries 5 are shown on Atlachment "A". The San Gabriel Mountains form 6 the northerly portion of the watershed, and from them two 7 major washes--the Pacoima and the Tujunga--discharge southerly H, Tujunga Wash traverses the valley fill in a southerly direc-9 tion and joins the Los Angeles River, which follows an east-10 erly course along the base of the Santa Monica Mountains 11 before it turns south through the Los Angeles Narrows. The 12 waters of Pacoima Wash as and when they flow out of Sylmar 13 Basin are tributary to San Fernando Basin. Lesser tributary 14 washes run from the Simi Hills and the Santa Susana Mountains 15in the westerly portion of the watershed. Other minor washes, 16 including Verdugo Wash, drain the easterly portion of the 17 watershed which consists of the Verdugo Mountains, the Elysian 18 San Rafael and Repetto Hills. Each of said washes is a non-19 perennial stream whose flood flows and rising waters are 20paturally tributary to the Los Angeles River. The Los Angeles, 21 River within ULARA and most of said tributary natural washes 2zhave been replaced, and in some instances relocated, by 23 concrete-lined flood control channels. There are 85.3 miles 24 of such channels within ULARA, 62% of which have lined con-25 crete bottoms.

4.1.2 <u>San Fernando Basin</u>. San Fernando Basin is the
 major ground water basin in ULARA. It underties 1)2,047 acres
 and is located in the area shown as such on Attachment "A".

-7-

l Boundary conditions of the San Fernando Basin consist on the 2 east and northeast of alluvial contacts with non-waterbearing 3 series along the San Rafael Hills and Verdugo Mountains and 4 the Santa Susana Mountains and Simi Hills on the northwest and 5 west and the Santa Monica Mountains on the south. Water-6 bearing material in said basin extends to at least 1000 feet 7 below the surtace. Rising water outflow from the San Pernando 8 % Basin passes its downstream and southerly boundary in the 9 vicinity of Gage F-57, which is located in Los Angeles Narrows 10 about 300 foct upstream from the Figueroa Street (Dayton רנ Street) Bridge. The San Fernando Basin is separated from the 12 Sylmar Basin on the north by the eroded south 1100 of the 13 Little Tujunga Syncline which causes a break in the ground 3.4 water surface of about 40 to 50 feet.

15 4,1.3 Sylmar Basin. Sylmar Basin underlies 5,565 acres 16 and is located in the area shown as such on Altachment "A". 17 Water-bearing material is said basin extends to depths in ex-18 coss of 12,000 feet below the surface. Boundary conditions of 19 Sylmar Basin consist of the San Gabriel Mountains on the north 20a topographic divide in the valley fill between the Mission 21 Hills and San Gabriel Mountains on the west, the Mission Hills 22on the southwest, Upper Lopez Canyon Saugus Formation on the 23 east, along the east bank of Pacoima Wash, and the croded 24south limb of the Little Tujunga Syncline on the south.

4.1.4 <u>Verdugo Basin</u>. Verdugo Basin underlies 4.400 acres
 and is located in the area shown as such on Attachment "A".
 Boundary conditions of Verdugo Basin consist of the San
 Gabriel Mountains on the north, the Verdugo Mountains on the

-8-

south and southwest, the San Rafael Hills on the southeast and the topographic divide on the east between the drainage area. that is tributary to the Tujunga Wash to the west and Verdugo Wash to the east, the ground water divide on the west between Monk Hill-Raymond Basin and the Verdugo Basin on the east and a submorged dam constructed at the mouth of Verdugo Canyon on the south.

8 4.1.5 Eagle Rock Basin. Eagle Rock Basin underlies 807 9 acres and is located in the area shown as such on Attachment "^". Boundary conditions of Engle Rock Basin consist of the San Rafael Hills on the north and west and the Repetto Hills 12 on the east and south with a small alluvial area to the southeast consisting of a topographic divide.

4.2 Hydrology.

l

2

З

41

5 I

6

7

10

11

13

14

15 4.2.1 Water Supply. The water supply of ULARA consists 16 of native waters, derived trom precipitation on the valley 17 floor and runoff from the hill and mountain areas, and of im- : 18 ported water from outside the watershed. The major source of 19 imported water has been from the Owens-Mone Aqueduct, but 20. additional supplies have been and are now heing imported 21. through MWD from its Colorado Aqueduct and the State Aqueduct.

222 4.2.2 Ground Water Movement. The major water-bearing 23 formation in ULARA is the valley fill material bounded by 24 hills and mountains which surround it. Topographically, the 25valley-fill area has a generally uniform grade in a southerly 26 and costerly direction with the slope gradually decreasing 27 from the base of the hills and mountains to the surface 28 drainage outlet at Gauge F=57. The valley fill material is a

- 9 -

hoterogeneous mixture of clays, silts, sand and gravel laid 1 21 down as alluvium. The valley fill is of greatest permeability along and easterly of Pacoima and Tujunga Washes and generally 3 throughout the eastern portion of the valley fill area, 4 5 except in the vicinity of Glendale where it is of lesser 6 permuability. Ground water occurs mainly within the valley 7 fill, with only negligible amounts occurring in hill and 8 mountain areas. There is no significant ground water movement 9 from the hill and mountain formations into the valley fill. Available geologic data do not indicate that there are any sources of native ground water other than those derived from 12 precipitation. Ground water movement in the valley fill 13 generally follows the surface topography and drainage except.).4 where geologic or man-made impediments occur or where the 15 natural flow has been modified by extensive pumping.

10

11

3.6 4.2.3 Separate Ground Water Basins. The physical and 17 geologic characteristics of each of the ground water basins, 18 Eagle Rock, Sylmar, Verdugo and San Fernando, cause impedi-19 monts to inter-basin ground water flow whereby there is 20 created separate underground reservoirs. Each of said basins 21 contains a common source of water supply to parties extracting 22 Ground water from each of said basins. The amount of under-23 flow from SylMar Basin, Verdugo Basin and Eagle Rock Basin to 24 San Formando Rasin is relatively small, and on the average has 25 been approximately 540 acre feet per year from the Sylmar 26Basin; 80 acre fect per year from Verdugo Basin; and 50 acre 27 feet per year from Eagle Rock Basin. Each has physiographic, 28 geologic and hydrologic differences, one from the other, and

-10 -

cach moets the hydrologic definition of "basin." The extractions of water in the respective basins affect the other water users within that basin but do not significantly or materially affect the ground water levels in any of the other basins. The underground reservoirs of Eagle Rock, Verdugo and Sylmar Basins are independent of one another and of the San Fernando Basin.

1

2

з

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1.4

15

16

17

4.2.4 <u>Safe Yield and Native Safe Yield</u>. The safe yield and native safe yield, stated in acre feet, of the three largest basins for the year 1964-65 was as follows:

Banin	<u>Safo Yield</u>	Native Safe Yield
San Fernando	90,680	43,660
Sylmax	6,210	3,850
Verduge	7,150	3,590

The safe yield of Magle Rock Basin is derived from imported Water delivered by Los Angeles. There is no measurable native safe yield.

4.2.5 Separate Basins -- Separate Rights. The rights
 of the parties to extract ground water within ULARA are
 separate and distinct as within each of the several ground
 water basing within said watershed.

4.2.6 <u>Bydrologic Condition of Basins</u>. The several
 basing within ULARA are in varying hydrologic conditions,
 which result in different legal consequences.

4.2.6.1 <u>San Fernando Basin</u>. The first full year
 of overdrait in San Fernando Basin was 1954~55. It
 remained in overdraft continuously until 1968, when an
 injunction herein became effective. Thereafter, the

-11-

basin was placed on sale yield operation. There is no surplus ground water available for appropriation or overlying use from San Fernando Basin.

4.2.6.2 Sylmar <u>Basin</u>. Sylmar Basin is not in Overdraft. There remains sate yield over and above the present reasonable beneficial overlying uses, from which safe yield the appropriative rights of Los Angeles and San Fernando may be and have been exercised.

9 4-2.6.3 Verdugo Basin. Verdugo Basin was in 10 overdraft for more than five consecutive years prior to 11 1968. Said basin is not currently in overdraft, due to decreased extractions by Glendale and Crescenta Valley on 12 13 account of poor water quality. However, the combined 14 appropriative and prescriptive rights of Glendale and 15 Crescenta Valley are equivalent to the safe yield of the 16 Basin. No private overlying or appropriative rights 17 exist in Verduge Basin.

4.2.6.4 <u>Eagle Rock Basin</u>. The only measurable water supply to Eagle Rock Basin is import return water by reason of importations by Los Angeles. Extractions by Foremost and Deep Rock under the prior stipulated judgments have utilized the safe yield of Eagle Rock Basin, and have maintained hydrologic equilibrium therein.

26

27

28

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

5. DECLARATION OF RIGHTS

- 5.) Right to Native Waters.
 - 5.1.1 Los Angeles River and San Fernando Basin.

5.1.1.1 Los Angeles' Pueblo Right. Los Angeles, as the successor to all rights, claims and powers of the Spanish Pueblo de Los Angeles in regard to water rights, is the owner of a prior and paramount pueblo right to the surface waters of the Los Angeles River and the native ground waters of San Pernando Basin to meet its reasonable beneficial needs and for its inhabitants.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

5.1.1.2 Extent of Pueblo Right. Pursuant to said pueblo right, Los Angeles is entitled to satisfy its needs and those of its inhabitants within its boundaries as from time to time modified. Water which is in fact used for pueblo right purposes is and shall be deemed needed for such purposes.

5.1.1.3 Pueblo Right -- Nature and Priority of 14 16 Exercise. The pueblo right of Los Angeles is a prior and 16 paramount right to all of the surface waters of the Los 17 Angeles River, and native ground water in San Fernando Basin, to the extent of the reasonable mode and uses of 18 Los Angelos and its inhabitants throughout the corporate 1920 area of Los Angeles, as its boundaries may exist from 21 time to time. To the extent that the Basin contains 2Bnative waters and imported waters, it is presumed that 23 the first water extracted by Los Angeles in any water 24 year is pursuant to its pueblo right, up to the amount 25 of the mative safe yield. The next extractions by Los 26Angeles in any year are deemed to be from import roturn 27 water, followed by stored water, to the full extent of 28 Los Angeles' right to such import return water and stored

-13-

2 water. In the event of need to meet water requirements 2 of its inhabitants, Los Angeles has the additional right, 3 pursuant to its pueblo right, withdraw temperarily from 4 storage Underlying Pueblo Waters, subject to an obliga-5 tion to replace such water as soon as practical. 6 5-1.1.4 Rights of Other Parties. No other party 7 to this action has any right in or to the surface waters 8 of the Los Angeles River or the native safe yield of the 9 San Fernando Bagin. 10 5.1.2 Sylmar Basin Rights. 11 3-1.2.1 NO Pueblo Rights. The pueblo right of 12 Los Angeles does not extend to or include ground waters 13 in Sylmar Banin. 14 5.1.2.2 Overlying Rights, Defendants Moordigian 15 and Hersch & Plumb own lands overlying Sylmar Basin and 16have a prior correlative right to extract native waters 17 from said Basin for reasonable honoficial uses on their 18 said overlying lands. Sold right is appurtement to said 19 | overlying lands and water extracted purshant thereto may 20 not be exported from said lands nor can said right be 21. transforred or assigned separate and apart from said 22 overlying lands, 23 5.1.2.3 Appropriative Rights of San Fernando 24and Los Angeles. San Fernando and Los Angeles own 25 appropriative rights, of equal priority, to extract and 26 put to reasonable beneficial use for the mode of said 27

citios and their inhabitants, native waters of the Sylmar Basin in excess of the exercised reasonable

28

-14-

1 beneficial needs of overlying users. Said appropriative 2 rights are: San Fernando 3,580 acre feet З Los Angelos 1,560 acre fect. 4 5 5.1.2.4 No Prescription. The Sylmar Basin is not 6 presently in a state of overdraft and no rights by 7 prescription exist in said Basin against any overlying 8 or appropriative water user. 9 5.1.2.5 Other Parties. No other party to this 10 action owns or possesses any right to extract mative. בנ ground waters from the Sylmar Basin. 12 5.1.3 Verdugo Basin Rights. 13 5.1.3.1 No Fueblo Rights. The pueblo right of 14 Los Angoles does not extend to or include ground water 15 in Verdugo Basin. 16 5.1.3.2 Prescriptive Rights of Glendale and 17 Crescenta Valley. Glendale and Crescenta Valley own 18 | prescriptive rights as against each other and against 19 § ali private overlying or appropriative parties in the 20 I Verdugo Basin to extract, with equal priority, the 21 following quantities of water from the combined safe. 22 yield of native and imported waters in Verduga Basin: 23 Glendale 3,856 acre feet 24Crescenta Valley 3,294 acre feet. 25 5.1.3.3 Other Parties. No other party to this 26 action owns or possesses any right to extract dative. 27 ground waters from the Verdugo Basin. 28 -15-

5.1.4 Eagle Rock Basin Rights. 1 5.1.4.1 No Faeblo Rights. Whe pueblo right of 2 Los Angeles does not extend to or include ground water 3 in Eagle Rock Basin, 4 5.1.4.2 No Rights in Native Waters. The Eagle 5 Rock Basin has no significant or measurable pative safe 6 yield and no parties have or assert any right or claim 7 to native waters in said Basin. 8 Rights to Imported Waters. 5.2 9 5.2.1 San Fernando Basin Rights. 105.2.1.1 Rights to Recapture Import Return Water. 11 Los Angeles, Glendale, Burbank and San Fernando have each 12 caused imported waters to be brought into ULARA and to be' 13 delivered to lands overlying the San Fernando Basin, with 14 the result that percolation and return flow of such 15 delivered water has caused imported waters to become a 16 part of the safe yield of San Fernando Basin. Each of 17 said parties has a right to extract from San Fernando 18 Basin that portion of the safe yield of the Basin attri-19 hutable to such import return waters. 20 Rights to Store and Recapture Stored 5.2.1.2 21 Water. Los Angeles has heretoiore spread imported water 22 directly in San Fernando Basin. Los Angeles, Clendale, 23 Burbank and San Fernando each have rights to store water 24in San Fernando Basin by direct spreading or in licu-25 practices. To the extent of any future spreading or in 26 lieu storage of import water or reclaimed water by Los. 27° Angeles, Glendale, Burbank or San Fernando, the party 28

-16-

causing said water to be so stored shall have a right to extract an equivalent amount of ground water from San Fernando Basin. The right to extract water: attributable to such storage practices is an undivided right to a quantity of water in San Fernando Banin equal to the amount of such Shored Water to the credit of any party, os reflected in Watermaster records.

1

2

3

4

6

6

7

9

10

11

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 İ

8 5.2.1.3 Calculation of Import Return Water and Stored Water Credits. The extraction rights of Los Angeles, Glendale, Burbank and San Vernando in San-Fornando Basin in any year, insofar as such rights are 12based upon import return water, shall only extend to the 13. amount of any accumulated import return water credit of such party by reason of imported water delivered after September 30, 1977. The annual credit for such import return water shall be calculated by Watermaster based. upon the amount of delivered water during the preceding water year, as follows: 20.8% of all delivered water Los Angelent (including roclaimed water) to valley fill lands of San Pernando Basin.

> San Fernando: 26.3% of all imported and reclaimed water delivered to valley-fill lands of San Fernando Basin.

> > 20.0% of all delivered water (including reclaimed water) to San Pernando Basin and its tributary hill and mountain areas.

-17-

Burbank:

ı° Clendales 20.0% of all delivered water (including reclaimed water) to 2 San Fernando Basin and its tributary hill and mountain 3 areas (i.e., total delivered water, [including reclaimed water], less 105% of total 4 sales by Clendale in Verduge 5 Basin and its tributary hills). in calculating Stored Water credit, by reason of direct 6 $\overline{7}$ spreading of imported or reclaimed water, Watermaster 8 shall assume that 100% of such spread water reached the 9 ground water in the year spread. 10 5.2.1.4 Cummulative Import Return Water Credits. 11 Any import return water which is not extracted in a given 12water year shall be carried over, separately accounted 13 tor, and maintained as a cummulative credit for purposes 14 of future extractions. 3,5 5.2.1.5 Overextractions. In addition to extrac-16 tions of stored water, Clendale, Burbank or San Pernando 17 may, in any water year, extract from San Fernando Basin 18 an amount not exceeding 10% of such party's last annual 19.1credit for import return water, subject, however, to an 20 obligation to replace such overextraction by reduced 21 extractions during the next succeeding water year. Any 22 such overextraction which is not so replaced shall con-23 stitute physical solution water, which shall be deemed 24to have been extracted in said subsequent water year. 25 5-2-1.6 Private Defendant. No private defendant 26 is entitled to extract waler from the San Fernando Basin 27 On account of the importation of water thereto by over-28 lying public entities.

-18-

5.2.2 Sylmar Basin Rights.

1

2

3

 $\mathbf{4}$

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

1.4

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

24

27

5.2.2.1 Rights to Recapture Import Return Waters. LOS Angeles and San Fernando have caused imported waters to be brought into ULARA and delivered to lands overlying the Sylmar Basin with the result that percelation and return flow of such delivered water has caused imported waters to become a part of the sale yield of Sylmar Basin. Los Angeles and San Fernando are entitled to recover from Sylmar Basin such imported return waters. In calculating the annual entitlement to recapture such import return water, Los Angeles and San Fernando shall be entitled to 35.7% of the preceding water year's imported water delivered by such party to lands overlying Sylmar Basin. Thus, by way of example, in 1976-77, Los Angeles was entitled to extract 2370 acre leet of ground water from Sylmar Basin, based on delivery to lands overlying said Basin of 6640 acre feet during 1975-76. The quantity of San Fernando's imported water to, and the return flow therefrom, in the Sylmar Basin in the past has been of such minimal quantities that it has not been calculated.

5.2.2.2 Rights to Store and Recapture Stored 2233 Los Angeles and San Pernando each have the right Water. 23 to store water in Sylmar Basin equivalent to their rights in San Fernando Basin under paragraph 5,2,1,2 hereot.

25 5.2.2.3 Carry Over. Said right to recapture 26 stored water, import return water and other safe yield waters to which a party is entitled, if not exercised in 28 A given year, can be carried over for not to exceed five

-19-

l years, it the underflow through Sylmar Notch does not exceed 400 acro feet per year. 2 5.2.2.4 Private Defendants. No privale defendant з is entitled to extract water from within the Sylmar Basin 4 on account of the importation of water thereto by over-5 lying public entities. 6 5.2.3 Verdugo Basin Rights. $\overline{7}$ 8 5.2.3.1 Glendale and Crescenta Valley. Glendale 9 and Crescenta Valley own appropriative and prescriptive 10 rights in and to the total safe yield of Verdugo Basin, 11 without regard as to the portions thereof derived from 12 native water and from delivered imported waters, notwith-13 standing that both of said parties have caused waters to 14 be imported and delivered on lands overlying Verdugo 15 Basin. Said aggregate rights are as declared in Para-16 graph 5.1.3.2 of these Conclusions. 17 5.2.3.2 Los Angeles. Los Angeles may have a right to recapture its import return waters by reason of 18 19 delivered import water in the Dasin, based upon imports 20. during and after water year 1977-78, upon application to 21 Watermaster not later than the year following such im-BBport and on subsequent order after hearing by the Court. 23 5.2.3.3 Private Defendants. No private defendant, 24as such, is entitled to extract water from within the E5Verdugo Basin on account of the importation of water 26thereto by overlying public entities. 27 5.2.4 Eagle Rock Basin Rights. 28. 5.2.4.1 Los Angeles. Los Angeles has caused

-20-

1 imported water to be delivered for use on lands overlying Eagle Rock Basin and return flow from said delivered 2 imported water constitutes the entire sale yield of Eagle: 31 Rock Basin. Los Angeles has the right to extract or 4 5 cause to be extracted the entire safe yield of Eagle Rock Basin. 6 7 5.2.4.2 Private Defendants. No private defend-8 ants have a right to extract water from within Eagle Rock 9 Basin, except pursuant to the physical solution herein. 10 13 6... INJUNCTIONS 12 Each of the parties named or referred to in this Part 6, its 13 officers, agents, employees and officials is, and they are, hereby 3.4 ENJOINED and RESTRAINED from doing or causing to be done any of the 15 acts herein specified: 16 6.1 Each and Every Defendant -- from diverting the surface 17 waters of the Los Angeles River or extracting the native waters of 18 SAN FERNANDO BASIN, or in any manner interfering with the prior and. 19paramount pueblo right of Los Angeles in and to such waters, 20. except pursuant to the physical solution herein decreed. 211 6.2 Each and Every Private Defendant -- from extracting 28.) ground water from the SAN FERNANDO, VERDUGO, or EAGLE ROCK BASINS, 23 except pursuant to physical solution provisions hereof. 24 6.3 Defaulting and Disclaiming Parties (listed in Attachments 25 "C" and "D") -- from divorting or extracting water within ULARA, 26except pursuant to the physical solution herein decreed. 27 6.4 Clendale -- from extracting ground water from SAN 28. FERNANDO BASIN in any water year in quantities exceeding its

-21-

1 import return water credit and any stored water credit, except 2 pursuant to the physical solution; and from extracting water from 3 VERDUGO BASIN in excess of its appropriative and prescriptive right 4 declared herein.

6.5 <u>Burbank</u> -- from extracting ground water from SAN FERNANDO
6 BASIN in any water year in quantities exceeding its import return
7 water credit and any stored water credit, except pursuant to the
8 physical solution decreed herein.

9 6.6 <u>San Fernando</u> -- from extracting ground water from SAN 10 FERNANDO BASIN in any water year in quantities exceeding its 11 import voturn water credit and any stored water credit, except 12 pursuant to the physical solution herein decreed.

13 6.7 Crescenta Valley -- from extracting ground water from 14 VERDUGO HASIN in any year in excess of its appropriative and 15 prescriptive right declared herein.

16 6.8 Los Angeles -- from extracting ground water from SAN 17 FERNANDO BASIN in any year in excess of the native safe yield, 18 plus any import return water credit and stored water credit of said 19 city; provided, that where the needs of Los Angeles require the 20 extraction of Underlying Puchlo Waters, Los Angeles may extract 21 such water subject to an obligation to replace such excess as seen 22 as practical; and from extracting ground water from VERDUGO BASIN. 23. in excess of any credit for import return water which Los Angeles. 24may acquire by reason of delivery of imported water for use over-25 lying said basin, as hereinafter confirmed on application to 26 Watermaster and by subsequent order of the Court.

27 6.9 <u>Non-consumptive and Minimal Consumptive Use Parties</u>. 28 The parties listed in Attachment "P" are enjoined from extracting

-22-

1 water from San Fernando Basin, except in accordance with practices. specified in Attachment "F", or pursuant to the physical solution herein decreed. 2 3 4 7. CONTINUING JURISDICTION 5 Jurisdiction Reserved. Full jurisdiction, power and 7.1 authority are retained by and reserved to the Court for purposes of 6 7 enabling the Court upon application of any party or of the Water-8 master by motion and upon at least 30 days' notice thereof, and after hearing thereon, to make such further or supplemental orders 9 10 or directions as may be necessary or appropriate, for interpretation, enforcement or carrying out of this Judgment, and to modify, 11 12amend or amplify any of the provisions of this Judgment or to add 13 to the provisions thereof consistent with the rights herein decreeds provided, however, that no such modification, amendment or ampli-14 15 fication shall result in a change in the provisions of Section 16 5.2.1.3 or 9.2.1 hereot. 17 18 8. WATERMASTER 19Designation and Appointment. 8.1 20 8.1.1 Watermaster Qualification and Appointment. ٨ 21 gualified hydrologist, acceptable to all active public agency 22 parties hereto, will be appointed by subsequent order of the 23 Court to assist the Court in its administration and enforce-24ment of the provisions of this Judgment and any subsequent. 25 orders of the Court entered pursuant to the Court's continuing 26 jurisdiction. Such Watermaster shall serve at the pleasure of 27the Court, but may be removed or replaced on motion of any 28 party after hearing and showing of good cause.

-23-

1

2

З

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

18

19

20

21

2B

23

24

25

26

27

28

8.2 Powers and Duties.

8.2.1 <u>Scope</u>. Subject to the continuing supervision and control of the Court, Watermaster shall exercise the express powers, and shall perform the duties, as provided in this Judgment or hereafter ordered or authorized by the Court in the exercise of the Court's continuing jurisdiction.

8.2.2 Requirement for Reports, Information and Records. Watermaster may require any party to furnish such reports, information and records as may be reasonably necessary to determine compliance or lack of compliance by any party with the provisions of this Judgment.

12 8.2.3 <u>Requirement of Measuring Devices</u>. Watermaster 13 shall require all parties owning or operating any facilities 14 for extraction of ground water from ULARA to install and 15 maintain at all times in good working order, at such party's 16 own expense, appropriate meters or other measuring devices 17 satisfactory to the Watermaster.

H.2.4 <u>Inspection by Watermaster</u>. Watermanter shall make inspections of (a) ground water extraction facilities and measuring devices of any party, and (b) water use practices by any party under physical solution conditions, at such times and as often as may be reasonable under the circumstances to verify reported data and practices of such party. Watermaster shall also identify and report on any new or proposed new ground water extractions by any party or son-party.

8.2.5 <u>Policies and Procedures</u>. Watermaster shall, with the advice and consent of the Administrative Committee, adopt and amend from time to time Policies and Procedures as may be

-24-

reasonably necessary to guide Watermaster in performance of its duties, powers and responsibilities under the provisions of this judgment.

ľ

 2^{1}

З

4

5

6

7

8

9

8.2.6 Data Collection. Watermaster shall collect and verify data relative to conditions of CLARA and its ground water basins from the parties and one or more other governmental agencies. Where pecessary, and upon approval of the Administrative Committee, Watermaster may develop supplemental data.

8.2.7 <u>Cooperation With Other Agencies</u>. Watermaster may
act jointly or cooperate with agencies of the United States
and the State of California or any political subdivisions,
municipalities or districts (including any party) to secure or
exchange data to the end that the purpose of this Judgment,
including its physical solution, may be fully and economically
carried out.

17 8.2.8 <u>Accounting for Non-consumptive Use</u>. Watermaster
 18 Shall calculate and report annually the non-consumptive and
 19 Consumptive uses of extracted ground water by each party
 20 Listed in Attachment "F."

21 Accounting for Accumulated Import Return Water 8.2.9 22 and Stored Water. Watermaster shall record and verify addi-23 tions, extractions and losses and maintain an annual and 24 commulative account of all (a) stored water and (b) import 25 feture water in San Pernando Basin. Calculation of losses 26 attributable to Stored Water shall be approved by the Adminis-27 trative Committee or by subsequent order of the Court. For 28 purposes of such accounting, extractions in any water year by

-25-

Glendale, Burbank or San Fernando shall be assumed to be first from accumulated import return water, second from stored water, and finally pursuant to physical solution; provided, that any such city may, by written notice of intent to Watermaster, alter said priority of extractions as between import return water and stored water.

ŀ

2

З

4

5

6

27

28

7 8.2.10 Recalculation of Safe Yield. Open request of the Administrative Committee, or on motion of any party and sub-8 9 sequent Court order, Watermaster shall recalculate safe yield of any basin within ULARA. If there has been a material long-10 torm change in storage over a base period (excluding any 11 12 effects of stored water) in San Fernando Basin the safe vield 13 shall be adjusted by making a corresponding change in native 14 sate yield of the Basin.

15 8.2.11 Watermaster Report. Watermaster shall prepare annually and (after review and approval by Administrative 16 17 Committee) cause to be served on all active parties, on or 18 before May 1, a report of hydrologic conditions and Water-19 master activities within ULARA during the preceding water 20 year. Watermaster's appual report shall contain such infor-21 mation as may be requested by the Administrative Committee, 22 required by Watermaster Policies and Procedures or specified 23 by subsequent order of this Court.

8.2.12 <u>Active Party List</u>. Watermaster shall maintain at
 all times a current list of active parties and their addresses.
 8.3 Administrative Committee.

8.3.1 <u>Committee to be Formed</u>. An Administrative Committee shall be formed to advise with, request or consent to, and

-26-

review actions of Watermaster. Suid Administrative Committee shall be composed of one representative of each party having a right to extract ground water from ULARA, apart from the physical solution. Any such party not desiring to participate in such committee shall so advise Watermaster in writing.

8.3.2 Organization and Voting. The Administrative 6 Committee shall organize and adopt appropriate rules and 7 8 regulations to be included in Watermaster Policies and Pro-Cedurns. Action of the Administrative Committee shall be by 9 10 unanimous vote of its members, or of the members affected in רנ the case of an action which affects one or more basing but less than all of ULARA. In the event of inability of the 12 13 Committee to reach a unanimous position, the matter may, at 14 the request of Watermaster or any party, he referred to the 15 Court for resolution by subsequent order after notice and 36 hearing,

17 8.3.3 Function and Powers. The Administrative Committee
18 shall be consulted by Watermaster and shall request or approve
19 all discretionary Watermaster determinations. In the event of
20 disagreement between Watermaster and the Administrative
21 Committee, the matter shall be submitted to the Court for
22 review and resolution.

23

1

З

З

4

5

8.4 Watermanter Budget and Assessments.

8.4.1 Watermaster's Proposed Budget. Watermaster
shall, on or before May 1, prepare and submit to the Administrative Committee a budget for the ensuing water year.
The budget shall be determined for each basin separately and
allocated between the separate ground water basins. The

-27-

total for each basin shall be allocated between the public agencies in proportion to their use of ground water trom such [] basin during the preceding water year.

8.4.2 <u>Objections and Review</u>. Any party who objects to the proposed budget, or to such party's allocable share there of, may apply to the Court within thirty (30) days of receipt of the proposed budget from Watermaster for review and modified cation. Any such objection shall be duly noticed to all interested parties and heard within thirty (30) days of notice.

8.4.3 Notice of Assessment. After thirty (30) days from
delivery of Watermaster's proposed budget, or after the order
of Court settling any objections thereto. Watermaster shall
serve notice on all parties to be assessed of the amount of
assessment and the required payment schedule.

15 8.4.4 Payment. All assessments for Watermaster expenses 16 shall be payable on the dates designated in the notice of 17 assessment.

18

19

20

21.

22

28

1

 \mathbf{Z}

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

8.5 Review of Walermaster Activities.

8.5.1 <u>Review Procedures</u>. All actions of Watermaster (other than budget and assessment matters, which are provided for in Paragraph 8.4.2) shall be subject to review by the Court on its own motion or on motion by any party, as follows:

8.5.1.1 Noticed Motion. Any party may, by a
regularly noticed motion, apply to the Court for review
of any Watermaster's action. Notice of such motion shall
be served personally or mailed to Watermaster and to all
active parties.

8.5.1.2 De Novo Nature of Proceedings. Upon the

-28-

filing of any such motion, the Court shall require the 1 moving party to notify the active parties of a date for 2 3 taking evidence and argument, and on the date so design noted shall review do novo the question at issue. Water-4 5 master's findings or decision, if any, may be received 6 in evidence at said hearing, but shall not constitute 7 presumptive or prima facie proof of any fact in issue. 8 8.5.1.3 Decision. The decision of the Court in 9 such proceeding shall be an appealable supplemental order 10 in this case. When the same is timal, it shall be 11 binding upon the Watermaster and all parties. 18 13 PHYSICAL SOLUTION ۹. 14 9.1 Circumstances Indicating Need for Physical Solution. 7.5 During the period between 1913 and 1955, when there existed tempore 16 ary surplus waters in the San Fernando Basin, overlying dities and 3.7 private overlying landowners undertook to install and operate water 18extraction, storage and transmission facilities to utilize such 19 temporary surplus waters. If the injunction against interference 20 with the prior and paramount rights of Los Angeles to the waters of 20. the San Fernando and Eagle Rock Basins were strictly enforced, the 22 value and utility of those water systems and facilities would be 23 lost or impaired. It is appropriate to allow continued limited 24extraction from the San Fernando and Eagle Rock Basins by parties 25 other than Los Angeles, subject to assurance that Los Angeles will 26 be compensated for any cost, expense or loss incurred as a result 27thereof. 28 9.2 Prior Stipulated Judgments. Several defendants.

1 beretofore entered into separate stipulated judgments herein, during the period June, 1958 to November, 1965, each of which judgments was subject to the Court's continuing jurisdiction. 4 Without modification of the substantive terms of said prior judg-5 meets, the same are categorized and merged into this judgment and 6 superseded hereby in the exercise of the Court's continuing juris-7 diction, as follows:

:

26

8 9.2.1 Eagle Rock Basin Parties. Stipulating defendants Foremost and Deep Rock have extracted water from Sayle Rock 9 10 Basin, whose entrie safe yield consist of import return 11 waters of Los Angeles. Said parties may continue to extract 12 water from Eagle Rock Basin to supply their bottled drinking. 17 water requirements upon filing all required reports on said 14 extraction with Watermaster and Los Angeles and paying Los Angeles annually an amount equal to \$21.78 per acre foot for 15 16 the first 200 acre feet, and \$39.20 per arre foot for any 17 additional water extracted in any water year.

18 9.2.2 Non-consumptive or Minimal-consumptive Operations. 19 Certain stipulating defendants extract water from San Pernando 20 Basin for uses which are either non-consumptive of have a 21 minimal consumptive impact. Each of said defendants who have 22 a minimal consumptive impact has a connection to the City of 23 Los Angeles water system and purchases annually an amount of 24water at least equivalent to the consumptive loss of extracted 25ground water. Said defendants are:

Non-Consumptive

Walt Disney Productions
 Scars, Roebuck & Co.

-30-

1	Minimal-Consumptive	
2	Conrock Co., for itself and as successor to California	
3	Materials Col; Constance Ray White and Lee L. White;	
4	Mary 5. Akmadzich and Peter J. Akmadzich	
6	Livingston Rock & Cravel, for itself and as successor	; ,
6	to Los Angeles Land & Water Co.	ì
7	The nature of each said defendant's water use practices is	
8	described in Attachment """. Subject to required reports to	
9	and inspections by Watermaster, each sold defendant may	
10	continue extractions for said purposes so long as in any year	
11	such party continues such non-consumptive or minima)-	
12	consumptive use practices.	
13	9.2.3 Abandoped Operations. The following stipulating	
14	detendants have ceased extracting water from San Pernando	ļ
15	Basin and no further need exists for physical solution in	İ
16	Cheir behalf:	
17	Rnickerbocker Plastic Company, Inc.	
18	Cornation Company	ĺ
19	Hidden Hills Mutual Water Company	
20	Southern Pacific Railroad Co.	
21	Pacific Fruit Express Co.	ĺ
22	9.3 Private Defendants. There are private defendants who in-	
23	stalled during the years of temporary surplus relatively substantia	į
24	facilities to extract and utilize ground waters of San Vernando	
25	Basin. Said defendants may continue their extractions for consump-	
26	tive use up to the indicated annual quantities upon payment of com-	ļ
82	presation to the appropriate city wherein their use of water is	
28	principally located, on the basis of the following physical solution	

!

.

= 31 -

' i

Private Defendants and Appropriate Cities. 9.3.1 Said private defendants and the cities to which their said extractions shall be charged and to which physical solution payment shall be made are:

Annual Quantities

1

2

3

4

5

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 $\mathcal{R}\mathcal{B}$

				(acre feet)
6	Los Angeles	_	Toluca Lake	100
7			Sportsman's Lodge	25
			Van de Kamp	130
8	Olenda 1e	_	Forest Lawn	400
9			Southern Service Co.	7 %
10	Burbank	-	Valhalla	309
11 İ			Lockhoed	2 '1

Provided that said private defendants shall not develop, 1213 install or operate new wells or other facilities which will 14 : increase existing extraction canacities.

9.3.2 Reports and Accounting. All extractions pursuant to this physical solution shall be subject to such reasonable reports and inspections as may be required by 'latermaster.

9.3.3 Payment: Water extracted oursuant hereto shall be compensated for by annual payment to Los Angeles, and as agreed upon pursuant to paragraph 9.3.3.2 to Glendale and Burbank, thirty days from day of notice by Watermaster, on the following pagig:

23 9.3.3.1 Los Angeles. An amount cous} to what 24such party would have paid had water been delivered from 25 the distribution system of Los Angeles, less the average 26 onergy cost of extraction of ground water by Los Angeles 27 from Son Fernando.

9.3.3.2 Olendaly or Burbank. An amount equal to

-32-

1 the sum of the amount phyable to Los Angeles under para- \hat{z} graph 9.4 hereof and any additional charges or conditions 3 agreed upon by either such city and any private defendant. 9.4 Giendale and Burbank, Glendale and Burbank have each 4 5 installed, during said years of temporary surplus, substantial facilities to extract and utilize waters of the San Pernando Basin. 6 7 In addition to the use of such facilities to recover import return -8 water, the distribution facilities of such cities can be most 9 officiently utilized by relying upon the San Pernando Basin for 3.0 peaking supplies in order to reduce the need for extensive new 11 surface storage. Clendale and Burbank may extract annual quanti-12 ties of ground water from the San Fernando Basin, in addition to 13 their rights to import return water or stored water, as heretofore 14 declared, in quantities up to:

15	Glendale	5,500	acre	ieet
16	Burbank	4,200	acre	feet;

17 § provided, that said cities shall compensate Los Angeles annually 18: for any such excess extractions over and above their declared 19 i rights at a rate per acre foot equal to the average MWD price for 20 municipal and industrial water delivered to Los Angeles during the 21 'iscal year, loss the average energy cost of extraction of ground 22 Water by Los Angeles from San Fernando Basin during the preceding 23 fiscal year. Provided, further, that ground water extracted by 24Forest Lawn and Southern Service Co. shall be included in the 25 amount taken by Glendale, and the amount extracted by Valhalla and 26 Lockhord shall be included in the amount taken by Burbank. $\Lambda + 1$ 27 water taken by Glendale or Burbank pursuant hereto shall be charged 28. against Los Angeles' rights in the year of such extractions.

-3.3-

In the event of emergency, and upon stipulation or motion and subsequent order of the Court, said quantities may be enlarged in any year.

San Fernando. San Fernando delivers imported water on 4 9.5 5 lands overlying the San Fernando Basin, by reason of which said 6 city has a vight to recover import return water. San Fernando does. 7 not have water extraction facilities in the San Mernando Basin, nor 81 would it be economically or hydrologically useful for such facil-9. itics to be installed. Both San Fernando and Los Angeles have 10 decreed appropriative rights and extraction facilities in the 11 Sylmar Basin. San Vernando may extract ground water from the 12 Sylmar Basin in a quantity sufficient to utilize its San Pernando 13 Basin import return water credit, and Los Angeles shall reduce its 14 Sylmar Basin extractions by an equivalent amount and receive an 15 offsetting entitlement for additional San Fernando Basin extractions. 16 9.6 Effective Date. This physical solution shall be effec-17 tive on October 1, 1978, based upon extractions during water year 18 1978-79.

- 19
- 20

10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

21. 10.1 Designation of Address for Notice and Service. Each 22 party shall designate the name and address to be used for purposes. 23 of all subsequent notices and service herein by a separate design 24 nation to be filed with Watermaster within thirty (30) days after 25 Notice of Entry of Judgment has been served. Said designation may 26 be changed from time to time by filing a written notice of such 27change with the Watermaster. Any party desiring to be relieved 28 of receiving notices of Watermaster activity may tile a waiver of

-34-
) instice on a form to be provided by Watermaster. Thereafter such party shall be removed from the Active Party list. For purposes of 念書 service on any party or active party by the WaterMaster, by any З other party, or by the Court, of any item required to be served 4 upon or delivered to such party or active party under or pursuant 5 to the Judgment, such service shall be made personally or by de-6 posit in the United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, 7 addressed to the designee and at the address in the latest desig-8 nation filed by such party or active party. Ω

10 10.2 Notice of Change in Hydrologic Condition -- Sylmar Basin.
11 15 Sylmar Basin shall hereafter be in a condition of overdraft due
12 to increased or concurrent appropriations by Los Angeles and San
13 Fernando, Watermaster shall so notify the Court and parties concern14 ed, and notice of such overdraft and the adverse effect thereof on
15 private overlying rights shall be given by said cities as prescribed
16 by subsequent order of the Court, after notice and hearing.

17 10.3 Judgment Binding on Successors. This Judgment and all 18 provisions thereof are applicable to and binding upon not only the 19 parties to this action, but also upon their respective heirs, 20 executors, administrators, successors, assigns, lessees and licen-21 sees and upon the agents, employees and attorneys in fact of all 22 such persons.

23 10.4 Costs. Ordinary court costs shall be borne by each 24 party, and reference costs shall be borne as heretofore allocated 25 and paid.

DATED: ------ 24 261979 27 Court 28 • 35:

ATTACHMENT ON LIST OF DISALSSED PARTIES

Adams, Catherine

Adart, Loo W.

Anderson, Jeass E.

Anderson, Riyzabeth A.

Anderson, Leland H.

Anderson, Docate D.

Bank of America, N.T. & S.A., (Troateo)

Backer, Barbore

Reattice Foods Company

Broker, Bart

Bishop, Elfreda M.

Binhap, Willers T.

Block, Leonard W.

Block, Margory J.

Burbank C. D. School Distance.

Buck, Rodney C.

CollFornia, State of

California Trust Company, (Trustue)

California Trunt Company, Trunted for First National Hank of Glendale

Collector N.T.S. Bask of L.A., Thustee of M. M. Cremshaw

Ditizone National Trust & Savings Bank of Los Angeles

Cilizens National Proof & Soviage Bank of Los Ampeles. Prostee: Deed of Tract 3724

Colos Corporation of America

Componention of American

Corporation of America, Studies for Mank of America 32

Dee Corporation, 10-50

Dove 18-500

Duckworth, down W., (Defails of)

Equitable Life Apporance Society of the United States

Fidelity Federat Soviets A Loan Association

- 17-

Fitz-Patrick, Ada H. Fils Patrick, C. C. Frank X. Enderle, Inc., Ltd. Goorge, Florence H. George, Ellon Chigtia, Prank P. Givan, Amelia (Boomaned) Glendale Junior College District of Los America County Glondale Unified School District Clehhaven Memorial Park, Inc. Giffish, Howard Barton Handorf, August V., Horrs of Haunn, Gmorge Dicks, Forrest W., Executor of Estate of (California bank) Bounton-Fearless Corp., the Industrial Fuel Supply Co. intervalley Gaughes & Loan Aspociation Julius, Adenia C. JULIUS, LOUIS A. Kacatawyos, Itina M. Karagozian, Charles Kelma, Nothan as Co-Executor. Entate of Duckworth Relley, June Rettey, Victor IL. Michel, Barry, Decembed, ticuian: of Knopp, Guy, Tractor London, Clara Martlett Lontz, Richard Los Angeles County Flood Control District Los Aperles Land and Wayler Computing: LOS Aborles Trust and Savings Deposit Company (Sale)

Lun Angelen Safe Deponst Company, Trustee for Security First National Bank of Lum Angeley

Los Angeles Trunt and Snie Depart Company, Trustee for H. Kiener

Lytle, Lydia L.

Manuachusetts Mutual Life Thousance Company

Mahannah, E. E.

Mehannah, Hasel H.

M.C.A., Inc.

Mangan, Blanche M.

Matigan, Nicholae

McTmogal, Marray

McDougal, Marian V.

Mullenthin, Helen Louise

Mollenthin, William

Motropolitin Life Insurance Company

Morgan, Kenneth N.

Morgan, Anne

Mulholland Orchard Company

Mutual Life laburator Company of New York

Nuchbwontern Motual Life Incurance Company

Owknowi Club

Dakamon Cometery Association

Pasadena Savinge & Loan Association

Paglinj, Bruno

Pacific Lighting Corporation

Pierce Brothers Mostancy

Probing Loundry Company, Inc.

Pur-o-Spring Water Company

Renfrow, Mary Mildred

Rentsow, Theasant Thomas

Reinert, a. c.

Busnier, Louretta

Richardson, Belen L.

Security First National Bank of Los Angeles, Trustee Security First National Bank of Los Angoles, Troutes for L. Behwasger, ste. Smith, T. A. Smith, Sidney, Estate of, F. Small, Administrator Southern California Service Curp., Trustee for Verduge Savings and Loan Association Sylmar Properties inc. Title Insurance and Trust Co., Trustee for Metropolstan Life Indurance Company, 1. 1970 Title Insurance and Trust Co... Trublee for Western Mortgage COmpany Title Guarantee & Trustee Company. Trupton. Title Insurance & Trust Company, Truston for C, Ficz-Patrick Title Inforance 4 Trust Company, Trustee for Intervalley Sautas. and Iwan Annocistion, 2114 Tytle Innorance & Trust Company, for Fidelity Savingn & Loon Annoclation Title Insurance & Trust Company for Equitable Life Annurance Suciety, U.S. Union SEAK & Truck Company of Los Anucles Trustee for H. Bocker, et ol, Valliant, Grace C. Verdugo Savings & Loon Association Warner Biothers Pictures, Inc. Warner Eanth Company, Inc. Walleck, Henry D., As Executor of the Estabo of A. Ciyan Western Morigage Company Wheeland, H. W. Wilcox, Ray C. Wite, Constance Julia

Richardson, William L.

Wines, Robert Caylor

Young, Durnld M.

Young, Marcin D.

-M(-

ATTACHMENT "C" LIST OF DEFAULTED PARTIES

Artna Life Insurance Company American Savings & Loss ARROGATION Babikian, Helen Book of America, N.T. & S.A., Truncee. Hannan, B. A. Pannan, Clotilde K. Berkemeyer, Honey W. Barkomoyer, Hildur M. Bell, William M. Holl, Sallie C. Borgia, Andrea, Entate of Rorgin, Frances Brown, Stella M. Burne, George A. Nurns, Louise J. California Bank, Trantee in Hollywood State Bank California Bank, Truntee Citizonn Notional Bask 4 Savings Bank of Iam Angeles, Trust for W. Scawere Citizons Mattopat Trust A Savings Dank of Los Angolan, More, I. 164 Citizano National Trust 4 Savings Bank of Los Angeles. Trustee Cilizons National Trust 6 Savange Bank of Los Angelos, Co-Trustee for Entate of A. V. Handori Clauson, Epons S. Continental Auxittary Company (Doe Corporation 1) Cowlin, Josephine McC. Cowlin, Donald G. Cowlin, Durothy H.

Corporation of America, Trustee for Bank of America, 1. 54 Denco Corp. Diller, Michael Erratchuo, Richard Glandalo Towat and Linen Supply Company Guyer, frend W. Merryany, Emily Louise by LOUIS T. Herrmann, Summerson in Interest Works, Forrest W., Executor of Estate of (Dalifornia Bank) Hidden Hills Corporation Holmgrin, Nevn Bartterr Hope, Lopter Towner Nope, Notoran Delina HUBION BONCS (Due Corporation R) Johnnon, William Arthur, Sr. (Don 111 Johnson, Grace Lavana (Dov 12) Johnny, Marguerite R., Transfer (for 6) Jensup, Marquerite Rice Jensup, Roger Le Maida, Joanne V. (Dee 10) La Marda, Tony (La Maida) Lancauter, Paul N. Improvier, William Land Title Incorance Company, an Tructor Land Title Incorance Coppany Lon Angelos Net Comptary Metropolitan Savingn & Loan Association of Los Assoles Monterie Loke Annuelation

Mosher, Eloise V.

Monther, W. E.

Murtey, Marie

Pecific Lightong and Gas Supply Co.

Plemmons, Florence S.

Plenmone, John R.

Polar Water Company

Pryor, Charles

Reach, Phili

Reger Jessup Marner

Rushworth, Holon

Rushworth, Lester

Schwaiger, Const A.

Schwaiger, Descer H.

Scaland Investment Corporation. Trustee for Metropolitan Savingn & Loan Association

Sealand Investment Corporation

Smith, Florence 5, (Plennose)

Southern Service Company, Ltd.

Stavest, Walter W.

Sun Valley National Dank of Los Amplica

Title Innurance and Trust Co., Trustee Y. 1. Dord of Trust, Y. 31, 32

Title Incorance and Trust Co., Trustee for Intervalley Savings & Lean Acception 1. 2509

Title Inverance & Trust Co., Trustee for Macoschuserts Matual Life Inverance Co.

withe incurance and Trust Co.

Title Insurance and Trust Co., Trustee A.

Trile Insurance and Trust Co., Trustee for San Valley National bank of Los Angeles

Title Incurance and Trust Co., Trustee for J. MaC. Cowlin Title Innurance and Trust Co., Trustee for P. E. Lancaster Title Heuranne and Trust Cor. Trustno T. L., Deed of Trust T. 024 Title innurance and Trust Co., Trunten for C. R. Bannan, rt n], Wheeland, Honry R. Wheeland, Blizabeth A. Woodward, E. C., Co-Trustee of the Estate of A. V. Handorf Wright, Alice M. Wright, J. Marion

Wright, lienu Evelyn

Wright, Ralph Carver

ATTACHMENT "D"

DISCLATMING PARTIES

Andrew Jergens Company, The Boyar, Mark Chace, William M. (dba V.P.L.C.) DeMille, Cecil B., Estate of Drewry Photocolor Corp. Hayos, Hay B. (Hal) Houston Color Film Laboratories, Inc. Krown, Samuel P. La Canada Irrigation District Lakeside Golf Club (of Hollywood) Lakewood Water & Power Company Mack, Lucille Mollin Investment Co. Mulholland, P. & R., Trustees for R. Wood Mulholland, Rose

Mutholland, Perry Mulholland, Thomas Mureau, Charles Nothan, Julia N., Trustee Oakmont Country Club Flatt, George E. Company Richfield Oil Corporation Riverwood Ranch Mutual Water Company Smith, Bonjamin B. Southern California Edison Company. Spinks Realty Company Sportsman's Lodge Banquet Corporation Stetson, G. Henry Technicolor Corporation

Valley Lown Memorial Park

ATTACHMENT "E"

LIST OF PRIOR STIPULATED JUDGMENTS

PARTY	DATE JUDGMENT_FILED
Akmadzich, Mary L.	July 24, 1959
Akmadzich, Peter J.	July 24, 1959
California Materials Company	July 24, 1959
Carnation Company .	Nov. 20, 1958
Consolidated Rock Products Co.	July 24, 1959
Hidden Hills Mutual Water Company	March 11, 1965
Knickerbocker Plastic Company, Inc.	Feb. 15, 1960
Livingston Rock & Gravel Co., Inc.	July 24, 1959
Pacific Fruit Express Company	March 11, 1965
Pendleton, Evelyn M., dba Deep Rock Artesian Water Company	Nov. 1, 1965
Sears, Roebuck and Company	June 9, 1958
Southern Pacitic Company	March 11, 1968
Sparkletts Drinking Water Corporation	Nov. 1, 1965
Valley Park Corporation	July 24, 1959
Walt Disney Productions	May 15, 1961
White, Constance Ray	Peb. 15, 1960
White, Leo L.	Feb. 15, 3960

.

j	
3	ATTACHMENT "F"
	STLEDLATED
7	NON-CONSUMPTIVE OR MINIMAL-CONSUMPTING USE
4	PRACTICES
5	
ő	Non-Consumptive Uses
7	Disney extracted ground water is used for air conditioning
Å	cooling water in a closed system, which discharges to the
	channel of the Los Anoules River and is subsequently spread
10 10	and recharges San Fernando Basin, without measurable diminu-
 บา	tion or loss.
12	Scars, Lockhood and Carnation extracted ground water, or a
13	portion thereof, is used for air conditioning cooling in a
14 :	closed system, which discharges to San Fernando Basin (brough
15	an injection well.
16	Poluca Lake that portion of extracted ground water which is not
17	consumptively used, by evaporation or otherwise, is circu-
18	lated and passed through the lake to the channel of the Los
פנ	Angeles River immediately upstream from Los Angeles' spread-
20	ing grounds, where such water is percolated into the ground
21	water of the Basin without measurable diminution or loss.
22	Sportsman's Lodge that portion of extracted ground water which
23	is not consumptively used, by evaporation or otherwise, is
84	circulated and passed through fish ponds and returned to
25	channels tributary to Los Angeles River upstream from Los
26 ;	Angeles' spreading grounds, whore such water is percolated
27	into the ground water of the Basin without measurable loss.
28	

-43-

1		
1	MINIMAL-CONSUMPTIVE USES	
z	Conrock extracted ground water is used in took	, sand and
3	3 & gravel, and ready-mix concrete operati	ons with not
4	Livingston consumptive use of 10%, with the remain	nina 908
5	5 returning to the ground water. Each p	arty purchases
6	B surface water from Los Angeles in amor	ints at least
7	equivalent to such consumptive losses.	
ន	*	
9	3	
10		1
11		
12	2 .	
13		
14		
15 16		
10		
18		
19		
20 20		
21		
32		
23	5	
24		
25	5	
26	5	
27		
28	3	
	- 4 4 -	







-35-

Appendix E

CUWCC Best Management Practices (BMP) Forms

CUWCC

Base Year Data

Agency name:	City of Burbank, PSD	Reporting unit number:		
Reporting unit name :	City of Burbank, PSD	48		
Base Year 2008				
BMP 1.3 Metering				
Number of unmetered a	accounts in Base Year 30.00			
BMP 3.1 & BMP 3.2 &	BMP 3.3 Residential Programs			
Number of Single Fami	ly Customers 19,940 and Multy Fan	nily Customers 20,886 in Base Year		
BMP 3.4 WaterSense	Specification (WSS) Toilets			
Number of Single Fami	ly Units 18,145 and Number of Mult	ti Family Units 2,102 prior to 1992		
Average number of toile	ets per Single Family household 2.63	and Multi Family households 1.73		
Five year average resa	le rate of Single Family households 587.60	and Multi Family households 232.6000		
Average number of per	sons per Single Family households 2.50	and Multi Family households 2.50		
BMP 4.0 & BMP 5.0 C	II & Landscape			
Total water use (in Acre	e Feet) by CII accounts 5,7	37.00		
Number of accounts with dedicated irrigation meters 162.00				
Number of CII accounts without meters or with Mixed Use Meters 3,477.00				
Number of CII accounts	3,3	15.00		
Comments				
BMP 3.4 - First two lines represent total single and multi-family housing units constructed prior to 1992 and not number of custoemrs.				



Reporting unit name (Distric	t name)	 Reporting unit number:
City of Burbank, PSD		48
Conservation Coordinator:	Yes	
Contact Information		
First Name:	Kapil	
Last Name:	Kulkarni	
Title:	Marketing Associate	
Phone:	818-238-3792	
Email:	kkulkarni@burbankca.gov	

Water Waste Prevention

WW Document Name	WWP File Name	WW Prevention URL	WW Prevention Ordinance Terms Description
Option A Describe the ordinances or terms of service adopted by your agency to meet the water waste prevention requirements of this BMP.			
Option B Describe any water waste prevention ordinances or requirements adopted by your local jurisdiction or regulatory agencies within your service area.	Sustainable-Water-Use- Ordinance-June-8-2009.pdf	http://www.burbankwatera ndpower.com/conservation /californias-water-supply- crisis	The Sustainable Water Use Ordinance includes requirements for residents to limit their frequency, timing, and methods of water use for landscape and other domestic purposes, and for businesses to limit their use of water in restaurants and lodging.
Option C Describe any documentation of support for legislation or regulations that prohibit water waste.			
Option D Describe your agency efforts to cooperate with other entities in the adoption or enforcement of local requirements consistent with this BMP.			
Option E Describe your agency support positions with respect to adoption of legislation or regulations that are consistent with this BMP.			
Option F Describe your agency efforts to support local ordinances that establish permits requirements for water efficient design in new development.			
Γ.			

No



At Least As effective

As	
Exemption	No
Comments:	



Reporting unit name (Distric	t name)	 Reporting unit number:
City of Burbank, PSD		48
Conservation Coordinator:	Yes	
Contact Information		
First Name:	Kapil	
Last Name:	Kulkarni	
Title:	Marketing Associate	
Phone:	818-238-3792	
Email:	kkulkarni@burbankca.gov	

Water Waste Prevention

WW Document Name	WWP File Name	WW Prevention URL	WW Prevention Ordinance Terms Description
Option A Describe the ordinances or terms of service adopted by your agency to meet the water waste prevention requirements of this BMP.			
Option B Describe any water waste prevention ordinances or requirements adopted by your local jurisdiction or regulatory agencies within your service area.	Copy_of_Sustainable- Water-Use-Ordinance- June-8-2009.pdf	http://www.burbankwatera ndpower.com/conservation /californias-water-supply- crisis	The Sustainable Water Use Ordinance includes requirements for residents to limit their frequency, timing, and methods of water use for landscape and other domestic purposes, and for businesses to limit their use of water in restaurants and lodging.
Option C Describe any documentation of support for legislation or regulations that prohibit water waste.			
Option D Describe your agency efforts to cooperate with other entities in the adoption or enforcement of local requirements consistent with this BMP.			
Option E Describe your agency support positions with respect to adoption of legislation or regulations that are consistent with this BMP.			
Option F Describe your agency efforts to support local ordinances that establish permits requirements for water efficient design in new development.			
Γ.			

No



At Least As effective

As	
Exemption	No
Comments:	



Reporting unit name	Reporting unit number:		
City of Burbank, PSD	48		
AWWA Water Audit			
Agency to complete a Water Audit & Balance Using The AWWA Software No			
Uploaded filename:			
Water Audit Validity Score from AWWA spreadsheet:			
Agency Completed Training In The AWWA Water Audit Method No			
Agency Completed Training In The Component Analysis Process No			
Completed/Updated the Component Analysis (at least every 4 years)?			
Component Analysis Completed/Updated Date 12:00:00 AM			
Water Loss Performance			
Agency Repaired All Reported Leaks & Breaks To The Extent Cost Effective Yes			
Recording Keeping Requirements Beginning in Year 2			
Does your agency maintain a record keeping system for the following?			
Date/Time Leak Reported Yes	eak Location Yes		
Type of Leaking Pipe Segment or Fitting Yes Leak Running Time From Rep	ort to Repair Yes		
Leak Volume Estimate Yes C	ost of Repair Yes		
Do you have an infrastructure rehabilitation and renewa	al program ? Yes		
Agency Located and Repaired Unreported Leaks to the Extent Cost Effective Yes			
Type of Program Activities Used to Detect Unreported Leaks			
Based on AMI water infrastructure, customer service reps use Itron Save Source and Fixed Network Administration Client software to identify large leaks and notify customers through phone calls, emails, or personal visits.			
Does your agency maintain in-house records of audit results or the completed AWWA worksheet for the completed audit which could be forwarded to CUWCC?			
Does your agency keeps records of each component analysis performed, and incorporates results into future annual standard water balances?			
Annual Summary Information			
Complete the following table with annual summary information (required for reporting years 2-5 only)			
Please describe your infrastructure rehabilitation and renewal activity below			

AWWA Model

Operational Efficiency Indicator

Apparent Losses per service connection per day:

Real Losses per service connection per day:

		_
 	 	-
		-



	Real Losses per	length of main per day:		
Real Losses pe	r service connection pe			
	Unavoidable Annu	al Real Losses(UARL):		
Above, Rea	I Losses=Current Annu	al Real Losses(CARL):		
In	rastructure Leakage In	dex (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:		
At Least As Effective As	Yes			1
Using our AMI water infrastructur Identified more than 220 leaks	e, BWP implemented a Le	ak Detection program in June	2012, and has so	far:
Water Leak Report 2012-2013_B	WP for CUWCC.xlsx			
Exemption	No			
Comments:				
L				



Reporting unit name	Reporting unit number:			
City of Burbank, PSD	48			
AWWA Water Audit				
Agency to complete a Water Audit & Balance Using The AWWA Software No				
Uploaded filename:				
Water Audit Validity Score from AWWA spreadsheet:				
Agency Completed Training In The AWWA Water Audit Method No				
Agency Completed Training In The Component Analysis Process No				
Completed/Updated the Component Analysis (at least every 4 years)? No				
Component Analysis Completed/Updated Date 12:00:00 AM				
Water Loss Performance				
Agency Repaired All Reported Leaks & Breaks To The Extent Cost Effective Yes				
Recording Keeping Requirements Beginning in Year 2				
Does your agency maintain a record keeping system for the following?				
Date/Time Leak Reported Yes	eak Location Yes			
Type of Leaking Pipe Segment or Fitting Yes Leak Running Time From Rep	ort to Repair Yes			
Leak Volume Estimate Yes Co	ost of Repair Yes			
Do you have an infrastructure rehabilitation and renewa	Il program? Yes			
Agency Located and Repaired Unreported Leaks to the Extent Cost Effective Yes				
Type of Program Activities Used to Detect Unreported Leaks				
Based on AMI water infrastructure, customer service reps use Itron Save Source and Fixed Network Administration Client software to identify large leaks and notify customers through pho calls, emails, or personal visits.	ne			
Does your agency maintain in-house records of audit results or the completed AWWA worksheet for the completed audit which could be forwarded to CUWCC?				
Does your agency keeps records of each component analysis performed, and ncorporates results into future annual standard water balances?				
Annual Summary Information				
Complete the following table with annual summary information (required for reporting years 2-5	only)			
Please describe your infrastructure rehabilitation and renewal activity below				

AWWA Model

Operational Efficiency Indicator

Apparent Losses per service connection per day:

Real Losses per service connection per day:

		_
 	 	-
		-



	Real Losses per length of main per day:	
Real Losses pe	er service connection per day per psi pressure:	
	Unavoidable Annual Real Losses(UARL):	
Above, Rea	al Losses=Current Annual Real Losses(CARL):	
In	frastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:	
At Least As Effective As	Yes	
Using our AMI water infrastructure Identified more than 220 leaks	e, BWP implemented a Leak Detection program in June 2012, and has so far:	
Copy_of_Water_Leak_Report_20	012-2013_BWP_for_CUWCC.xlsx	
Exemption	No	
Comments:		
L		



2011

Reporting unit name		Reporting unit number:
City of Burbank, PSD		48
Implementation		
Does your agency have any unmetered service connections?	No	
If YES, has your agency completed a meter retrofit plan?	No	
Enter the number of previously unmetered accounts fitted with	meters during reporting year:	
Are all new service connections being metered?	Yes	
Are all new service connections being billed volumetrically?	Yes	
Has your agency completed and submitted electronically to the	Council a written plan, policy	Yes

Has your agency completed and submitted electronically to the Council a written plan, policy or program to test, repair and replace meters?

Meters Matrix

Account Type	Num Of Metered Accounts	Num Of Metered Accounts Read	Num Of Metered Accounts Billed By Volume	Billing Frequency	Estimated Bills Per Year	Meter Readings Per Year
Single-Family	18659	18659	18659	Monthly		
Multi-Family	3419	3419	3419	Monthly		
Commercial	3094	3094	3094	Monthly		
Industrial	119	119	119	Monthly		
Institutional	258	258	258	Monthly		
Fire Lines	893	893	893	Monthly		
Recycled	116	116	116	Monthly		

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed-use Meters

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed-use Meters Retrofitted with Dedicated Irrigation Meters during Reporting Period

Feasibility Study

Has your agency conducted a feasibility study to assess the merits of a program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use accounts to dedicated landscape meters?

Yes

If YES, please fill in the following information:

A. When was the Feasibility Study conducted

10/1/2010

Describe, upload or provide an electronic link to the Feasibility Study Upload File



BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity

2011

The Recycled Water Master Plan (RWMP) was first developed in 2007 and updated in 2010. The RWMP outlines a plan to increase the usage of recycled water by businesses to more than 1 billion gallons, or more than 15% of our total system sales, by 2013.

2010_Recycled_Water_Master_Plan.pdf

No

No

http://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/download/2010_Recycled_Water_Master_Plan.pdf

At Least As Effective As

Exemption



2012

Reporting unit name		Reporting unit number:
City of Burbank, PSD		48
Implementation		
Does your agency have any unmetered service connections?	No	
If YES, has your agency completed a meter retrofit plan?	No	
Enter the number of previously unmetered accounts fitted with	meters during reporting year:	
Are all new service connections being metered?	Yes	
Are all new service connections being billed volumetrically?	Yes	
Has your agency completed and submitted electronically to the	Council a written plan, policy	Yes

Has your agency completed and submitted electronically to the Council a written plan, policy or program to test, repair and replace meters?

Meters Matrix

Account Type	Num Of Metered Accounts	Num Of Metered Accounts Read	Num Of Metered Accounts Billed By Volume	Billing Frequency	Estimated Bills Per Year	Meter Readings Per Year
Single-Family	18651	18651	18651	Monthly		
Multi-Family	3429	3429	3429	Monthly		
Commercial	3090	3090	3090	Monthly		
Industrial	116	116	116	Monthly		
Institutional	246	246	246	Monthly		
Fire Lines	903	903	903	Monthly		
Recycled	134	134	134	Monthly		

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed-use Meters

Number of CII Accounts with Mixed-use Meters Retrofitted with Dedicated Irrigation Meters during Reporting Period

Feasibility Study

Has your agency conducted a feasibility study to assess the merits of a program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use accounts to dedicated landscape meters?

Yes

If YES, please fill in the following information:

A. When was the Feasibility Study conducted

10/1/2010

Describe, upload or provide an electronic link to the Feasibility Study Upload File



BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity

2012

The Recycled Water Master Plan (RWMP) was first developed in 2007 and updated in 2010. The RWMP outlines a plan to increase the usage of recycled water by businesses to more than 1 billion gallons, or more than 15% of our total system sales, by 2013.

Copy_of_2010_Recycled_Water_Master_Plan.pdf

No

No

http://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/download/2010_Recycled_Water_Master_Plan.pdf

At Least As Effective As

Exemption



Reporting unit name City of Burbank, PSD

Reporting unit number:	
48	

Implementation (Water Rate Structure)

Enter the Water Rate Structures that are assigned to the majority of your customers, by customer class

Customer Class	Water Rate Type	Total Revenue Comodity Charges	Total Revenue Fixed Carges
Single-Family	Increasing Block	9438421.9	2223129.54
Multi-Family	Uniform	4275806.29	408654.14
Commercial	Uniform	3428362.72	377785.31
Industrial	Uniform	707879.42	17773.94
Institutional	Uniform	543536.81	26576.46
		18394007.14	3053919.39

Implementation (Conservation Pricing Option)

Enter the Water Rate Structures that are assigned to the majority of your customers, by customer class

V As Reported

Use Canadian Water Wastewater (CWWA) Association Rate Design Model

Use 3 years average instead of most recent year

If CWWA is selected, please upload spreadsheet here.

No

Canadian Water and Wastewater Association

Retail Waste Water (Sewer) Rate Structure by Customer Class

Agency Provide Sewer Service No

Select the Retail Waste Water (Sewer) Rate Structure assigned to the majority of your customers within a specific customer class.

At Least As Effective As N	Ю
----------------------------	---

Use Annual Revenue

Explanation of At Least As Effective As

Uploaded document

Exemption



Reporting unit name

Reporting unit number: 48

Implementation (Water Rate Structure)

City of Burbank, PSD

Enter the Water Rate Structures that are assigned to the majority of your customers, by customer class

Customer Class	Water Rate Type	Total Revenue Comodity Charges	Total Revenue Fixed Carges
Single-Family	Increasing Block	10629435.99	2386162.64
Multi-Family	Uniform	3983141.17	442265.8
Commercial	Uniform	2993751.55	399428.31
Industrial Uniform		583467.47	18381.51
Institutional	Uniform	348528.31	29334.12
		18538324.49	3275572.38

Implementation (Conservation Pricing Option)

Enter the Water Rate Structures that are assigned to the majority of your customers, by customer class

Use Annual Revenue V As Reported

Use Canadian Water Wastewater (CWWA) Association Rate Design Model

Use 3 years average instead of most recent year

If CWWA is selected, please upload spreadsheet here.

No

Canadian Water and Wastewater Association

Retail Waste Water (Sewer) Rate Structure by Customer Class

Agency Provide Sewer Service No

Select the Retail Waste Water (Sewer) Rate Structure assigned to the majority of your customers within a specific customer class.

At Least As Effective As	No
--------------------------	----

Explanation of At Least As Effective As

Uploaded document

Exemption



BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2011

Departing unit po				
Reporting unit ha	me Reporting unit # 48			
City of Burbank, I	PSD / Retail Only			
Does your agency	y perform Public Outreach programs? Yes			
The list of wholes	ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the	e BMP		
Please provide th	e name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members			
Public Informati	on Programs List			
Did at least one c	contact take place duringeach quarter of the reporting year? Yes			
Number of Public Contacts	Public Information Programs Name			
4	Newsletter articles on conservation			
12	Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, information			
6	Website			
4 Landscape water conservation media campaigns				
12 General water conservation information				
12	General water conservation information			
12 Contact with the	General water conservation information			
12 Contact with the The list of wholes	General water conservation information Media Yes ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes	General water conservation information Media Yes ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the se name of Agency if not CLIWCC Group1 members	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th	General water conservation information Media Yes ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one o	General water conservation information e Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Yes	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one c Number of Media Contacts	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Yes Public Outreach Media Contact Name List	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Number of Media Contacts 2	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the me name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Yes Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach	BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Number of Media Contacts 2	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the re name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Media Contacts 2	General water conservation information Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the we name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach	BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Number of Media Contacts 2	General water conservation information e Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the re name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach News releases	e BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Media Contacts 2 5	General water conservation information e Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach News releases	BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Mumber of Media Contacts 2 5	General water conservation information e Media Yes sale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the ne name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach News releases	BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Media Contacts 2 5	General water conservation information e Media Yes wale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the wale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the wale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the wale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the wale agency if not CUWCC Group1 members contact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach News releases	BMP		
12 Contact with the The list of wholes Please provide th Did at least one of Media Contacts 2 5 Wholesale Agen The list of wholes	General water conservation information e Media Yes wate agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the agency of a public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the agency of a public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the agency of a public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the agency of a public outreach quarter of the reporting year? Public Outreach Media Contact Name List Articles or stories resulting from outreach News releases News releases	BMP		

Please provide the name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members

IAgency Website Updates



BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2011

Enter your agency's URL (website address): http://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/

Describe a minimum of four water conservationrelated updates to your agency's website thattook place during the year:

Promotion of annual Living Wise program Sponsorship of City of Burbank Earth Day festival Update on Sustainable Water Use Ordinance Notification of savewater! award in December 2011 for Water Conservation programs

Did at least one Website Update take place duringeach quarter of the reporting year?

Yes

Public Information Programs Annual Budget

Enter budget for public outreach programs. You may enter total budget in a single line or brake the budget into discretecategories by entering many rows. Please indicate if personnel costs are included in the entry.

Annual Budget	Annual Budget	Personal Cost	Comments
Category	Amount	Included?	
	400000	V	Includes staff time for community and other events, as well as marketing materials and other costs

Public Information Expenses

Enter expenses for public outreach programs. Please include the same kind of expenses you included in the question related to your budget (Section 2.1.7, above). For example, if you included personnel costs in the budget entered above, be sure to include them here as well.

Public Outreach Expense Category	Expense Amount	Personal Cost Included?
Labor	300000	V
Other	100000	

Additional Public Information Program

Please report additional public information contacts. List these additional contacts in order of howyour agency views their importance / effectiveness with respect to conserving water, with the mostimportant/ effective listed first (where 1 = most important).

Yes

Were there additional Public Outreach efforts?

Public	Outreach	Additional	Information
FUDIIC	Outreach	Auditional	mormation

Social Marketing Programs

Branding	Does your agency have a water conservation"brand," "theme" or mascot?			
Describe the brand, theme	or mascot.			
Market Research	Have you s	ponsored or participated inmarket research to refine your message?	Yes	
Market Research Topic	Customer satisfaction surveys, in order to measure and improve our water and energy services			
Brand Message	BWP is always there for you.			
Brand Mission Statement	BWP is a community owned utility providing safe, reliable, affordable, and sustainable service.			
Community Committees				
Do you have a community of	conservation com	mittee? Yes		
Enter the names of the community committees:		es: Sustainable Burbank Commission		

Training



BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

2011

Social Marketing Expenditures

Public Outreach Social Marketing Expenses

Partnering Programs

Par	Parmening Programs				
Nan	ne	Type of Progra	am		
	CLCA?				
V	Green Building Programs?				
	Master Gardeners?				
	Cooperative Extension?				
	Local Colleges?				
	Other				
	Retail and wholesale outlet; r	name(s) and type	e(s) of programs:		
Par	tnering Programs - Newslette	rs			
Nun	nber of newsletters per year	4			
Nun	nber of customers per year	49000			
Par	tnering with Other Utilities				
Des with	cribe other utilities your agency	/ partners	BWP is a member	r of the Metropolitan Water District, and participates in	
Cor	servation Gardens				
Describe water conservation gardens at your agency or other high traffic areas or new homes		BWP has a Comm grants of up to \$1	nunity Demonstration Gardens program, which provides 5,000 for native and drought tolerant plant gardens at		
Lan	dscape contests or awards				
Describe water wise landscape contest or awards program conducted by your agency					
Additional Programs supported by Agency but not mentioned above:					
At Least As Effective As No					
Explanation of At Least As Effective As					
Uplo	Uploaded document				
Exe	mption No				
Con	nments				


2011



2012

Reporting unit na	me Report	ting	unit #	48	7
City of Burbank, F	PSD	/	Retail	Only	
Does your agenc	/ perform Public Outreach programs? Yes				
The list of wholes	ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the	e ag	ency c	omply with th	e BMP
Please provide th	e name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members				
Public Informati	on Programs List				
Did at least one c	ontact take place duringeach quarter of the reporting year? Yes				
Number of Public Contacts	Public Information Programs Name				
4	Newsletter articles on conservation				
12	Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on	bill,	inform	ation	
6	Website				
4	Landscape water conservation media campaigns				
12	General water conservation information				
Contact with the	Media Yes				
The list of wholes	ale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the	e ag	ency c	omply with th	e BMP
Please provide th	e name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members				
Did at least one c	ontact take place during each quarter of the reporting year? Yes				
Number of Media Contacts	Public Outreach Media Contact Name List				
3	Articles or stories resulting from outreach				
1	News releases				
Wholesale Agen	cy Website Updates	0.00		omolywith	
the BMP	are agencies performing public our each which can be counted to help th	e ay	ency C		No

Please provide the name of Agency if not CUWCC Group1 members

IAgency Website Updates



2012

Yes

Enter your agency's URL (website address): http://www.burbankwaterandpower.com/

Describe a minimum of four water conservationrelated updates to your agency's website thattook place during the year:

Promotion of EcoCampus Dedication Event in January 2012 Notice of Annual Water Quality Report in June 2012 Update on Sustainable Water Use Ordinance Launch of Go Native! Turf Removal program in November 2012

Did at least one Website Update take place duringeach quarter of the reporting year?

Public Information Programs Annual Budget

Enter budget for public outreach programs. You may enter total budget in a single line or brake the budget into discretecategories by entering many rows. Please indicate if personnel costs are included in the entry.

Annual Budget	Annual Budget	Personal Cost	Comments
Category	Amount	Included?	
	400000	V	

Public Information Expenses

Enter expenses for public outreach programs. Please include the same kind of expenses you included in the question related to your budget (Section 2.1.7, above). For example, if you included personnel costs in the budget entered above, be sure to include them here as well.

Public Outreach Expense Category	Expense Amount	Personal Cost Included?
Labor	300000	V
Other	100000	V

Additional Public Information Program

Please report additional public information contacts. List these additional contacts in order of howyour agency views their importance / effectiveness with respect to conserving water, with the mostimportant/ effective listed first (where 1 = most important).

Were there additional Public Outreach efforts?

Yes

Public Outreach Additional Information

Social Marketing Programs

Branding	Does your agency have a water conservation"brand," "theme" or mascot?	No			
Describe the brand, theme c	or mascot.				
Market Research	Have you sponsored or participated inmarket research to refine your message?	Yes			
Market Research Topic	Customer satisfaction surveys, in order to measure and improve our water and energy services.				
Brand Message	BWP is always there for you.				
Brand Mission Statement	BWP is a community owned utility providing safe, reliable, sustainable, and affordable service.				
Community Committees					
Do you have a community conservation committee? Yes					
Enter the names of the community committees: Sustainable Burbank Commission					

Training



2012

Training Type	Number of Trainings	Number of Attendees	Description of Other
3	1	20	Landscaping workshop taught by a professional horticulturalist

Social Marketing Expenditures

Public Outreach Social Marketing Expenses

Partnering Programs

Name		Type of Program
	CLCA?	
V	Green Building Programs?	
	Master Gardeners?	
	Cooperative Extension?	
	Local Colleges?	
	Other	

Retail and wholesale outlet; name(s) and type(s) of programs:

Partnering Programs - Newsletters

Number of newsletters per year	4
Number of customers per year	49000

Partnering with Other Utilities

Describe other utilities your agency partners with, including electrical utilities

Conservation Gardens

Describe water conservation gardens at your agency or other high traffic areas or new homes

Landscape contests or awards

Describe water wise landscape contest or awards program conducted by your agency

Additional Programs supported by Agency but not mentioned above:

At Least As Effective As No

Explanation of At Least As Effective As

Uploaded document

BWP has a Community Demonstration Gardens program, which provides grants of up to \$15,000 for native and drought tolerant plant gardens at schedule are profite and other while area DWP has program of 5 within the second

BWP is a member of the Metropolitan Water District, and participates in



No

2012

Exemption



Reporting unit name			Repor	ting	unit #	48]
City of Burbank, PSD				/	Retail	Only	
Does your agency perform Public Ou	utreach progran	ns? Yes					
The list of wholesale agencies perfor with the BMP	ming school ed	ucation progra	ms which can be counte	ed to	help th	ne agency con	nply
Metropolitan Water District of SC							
Please provide the name of Agency	if not CUWCC	Group1 membe	ers				
Materials meet state education framework requirements?	Description	The Living W satisfies with teachers mee materials are	ise kit, developed by Re numerous State Curricuet their teaching requirer updated to reflect the la	esou ulum men atest	rce Act Standa ts. Eacl standa	ion Programs, ards and helps n year, the pro ards.	gram
V Materials distributed to K-6 Students?	Description	Each kit inclu toilet leak det lamp, and oth	des a low flow showerh ector tablets, flow rate to er energy-saving and e	ead, est b duca	low flo bag, a c ational i	w kitchen aera ompact fluore naterials.	ator, scent
Number of students reached	1184						
Materials distributed to 7-12 Students? (optional) Description No materials are provided directly to 7-12 students, but these students have access to the kits if they have a younger sibling. In addition, these students can access our other educational materials, including our quarterly newsletter, Currents.							. In erials,
Annual budget for school educa	tion program	55000.00					
Description of all other water supplier educationprograms also	P provides qua wcase our nativ provides staffi	rterly tours of c ve and drought ng for children'	our EcoCampus to stude tolerant plants, and stor s booths at our annual a	ents rmw and o	and ad ater ca other C	ults, where we oture systems ity events.	BWP
School Programs Activities							
Classroom Presentation:							
Number of presentation			Number of a	atter	idees		
Describe the topics covered in your of	classroom pres	entations:					
Large group assemblies:							
Number of presentation			Number of a	atter	ndees		
Children's water festivals or othe	r events:						
Number of presentation			Number of a	atter	ndees		
Cooperative efforts with existing science/water education programs (various workshops, science fair awardsor judging) and follow-up:							
Number of presentation Number of attendees							
Other methods of disseminating information (i.e. themed age-appropriate classroom loaner kits):							
Description				N	lumber	distributed	
Staffing children's booths at even	ts & festivals:						
Number of booths			Number of a	atter	ndees		

Water conservation contests such as poster and photo:



WMP 2.2 School Education Programs 2011

Description		Number of participants						
Offer monetary a	wards/funding or scholarships to st	udents:						
Number offer	red	Total funding						
Teacher training workshops:								
Number of pr	resentation	Number of attendees						
Fund and/or staf	ff student field trips to treatment faci	ilities, recycling facilities, water conservation gardens,etc.:						
Number of to	ours or fieldtrips	Number of participants						
College internsh	ips in water conservation offered:							
Number of in	iternship	Total funding						
Career Fairs / W	orkshops:							
Number of pr	resentation	Number of attendees						
Additional progr	ram(s) supported by agency but not	mentioned above:						
Description		Number of events Number of participants						
Comments								
At Least As Effect	tive As No							
Exemption	No							



Reporting unit name			Repo	rting	unit #	48]
City of Burbank, PSD				/	Retail	Only	
Does your agency perform Public O	utreach progran	ns? Yes					
The list of wholesale agencies perfo with the BMP	rming school ec	lucation progra	ms which can be count	ed to	help th	ne agency com	nply
Metropolitan Water District of SC							
Please provide the name of Agency	if not CUWCC	Group1 membe	ers				
Materials meet state education framework requirements?	Description	The Living W satisfies with teachers mee materials are	ise kit, developed by Ro numerous State Curric et their teaching require updated to reflect the l	esou ulum ment atest	rce Acti Standa s. Each standa	ion Programs, ards and helps n year, the pro urds.	gram
V Materials distributed to K-6 Students?	Description	Each kit inclu toilet leak det lamp, and oth	des a low flow showerh ector tablets, flow rate t her energy-saving and e	ead, est b duca	low flow ag, a co ational n	w kitchen aera ompact fluore naterials.	ator, scent
Number of students reached	1208						
V Materials distributed to 7-12 Description Students? (optional) Description addition, these students can access our other educational materials, including our quarterly newsletter, Currents.							
Annual budget for school educa	ation program	55000.00					
Description of all other water supplier educationprograms	P provides qua wcase our nativo provides staffi	rterly tours of c ve and drought ng for children'	our EcoCampus to stude tolerant plants, and sto s booths at our annual	ents a rmwa	and adu ater cap other Ci	ults, where we oture systems. ity events.	BWP
School Programs Activities							
Classroom Presentation:							
Number of presentation			Number of	atten	dees		
Describe the topics covered in your	classroom pres	entations:					
Large group assemblies:							
Number of presentation			Number of	atter	dees		
Children's water festivals or othe	r events:						
Number of presentation			Number of	atter	dees		
Cooperative efforts with existing science/water education programs (various workshops, science fair awardsor judging) and follow-up:							
Number of presentation Number of attendees							
Other methods of disseminating information (i.e. themed age-appropriate classroom loaner kits):							
Description				N	umber	distributed	
Staffing children's booths at ever	nts & festivals:						
Number of booths			Number of	atter	idees		

Water conservation contests such as poster and photo:



WMP 2.2 School Education Programs 2012

Description		Number of participants					
Offer monetary awa	ards/funding or scholarships to	students:					
Number offered	1	Total funding					
Teacher training workshops:							
Number of pres	entation	Number of attendees					
Fund and/or staff s	tudent field trips to treatment f	acilities, recycling facilities, water conservation gardens,etc.:					
Number of tours	s or fieldtrips	Number of participants					
College internship:	s in water conservation offered	:					
Number of inter	rnship	Total funding					
Career Fairs / Wor	kshops:						
Number of pres	entation	Number of attendees					
Additional program	n(s) supported by agency but n	ot mentioned above:					
Description		Number of events Number of participants					
Comments							
At Least As Effective	e As No						
Exemption	No						



City of Burbank, PSD

Reporting Unit ID#:

48

Retail Only

Non Potable Water Sources

103885

Local Watershed	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	1575.24	Recycled Non Potable	treated at Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (WRP)
	1575.24		



City of Burbank, PSD

Reporting Unit ID#:

48

Retail Only

Non Potable Water Sources

104391

Local Watershed	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	1904.34	Recycled Non Potable	from Burbank Water Reclamation Plant (WRP)
	1904.34		



City of Burbank, PSD

Reporting Unit ID#:

48

Retail Only

Potable Water Sources

Imported	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	7714.90	Surface	MWD Treated
	7714.90		

Local Watershed	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	10138.00	Groundwater	Groundwater Treated at Burbank Operable Unit (BOU)
	10138.00		



City of Burbank, PSD

Reporting Unit ID#:

48

Retail Only

Potable Water Sources

Imported	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	8325.10	Surface	MWD Treated
	8325.10		

Local Watershed	AF / Year	Water Supply Type	Water Supply Description
	10462.09	Groundwater	Groundwater Treated at Burbank Operable Unit (BOU)
	10462.09		



Reporting Unit ID#:

48

City of Burbank, PSD

Retail Only

Non Potable Water Uses

2011 Billed:

CustomerType	Metered Accounts	Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Un-Metered Accounts	Un-Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Description
Recycled	116	1506.73	0	0.00	
	116	1506.73	0	0.00	



Reporting Unit Name City of Burbank, PSD

Non Potable Water Uses

Reporting Unit ID#:

48

Retail Only

2012

Billed:

CustomerType	Metered Accounts	Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Un-Metered Accounts	Un-Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Description
Recycled	134	2031.69	0	0.00	
	134	2031.69	0	0.00	



Reporting Unit ID#:

48

City of Burbank, PSD

Retail Only

Potable Water Uses

Billed:

	CustomerType	Metered Accounts	Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Un-Metered Accounts	Un-Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Description
	Single-Family	18659	8515.84	0	0.00	
	Multi-Family	3419	4155.22	0	0.00	
	Commercial	3094	3336.55	0	0.00	
	Industrial	119	673.22	0	0.00	
	Institutional	258	596.06	0	0.00	
	Fire Lines	893	7.68	0	0.00	
		26442	17284.57	0	0.00	



Reporting Unit ID#:

48

City of Burbank, PSD

Retail Only

Potable Water Uses

Billed:

CustomerType	Metered Accounts	Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Un-Metered Accounts	Un-Metered Water Delivered AF/Year	Description
Single-Family	18651	9146.66	0	0.00	
Multi-Family	3429	4380.85	0	0.00	
Commercial	3090	3474.10	0	0.00	
Industrial	116	725.73	0	0.00	
Institutional	246	593.63	0	0.00	
Fire Lines	903	10.60	0	0.00	
	26435	18331.57	0	0.00	



48 City of Burbank, PSD

CDCD	in 200	6· 1	8/18
GFGD	111 200	U. I	04.10

GPCD in 2012: 160.67

GPCD Target for 2018: 151.03

Biennial GPCD Compliance Table

ON TRACK

		Target		Highest Acceptable Bound	
Year	Report	% Base	GPCD	% Base	GPCD
2010	1	96.4%	177.55	100%	184.18
2012	2	92.8%	170.92	96.4%	177.55
2014	3	89.2%	164.29	92.8%	170.92
2016	4	85.6%	157.66	89.2%	164.29
2018	5	82.0%	151.03	82.0%	151.03



CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2011

Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices

48 City of Burbank, PSD

1. Conservation Coordinator Name: provided with necessary resources to implement BMPs?

Title:

Marketing Associate

On Track

Email:

kkulkarni@burbankca.gov

Kapil Kulkarni

2. Water Waste Prevention Documents

WW Document Name	WWP File Name	WW Prevention URL	WW Prevention Ordinance Terms Description
Option A Describe the ordinances or terms of service adopted by your agency to meet the water waste prevention requirements of this BMP.			
Option B Describe any water waste prevention ordinances or requirements adopted by your local jurisdiction or regulatory agencies within your service area.	Sustainable-Water-Use- Ordinance-June-8-2009.pdf	http://www.burbankwatera ndpower.com/conservation /californias-water-supply- crisis	The Sustainable Water Use Ordinance includes requirements for residents to limit their frequency, timing, and methods of water use for landscape and other domestic purposes, and for businesses to limit their use of water in restaurants and lodging.
Option C Describe any documentation of support for legislation or regulations that prohibit water waste.			
Option D Describe your agency efforts to cooperate with other entities in the adoption or enforcement of local requirements consistent with this BMP.			
Option E Describe your agency support positions with respect to adoption of legislation or regulations that are consistent with this BMP.			
Option F Describe your agency efforts to support local ordinances that establish permits requirements for water efficient design in new development.			
At Least As effective	No		

As



CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2011 Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices

On Track

Exemption



CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2012

Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices

48 City of Burbank, PSD

On Track

1. Conservation Coordinator Name: provided with necessary resources to implement BMPs?

Title:

Marketing Associate

Email:

kkulkarni@burbankca.gov

Kapil Kulkarni

2. Water Waste Prevention Documents

WW Document Name	WWP File Name	WW Prevention URL	WW Prevention Ordinance Terms Description
Option A Describe the ordinances or terms of service adopted by your agency to meet the water waste prevention requirements of this BMP.			
Option B Describe any water waste prevention ordinances or requirements adopted by your local jurisdiction or regulatory agencies within your service area.	Copy_of_Sustainable- Water-Use-Ordinance- June-8-2009.pdf	http://www.burbankwatera ndpower.com/conservation /californias-water-supply- crisis	The Sustainable Water Use Ordinance includes requirements for residents to limit their frequency, timing, and methods of water use for landscape and other domestic purposes, and for businesses to limit their use of water in restaurants and lodging.
Option C Describe any documentation of support for legislation or regulations that prohibit water waste.			
Option D Describe your agency efforts to cooperate with other entities in the adoption or enforcement of local requirements consistent with this BMP.			
Option E Describe your agency support positions with respect to adoption of legislation or regulations that are consistent with this BMP.			
Option F Describe your agency efforts to support local ordinances that establish permits requirements for water efficient design in new development.			
At Least As effective	No		

As



CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2012 Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.1 Operation Practices

On Track

Exemption



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control

On Track

48 City of Burbank, PSD

- Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? No
 - AWWA File provided to CUWCC? No

AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?

- Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method No
- Complete Training in Component Analysis Process? No
 - Component Analysis? No

No

- Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective? Yes
- Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective? Yes

Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from report to repair.

Provided 7 Types of Water Loss Control Info

Leaks Repairs	Value Real Losses	Value Apparent Losses	Miles Surveyed	Press Reduction	Cost Of Interventions	Water Saved (AF)

At Least As Effective As Yes

Water Leak Report 2012-2013_BWP for CUWCC.xlsx

Using our AMI water infrastructure, BWP implemented a Leak Detection program in June 2012, and has so far: Identified more than 220 leaks Contacted more than 220 customers Fixed more than 180 leaks Saved more than 8 million gallons Exemption 0

-



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control

On Track

48 City of Burbank, PSD

- Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? No
 - AWWA File provided to CUWCC? No

AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?

- Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method No
- Complete Training in Component Analysis Process? No
 - Component Analysis? No
- Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective? Yes
- Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective? Yes

Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from report to repair.

Provided 7 Types of Water Loss Control Info

Leaks Repairs	Value Real Losses	Value Apparent Losses	Miles Surveyed	Press Reduction	Cost Of Interventions	Water Saved (AF)

At Least As Effective As Yes

Copy_of_Water_Leak_Report_2012-2013_BWP_for_CUWCC.xlsx

No

Using our AMI water infrastructure, BWP implemented a Leak Detection program in June 2012, and has so far: Identified more than 220 leaks Contacted more than 220 customers Fixed more than 180 leaks Saved more than 8 million gallons

Exemption 0



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity	On Track
48 City of Burbank, PSD	
Numbered Unmetered Accounts	No
Metered Accounts billed by volume of use	Yes
Number of CII Accounts with Mixed Use Meters	
Conducted a feasibility study to assess merits of a program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use accounts to dedicated landscape meters?	Yes
Feasibility Study provided to CUWCC?	Yes
Date: 10/1/2010	
Uploaded file name: 2010_Recycled_Water_Master_Plan	n.pdf
Completed a written plan, policy or program to test, repair and replace meters	Yes
At Least As Effective As No	
Exemption No	
Comments:	



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.3 Metering Wit Commodity	On Track	
48 City of Burb	ank, PSD	
Numbered Unmetered Accou	unts	No
Metered Accounts billed by v	volume of use	Yes
Number of CII Accounts with Meters	Mixed Use	
Conducted a feasibility study program to provide incentive accounts to dedicated landso	to assess merits of a s to switch mixed-use ape meters?	Yes
Feasibility Study provided to	CUWCC?	Yes
Date: 10/1/2010		
Uploaded file name: Copy	_of_2010_Recycled_Water_Ma	aster_Plan.pdf
Completed a written plan, po repair and replace meters	licy or program to test,	Yes
At Least As Effective As	No	
Exemption	No	
Comments:		



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.4 Retail Consrvation Pricing

On Track

48 City of Burbank, PSD

Implementation (Water Rate Structure)

Customer Class	Water Rate Type	Conserving Rate?	(V) Total Revenue Comodity Charges	(M) Total Revenue Fixed Carges
Single-Family	Increasing Block	Yes	9438421.9	2223129.54
Multi-Family	Uniform	Yes	4275806.29	408654.14
Commercial	Uniform	Yes	3428362.72	377785.31
Industrial	Uniform	Yes	707879.42	17773.94
Institutional	Uniform	Yes	543536.81	26576.46
			18394007.14	3053919.39

Calculate: V / (V + M) 86 %

Implementation Use Annual Revenue As Reported Option:

Use 3 years average instead of most recent year

Canadian Water and Wastewater Association

Upload file:

Agency Provide Sewer Service: No

At Least As Effective As No

Exemption No



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 1.4 Retail Consrvation Pricing

On Track

48 City of Burbank, PSD

Implementation (Water Rate Structure)

Customer Class	Water Rate Type	Conserving Rate?	(V) Total Revenue Comodity Charges	(M) Total Revenue Fixed Carges
Single-Family	Increasing Block	Yes	10629435.99	2386162.64
Multi-Family	Uniform	Yes	3983141.17	442265.8
Commercial	Uniform	Yes	2993751.55	399428.31
Industrial	Uniform	Yes	583467.47	18381.51
Institutional	Uniform	Yes	348528.31	29334.12
			18538324.49	3275572.38

Calculate: V / (V + M) 85 %

Implementation Use Annual Revenue As Reported Option:

Use 3 years average instead of most recent year

Canadian Water and Wastewater Association

Upload file:

Agency Provide Sewer Service: No

At Least As Effective As No

Exemption No



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

On Track

Yes

Retail Only

48 City of Burbank, PSD

Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs?

The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the BMP

The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members

Did at least one contact take place during eac	h quater of the reporting year?	Yes
Public Outreach Program List		Number
Newsletter articles on conservation		4
Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill s information packets	tuffers, messages printed on bill,	12
Website		6
Landscape water conservation media campa	aigns	4
General water conservation information		12
	Total	38

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year?	Yes
Number Media Contacts	Number
Articles or stories resulting from outreach	2
News releases	5
Total	7

Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year?

Yes

Public Information Program Annual Budget

Annual Budget Category	Annual Budget Amount
	400000
Total Amount:	400000

Description of all other Public Outreach programs



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

On Track

At Least As Effective As No Exemption



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

On Track

Yes

Retail Only

48 City of Burbank, PSD

Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs?

The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the BMP

The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year?		Yes
Public Outreach Program List		Number
Newsletter articles on conservation		4
Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, information packets		12
Website		6
Landscape water conservation media campaigns		4
General water conservation information		12
	Total	38

Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year?	Yes
Number Media Contacts	Number
Articles or stories resulting from outreach	3
News releases	1
Total	4

Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year?

Yes

Public Information Program Annual Budget

Annual Budget Category	Annual Budget Amount
	400000
Total Amount:	400000

Description of all other Public Outreach programs



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.1 Public Outreach

On Track

At Least As Effective As No Exemption



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.2 School Education I	Programs	On Track
48 City of Burbank, PSD		Retail Only
Does your agency implement School E	Education programs?	Yes
The list of wholesale agencies perform with the BMP	ing public outreach which can be c	ounted to help the agency comply
Metropolitan Water District of SC		
Materials meet state education framew	vork requirements? Yes	i
The Living Wise kit, developed by Reso and helps teachers meet their teaching latest standards.	ource Action Programs, satisfies w g requirements. Each year, the prog	ith numerous State Curriculum Standards gram materials are updated to reflect the
Materials distributed to K-6?	Yes	
Each kit includes a low flow showerhea compact fluorescent lamp, and other e	ad, low flow kitchen aerator, toilet le nergy-saving and educational mate	eak detector tablets, flow rate test bag, a prials.
Materials distributed to 7-12 students?	? No (Info O	nly)
No materials are provided directly to 7- sibling. In addition, these students can Currents.	12 students, but these students ha access our other educational mate	ve access to the kits if they have a younger rials, including our quarterly newsletter,
Annual budget for school education pro	ogram: 55000.00	
Description of all other water supplier e	education programs	
The Living Wise kit, developed by Result and helps teachers meet their teaching latest standards. Each kit includes a lo rate test bag, a compact fluorescent lat tours of our EcoCampus to students ar stormwater capture systems. BWP also	ource Action Programs, satisfies w g requirements. Each year, the prog w flow showerhead, low flow kitche mp, and other energy-saving and e nd adults, where we showcase our o provides staffing for children's bo	ith numerous State Curriculum Standards gram materials are updated to reflect the en aerator, toilet leak detector tablets, flow iducational materials. BWP provides quarterly native and drought tolerant plants, and oths at our annual and other City events.
Comments:		
At Least As Effective As	No	
Exemption	No	



Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency

BMP 2.2 School Education F	Programs	On Track	
48 City of Burbank, PSD		Retail Only	
Does your agency implement School E	ducation programs? Yes	5	
The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply with the BMP			
Metropolitan Water District of SC			
Materials meet state education framew	vork requirements? Yes		
The Living Wise kit, developed by Resource Action Programs, satisfies with numerous State Curriculum Standards and helps teachers meet their teaching requirements. Each year, the program materials are updated to reflect the latest standards.			
Materials distributed to K-6?	Yes		
Each kit includes a low flow showerhead, low flow kitchen aerator, toilet leak detector tablets, flow rate test bag, a compact fluorescent lamp, and other energy-saving and educational materials.			
Materials distributed to 7-12 students?	Yes (Info Only)	
No materials are provided directly to 7- sibling. In addition, these students can Currents.	12 students, but these students have access our other educational materia	access to the kits if they have a younger ls, including our quarterly newsletter,	
Annual budget for school education pro	ogram: 55000.00]	
Description of all other water supplier e	education programs		
The Living Wise kit, developed by Reso and helps teachers meet their teaching latest standards. Each kit includes a lor rate test bag, a compact fluorescent lan quarterly tours of our EcoCampus to st and stormwater capture systems. BWF	numerous State Curriculum Standards m materials are updated to reflect the aerator, toilet leak detector tablets, flow cational materials. BWP provides se our native and drought tolerant plants, pooths at our annual and other City events.		
Comments:			
At Least As Effective As	No		
Exemption	No		

Appendix F

AWWA Water Audit Form
AWWA Free Water Audit Software: <u>Reporting Worksheet</u> American Water V Copyright © 2014, Al	WAS v5.0 Vorks Association Rights Reserved
2 Click to access definition + Click to add a comment Click to add a comment Reporting Year: 2015 1/2015 - 12/2015	
Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades	
All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR	
To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it. Master Meter and Supply Error Adjust	ments
WATER SUPPLIED <pre>cmasses in the state of</pre>	
Volume from own sources: + ? 7 10,276.000 acre-ft/yr + ?	acre-ft/yr
Water imported: + ? 7 4,766.000 acre-ft/yr + ? O	acre-ft/yr
Enter negative % or value for under-re	aistration
WATER SUPPLIED: 15,042.000 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-regis	stration
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION	
Billed metered: + ? 7 14,507.000 acre-ft/yr for help using opti	on
Billed unmetered: + ? acre-ft/yr Duttons below	
Unbilled unmetered: + ? 188 025 acre-ft/yr 125% O	acre-ft/vr
Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed	dore to yr
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: ? 14,695.025 acre-ft/yr Use buttons to sell percentage of wat supplied	ect er
WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption)	
Apparent Losses	acre-ft/vr
Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed	
Customer metering inaccuracies:?870.480acre-ft/yr0970.480Systematic data handling errors:+?837.605acre-ft/yr0.25%037.605	acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr
Apparent Losses: ? 145.690 acre-ft/yr	
Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)	
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses:	
WATER LOSSES: 346.975 acre-ft/yr	
NON-REVENUE WATER NON-REVENUE WATER: 2 535.000 acre-ft/yr	
SYSTEM DATA	
Number of <u>active AND inactive</u> service connections: + ? 8 26,661	
Service connection density: ? 96 conn./mile main	
Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? Yes (length of somical line, havend the property	
Average length of customer service line: + ? boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility)	
Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied	
Average operating pressure: + 2 8 80.0 psi	
Total annual cost of operating water system: + ? 10 \$16,443,000 \$/Year	
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 4 ? 9 \$3.09 \$7.00 Cubic leet (CCI)	
WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:	
*** VOUD CODE IC: 77 out of 400 ***	
A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score	
PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:	
Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:	
1: Volume from own sources	
2: Billed metered	
3: Water imported	